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ASL at a Glance
BERREKRHRE

CORPORATE OVERVIEW £E &S/

Information Technology (IT) services provider since 1973

Beijing Teamsun Technology Co., Ltd. (SHSE Stock Code: 600410) becomes the
Company’s ultimate holding company in September 2009

Dedicated to delivering one-stop IT solutions and services to customers across the
region with business operations in Hong Kong, Mainland China, Taiwan, Macau,
Thailand, Singapore and Malaysia, etc.
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For the year ended 31st December 2016

In the managed service business, the result was impressive. The Group has
successfully introduced a “customer-oriented” concept to various locally-based
enterprises through providing long-term IT managed services

Committed to serving various organizations in both public and commercial
sectors and completed various [T-related large-scale projects

Performed well in commercial sector projects and implemented multiple data
center upgrade projects

In the security solutions business, the Group achieved satisfactory progress
and successfully helped many enterprises in preventing their IT systems from
damaging by new types of network attacks

Expanded the Service Center and will further upgrade the IT infrastructure, with
a view to improve efficiency and quality of the Service Center and enhance the
Group's capability in the provision of one-stop IT managed service support
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Carry out acquisition of Grid Dynamics International, Inc., a company
incorporated in California in the United States, in order to expand the Group’s
business blueprint and consolidate its market position. The Group also
anticipates to quickly become a major IT service provider on third platfrom
technologies in the Greater China Region

Conduct internal trainings on DevOps to increase the efficiency of the Group’s
application development, improve its quality and reduce risks by enhancing
technical expertise and automating the application deployment

Adopt Agile development to speed up the overall service delivery process
Continue to leverage the Group’s core competitiveness on the second platform,
and through a series of initiatives on the uplift of technical competency and
services quality so as to flexibly cater the needs of digital transformation of
customers and safeguard their data security

Dedicated to develop innovative technologies and grasp new opportunities
(including omni-channel digital platforms, e-Commerce and Fintech, etc)
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Customer Service Excellence with
Corporate Responsibility
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ASL Fun Day at Disneyland
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Wins “Family-Friendly Employers™ and
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We are committed to be the excellent IT services partner by providing customers innovative, quality and integrated one-
stop IT services and solutions. We aim at satisfying our customers’ business needs through forging strategic alliance
with our business partners and the core values of the Group - “SPACT":

“S" - Strive for Excellence
Perform work with best effort and the highest standard. Always looking for ways to make further improvement.

“P" - Problem Solving
Solve problem with effective solutions in a timely manner and be able to identify the core of the problems and provide workable
solutions in an honest manner.

“A" - Accountable
Be accountable for one’s area of responsibilities whilst working towards the goal of the company, be responsible for managing
and following up with the work until complete success.

“C" - Courage
To change and innovate - respond timely to change and to enable the company to become efficient and competitive. Eager to
invent new ideas and new ways of work to advance in a leading position.

“T" - Teamwork
Work as part of the team, co-operate and contribute to team effort & success. Willing to offer help, share ideas and knowledge.
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WANG Weihang
WANG Yueou (Chief Executive Officer)
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LI Wei (Chairman)
CUI Yong
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YE Fang
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COMPANY SECRETARY

NGAN Wai Hing

PRINCIPAL BANKER

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited

SOLICITORS

Jones Day
Woo Kwan Lee & Lo
Appleby

AUDITOR

Grant Thornton Hong Kong Limited

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Estera Management (Bermuda) Limited

(formerly known as “Appleby Management (Bermuda) Ltd")
Canon’s Court, 22 Victoria Street,
Hamilton HM 12, Bermuda

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE
REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Tricor Tengis Limited
Level 22, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong

SHARE LISTING

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
Stock Code: 771

REGISTERED OFFICE

Canon’s Court, 22 Victoria Street,
Hamilton HM12, Bermuda

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL
PLACE OF BUSINESS

15th Floor, Topsail Plaza, 11 On Sum Street,
Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong
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RESULTS

Financial Summary
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For the year ended 31st December
BZt-A=1-BLEE
2016 2015 2014 2012

—e-x% —P-1F —2-M4
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR AL BT TR 7t

Revenue LON 1,521,985 1,506,041 1,433,921 1,612,958 1,673,279
Profit before income tax ERATSBATER 38,978 27,578 29,589 23,594 47,701
Income tax expense FEBAx (10,181) (7,874) (1,125) (6,314) (6,507)
Profit for the year £ A 28,797 19,704 28,464 17,280 41,19
Profit for the year attributable to JIRER IR

non-controlling interests FREH - - 31 - -
Profit for the year attributable to ARRRAFEAA

equity holders of the Company FEA S P 28,797 19,704 28,495 17,280 41,194

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
EERER

At 31st December
R+=A=t+-H
2016 2015 2014

“E-RE —T-HF —T-MF

HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T BT THET THT TET

Total assets mEE 1,166,328 1,175,121 1,152,323 1,115,090 1,044,218
Total liabilities waf 447,295 491,771 489,486 506,443 470,216
Equity attributable to equity ARARAFAA

holders of the Company FEfh R

719,033 683,350 662,837 608,647 574,002
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The Group's profit for the year before income
tax was HK$39.0 million, an increase of
41.3% compared to last year.

EEARFERATEHINEFNA39.0 888
TC BEFHENIN41.3% ©

LI Wei Chairman
TR’ ER

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”), | am pleased to present to
the shareholders the annual report of Automated Systems Holdings Limited
(the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively “ASL" or the “Group”).

For the year ended 31st December 2016, the Group recorded a revenue of
HK$1,522.0 million, an increase of 1.1% compared to last year. Profit before
income tax was HK$39.0 million, an increase of 41.3% compared to last year.
The Group maintained a healthy financial position and recorded an increase
of 37.5% of its cash balance as at 31st December 2016 to approximately
HK$237.8 million when compared to last year.

During the year, the Group remained focus on five key solutions and services
pillars (i.e. Infrastructure, Security, Data Intelligence, Mobile and Cloud) and
recorded solid growth as a whole. During the year under review, the Group
continued to exert its advantages and successfully grasped different market
demands. In respect of the managed service and Security business, the
performance was particularly impressive. Moreover, the Group continued to
obtain and complete various information technology (“IT”) related projects
for public and commercial sectors, the performance in commercial sector was
spectacularly remarkable.

For service and delivery business, the Group not only expanded and improved
the infrastructure in its Service Center, but also expanded its Offshore Delivery
Excellence Center (ODEC) during the year. These measures have substantially
enhanced the cost effectiveness of projects and quality of service delivery. In
addition, the Group used mobile applications to manage field services and
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equipped the field technicians with mobile devices to trace service progress in real
time, so as to optimise the process of dispatching technicians to provide IT service
to customers, through which it can be more timely, effectively and quickly to
address customers' needs. The Group is expecting to upgrade the aforementioned
mobile applications in 2017, to further enhance its service quality.

With the increasing adoption of digital technology across the market, the
demand for digital transformation of enterprises is becoming more and
more ardent. The Group believes that IT has turned out to be one of the
main driving forces and economic leading industries that can aid a rapid leap
in social productivity. As a long established IT company in Hong Kong, the
Group believes that facing the rapid evolution of IT, we need to keep up with
the times and explore opportunities brought by the digital transformation
in due time. Therefore, on 16th December 2016, the Group entered into an
agreement and plan of merger with Grid Dynamics International, Inc. (“Grid
Dynamics”), a company incorporated in California, the United States, to acquire
Grid Dynamics at a total consideration of approximately US$118 million (the
" Acquisition”). The purpose of the Acquisition is to expand the business of the
Group, and promptly grasp the opportunities brought by the increasing demand
of enterprises for digital technology. The closing of the Acquisition is subject
to the fulfillment of certain conditions, details of which were set out in the
announcement dated 19th December 2016 and the circular dated 6th March
2017 of the Company respectively.

Nowadays, as the development of IT advances at a high speed, and cloud
platforms and services are more widely used by enterprises, emerging
partners such as new solution providers, cloud channels and etc. are rapidly
rising. In the face of dynamic industry ecology, the Group, besides stepping
up to provide cloud-related technical training to its employees, will strive to
cooperate with more diverse suppliers (including actively seeking to establish
partnership with emerging technology suppliers), so as to seize the current
opportunities.

In addition to expanding its business, the Group is also concerned about
sustainable development and proactively fulfills its corporate social
responsibility. Besides accredited as a Caring Company for seven consecutive
years, the Group was awarded as a “Family-Friendly Employer” and for
the first time earned the “Award for Breastfeeding Support”. The Group is
committed to continuously creating a harmonious working environment for
the staff to give full play to their strengths.

Last but not least, | take this opportunity to express my most sincere gratitude
to the Board, senior management and all staff for their commitment,
professionalism and valuable contribution, in addition to, our valued
customers, business partners and shareholders for their continued support.
We will continue to explore opportunities that help to optimise the existing
business portfolio of the Group so as to maintain our growth momentum
and lead the Group into a new milestone in 2017, which also marks our 20th
anniversary of public listing in Hong Kong.

LI Wei
Chairman

Hong Kong, 21st March 2017

Annual Report 2016 &

Chairman'’s Statement

ERE®|E

SNERMT A BEBITRIRE - AEREHREE
R MELRERMABHBRFFPREERR
BIRFEHIRAZ - FEULBE AN S B - B M RIE R
BEPHFR - AREBEHER T —LFR/Z
MBERREATAR - AE—HRARBESR -

BEEHMEMNSTEEATER - BESKE
HEAHN T RINMBRY - AEEMREEMEK
EXAREMEEENREAREN T ZRE S
REBEEEX — ERAB—RERKA
WEMBHERAR  AEERAEELREENE
AR R - HEERIHE - RS RENE
BIESIRE M o St - AEER T —RF+=
A4~ BE—RREBE MM MK 2 A7 Grid
Dynamics International, Inc.([ Grid Dynamics]) %8
EAMHmENE - NBRENNSEEETK
f& Grid Dynamics ([ W B E 18 |) AR R A S @ %
% WA REECE S SR T KA RE AT
HRE S o Z U FIEAF S EIGERE R
HEE - HFRBHEHRARABHI AT —X
F+ZATNBAZRAERZE—+tF=AAZ

FERBEAMBREMER-—BATE  maRd
FEEZMEAENT A ERY - A REHE
7 BRESHESERMN ERRIER o mHE
EBENTEER  AEERTNERETHT
SRR RTIEISN - T AR E N R MR
BAE (BERES kAR B HEE R AE
BHER)  UEREREE -

BImREBS - ANEE IR AT RHEE R R AV
BOIRRLEERM - BT RELFERAIT AR
REAEBBIN ARETEZHR [ HERZER
W ERES [ FHEIRFEE | o REBER
BN /B TAE— MR THERER - &
ffFIzEn BIEME -

Ri& - AAEREEZLC  SREEEABMN
RERBTI 2SN EXRBBREEEHE
ARLEHE - thoh - HRERHFRMTENETP - ¥
BRHREROBESS - BISBERERD
BEAREERAEBEANEHRAEFERD
B YR T tFRAAKEREFELT B
F2B - HFEAKEEEFRER

£
T

B —E—+F=A=-+—H

Automated Systems Holdings Limited & &) &4 &= E AR A A



TR RS

The Group anticipates to quickly become
a major IT service provider on the digital
transformation technology in the Greater
China region through the Acquisition.

KB Ere B B FEINRAS
AP ERASBEURMNEE
B AR RIS R

WANG Yueou Chief Executive Officer
TEB THEH

Financial Results

For the year ended 31st December 2016, total revenue of the Group was
HK$1,522.0 million, representing a 1.1% increase from last year, which was
contributed by the increase in service revenue. As compared with last year,
product sales was decreased by 0.7% to HK$840.0 million while service
revenue was increased by 3.3% to HK$682.0 million. For the year ended 31st
December 2016, product sales and service revenue contributed 55.2% and
44.8% to total revenue respectively.

For the year ended 31st December 2016, commercial and public sector sales
contributed 48.4% and 51.6% to total revenue respectively, compared to
45.9% and 54.1% last year.

For the year ended 31st December 2016, the Group's gross profit margin was
11.0%, an increase of 14.9% compared to last year. Such increase was mainly
attributable to the ongoing implementation of various measures relating
to human resources integration, effectiveness of operational efficiency and
marketing promotion.
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Chief Executive Officer’s Statement

With respect to other (loss)/gain, net for the year ended 31st December 2016,
the Group recorded an one-off gain of HK$5.7 million due to the deemed
disposal of the Group’s partial interests in associates. Besides this, the Group
had adopted a prudent approach in making provisions for the potential
customers’ claim of HK$9.6 million that might incur due to termination
of business contracts, details of which were disclosed in the Company’s
announcements dated 19th March 2014 and 21st May 2014.

For the year ended 31st December 2016, the Group’s administrative
expenses was HK$51.1 million, an increase of 17.9% compared to last year.
Such increase was mainly due to the professional fees of HK$5.6 million
incurred for proposed acquisition of Grid Dynamics International, Inc. (“Grid
Dynamics”).

After inclusion of aforesaid non-recurring items which were not incurred
in the ordinary course of the Group’s business, the Group recorded profit
attributable to the Company’s equity holders of HK$28.8 million during the
year under review, a rise of 46.1% compared to HK$19.7 million last year.

For the year ended 31st December 2016, orders newly secured by the Group
amounted to approximately HK$1,602.5 million. As at 31st December 2016,
the order book balance was approximately HK$963.4 million, an increase
of 7.4% compared to HK$897.1 million last year. The Group’s cash stood at
approximately HK$237.8 million with a working capital ratio of 1.94:1. The
Group maintained a healthy financial position during the year. As at 31st
December 2016, the outstanding borrowings amounted to HK$10.0 million.

Business Review

The Group, continuously focusing on five key solutions and services pillars
(i.e. Infrastructure, Security, Data Intelligence, Mobile and Cloud) in 2016,
has been consistent in its development strategy and has made remarkable
progress during the year.

The Board recommended a bonus issue (“Bonus Issue”) of shares of par value
HK$0.1 each in the capital of the Company on the basis of one (1) bonus
share (“Bonus Shares”), credited as fully paid, for every ten (10) existing
shares held by the shareholders of the Company whose names appear on the
register of members on Monday, 29th May 2017. It is believed that the Bonus
Issue will enhance the liquidity on capital level.

In respect of the managed service business, the result was particularly
impressive. As there is an increasing demand for enhancing operational
efficiency from the public and commercial sectors in Hong Kong and the
Greater China region, the Group has successfully introduced a “customer-
oriented” concept to various locally-based enterprises through providing long-
term Information Technology (“IT”) managed services and those enterprises
may outsource their IT support and management operations to third party.
This has considerably increased the business flexibility of those enterprises
and, with the performance pledge made by the Group, further increased their
support service standard and coverage.
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During the year, the Group is committed to serving various organisations in
both public and commercial sectors and completing various [T-related large-
scale projects. The Group has performed particularly well in commercial sector
projects and implemented multiple data center upgrade projects for different
enterprises (including a large-scale software-defined networking project). In
addition, as one of the few competitive managed security services providers in
the market, the Group continued to leverage its capabilities during the year to
achieve satisfactory progress in the security solutions business and successfully
help many enterprises in preventing their IT system from damaging by new
types of network attacks.

As a strategy to meet customers’ buoyant demand for IT Service Management
(ITSM), the Group expanded its Service Center in the first half of 2016 and
further upgraded its IT infrastructure in the second half of the year, with
a view to improve efficiency and quality of its Service Center and enhance
its capability in the provision of one-stop IT managed service support for
customers. The establishment and upgrading of the Service Center further
demonstrates the Group's competency to implement more large-scale and
sophisticated projects, and also underscores the Group’s determination to
grasp the aforementioned emerging opportunities in managed services.

Outlook and Prospects

New generation of digital technologies (including Cloud, Mobile, big data
analytics and social business) (collectively referred to as the “third platform”
technologies as defined by International Data Corporation (IDC)) are growing
rapidly and becoming increasingly popular in its adoption across industries.
This shows that traditional IT enterprise and applications architecture will not
be able to meet the long-term needs of companies for digital technologies.
During the year, more and more companies leveraged the third platform
technologies to develop new mission-critical business applications and services
to reduce costs, streamline operational procedures and improve business
agility. In view of market demands, the Group entered into an agreement
and plan of merger on 16th December 2016 with Grid Dynamics, a company
incorporated in California, the United States, and agreed to acquire Grid
Dynamics at a total consideration of approximately US$118 million (the
“Acquisition”) in order to expand its business blueprint and consolidate
its market position. Grid Dynamics is a provider of open, scalable, next-
generation e-commerce technology solutions in the areas of omni-channel
digital platforms, cloud-enablement, big data analytics and continuous
delivery. The Group is expected to quickly capture the opportunities arising
from the third platform technology through the Acquisition. Upon the
completion of the Acquisition, Grid Dynamics will become a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Group. Closing of the Acquisition is based on a number of
conditions, including obtaining the approval from the Committee on Foreign
Investment in the United States. The transaction is expected to be completed
in the first half of 2017, details of which are set out in the announcement
dated 19th December 2016 and the circular dated 6th March 2017 of the
Company respectively.
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Chief Executive Officer’s Statement

With the popularity and rapid development of the third platform technologies,
the Group anticipates that more and more customers will take the service-
oriented architecture approach as a priority when purchasing hardware
and software. Meanwhile, enterprises are expected to further widely use
cloud platforms and cloud services as their primary infrastructure and
corporate application services respectively, which will drive the development
of their cloud-related business and cloud services outsourcing. In addition,
enterprises will also place great importance to data and network security (in
the areas including IT infrastructure covering on premise, virtual and cloud
environments) in the course of their cloud deployment. All of these are the
opportunities and challenges which we have to seize and face.

With the development of new technologies and change of consumer behavior
pattern, the Group also expected that there would be more and more
enterprises requiring faster service deliveries to meet the ever-changing needs
of their customers. In view of this, the Group conducted internal trainings
on DevOps (the combination of a new superior IT service delivery and agile
application development methodologies) to increase the efficiency of the
Group’s application development, improve its quality and reduce risks by
enhancing technical expertise and automating the application deployment, so
as to capture business opportunities. On the other hand, the Group adopted
agile development to speed up the overall service delivery process and enable
customers of the Group to meet market needs promptly.

In response to the new business ecosystem in the IT industry, the Group is of
the view that IT service providers should make appropriate transformation and
change according to changes of demand. The Group must have the ability to
provide a comprehensive service, which includes integrating the cloud, mobile,
analytics and security services into a flexible, people-oriented and innovative
service, to ensure the smooth digital transformation of customers. In
addition, as enterprises currently still have certain demands on the traditional
infrastructure and related services, the Group will continue to leverage its
core competitiveness (including rich experience on systems integration and
a strong professional team) on the second platform, and through a series
of initiatives on the uplift of technical competency and services quality so
as to flexibly cater the needs of digital transformation of the customers and
safeguard their data security. In the long run, the Group anticipates to quickly
become a major IT service provider on third platform technologies in the
Greater China region through the Acquisition. Looking forward, the Group
will strenuously consolidate its leading position in the IT industry and leverage
its competitiveness through the development of innovative technologies
and grasping new opportunities (including omni-channel digital platforms,
e-commerce and Fintech, etc.).

Financial Resources and Liquidity

As at 31st December 2016, the Group’s total assets of HK$1,166.3 million
were financed by current liabilities of HK$401.4 million, non-current liabilities
of HK$45.9 million and shareholders’ equity of HK$719.0 million. The Group
had a working capital ratio of approximately 1.94:1.
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As at 31st December 2016, the Group had an aggregate composite banking
facility from banks of approximately HK$170.0 million (2015: HK$180.0
million). The Group had pledged land and buildings of HK$107.3 million (2015:
HK$105.5 million) and restricted bank deposits HK$0.5 million (2015: Nil) for
banking facility and performance bonds granted to the Group respectively.
The performance bonds issued by the Group to customers as security of
contracts were approximately HK$62.6 million as at 31st December 2016
(2015: HK$52.3 million). The Group’s gearing ratio (total borrowings over
total equity) was 1.4% as at 31st December 2016 (2015: 2.9%).

Treasury Policies

The Group generally financed its operations with internally generated
resources and credit facilities provided by banks. Bank facilities available for
the Group include trust receipt loans, clean import loans, overdrafts and
term loans. The interest rates of most of them are fixed by reference to the
respective countries’ Interbank Offer Rate. The bank deposits are mainly
denominated in Hong Kong dollars (“HKD") and United States dollars (“USD").
The bank borrowings are denominated in HKD.

Foreign Exchange Exposure

The Group mainly earns revenue and incurs costs in HKD and USD. Foreign
exchange exposure to USD of the Group will continue to be minimal as long
as the policy of The Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region to link HKD to USD remains in effect. There was no material exposure
to fluctuations in exchange rates and therefore no related hedging financial
instrument was applied during the year ended 31st December 2016 (2015:
same).

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31st December 2016, the Group had HK$0.5 million restricted bank
deposits held as security for performance bonds (2015: Nil). As at 31st
December 2016, performance bonds of approximately HK$62.6 million (2015:
HK$52.3 million) had been issued by the bank on behalf of the Group to
customers as security of contracts.

The Group is involved in disputes arising in the ordinary course of business.
In accordance with the Group’s policies, the Group will make a provision
for a liability when it has a present obligation as a result of a past event, it
is probable that an outflow of resources will be required from the Group to
settle the obligation and the amount can be reasonably estimated. Having
reviewed outstanding claims of the Group, a provision for customers’ claim
of HK$9.6 million was consequently recognised in profit or loss within other
(loss)/gain, net. The Directors are of the opinion that adequate provisions have
been made in the consolidated financial statement for the year ended 31st
December 2016.

The Group reviews these provisions in conjunction with any related provisions
on assets related to the claims and adjusts these provisions to reflect the
impacts of negotiations, settlements, rulings, advice of legal counsel and
other pertinent information related to the case. Should developments in
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any of these matters cause a change in the Group’s determination as to
an unfavourable outcome and result in the need to recognise a material
provision, or, should any of these matters result in a final adverse judgment or
be settled for significant amounts, they could have an adverse effect on the
Group’s results of operations, cash flows, and financial position in the year
or years in which such a change in determination, settlement or judgment
occurs.

Capital Commitments

As at 31st December 2016, the Group had contracted capital commitments
amounting to approximately HK$0.1 million (2015: HK$0.2 million).

Major Customers and Suppliers

During the year ended 31st December 2016, the five largest customers and
single largest customer of the Group accounted for approximately 24.1%
and 7.1%, respectively, of the Group's revenue. The five largest suppliers and
single largest supplier of the Group accounted for approximately 34.2% and
9.1%, respectively, of the Group’s purchases.

At no time during the year ended 31st December 2016 did a Director, their
close associate or any shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge
of the Directors owns more than 5% of the number of the Company’s
issued shares) has an interest in any of the Group’s five largest customers or
suppliers.

Employee and Remuneration Policies

As at 31st December 2016, the Group, excluding its associates, employed
1,269 permanent and contract staff in Hong Kong, Mainland China, Taiwan,
Macau and Thailand. The Group remunerates its employees based on their
performance, working experience and the prevailing market conditions.
Bonuses are granted on a discretionary basis. Other employee benefits include
mandatory provident fund, insurance, medical coverage and share option
scheme.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS
FOR 2017 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The Company will convene the forthcoming annual general meeting on
Wednesday, 17th May 2017. For determining the entitlement to attend and
vote at the forthcoming annual general meeting, the register of members of
the Company will be closed from Friday, 12th May 2017 to Wednesday, 17th
May 2017, both days inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares
of the Company will be registered. In order to determine the entitlement to
attend and vote at the forthcoming annual general meeting, all completed
transfer forms accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged
with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Tengis
Limited, at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong,
for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Thursday, 11th May 2017.
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS
FOR PROPOSED BONUS ISSUE

The proposed Bonus Issue is subject to the approval of the Shareholders at
the forthcoming annual general meeting. The record date for entitlement to
the proposed Bonus Issue is Monday, 29th May 2017. For determining the
entitlement of the Bonus Shares, the register of members of the Company will
be closed from Wednesday, 24th May 2017 to Monday, 29th May 2017, both
days inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares of the Company will
be registered. In order to qualify for the Bonus Shares, all completed transfer
forms accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the
Company'’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Tengis Limited, at Level
22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong, for registration not
later than 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 23rd May 2017. The share certificates for the
Bonus Shares are expected to be despatched to the qualifying shareholders of
the Company on or before Thursday, 8th June 2017.

Subject to fulfillment of the conditions precedent of the Bonus Issue, dealings
in shares of the Company are on a cum-entitlement basis with respect to the
Bonus Issue up to Friday, 19th May 2017. From Monday, 22nd May 2017,
dealings in shares of the Company will be on an ex-entitlement basis with
respect to the Bonus Issue.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31st December 2016, neither the Company nor any of
its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee has reviewed with management the accounting
principles and practices adopted by the Group and discussed auditing, risk
management and internal control systems and financial reporting matters
including the review of the audited annual results.

By Order of the Board

WANG Yueou
Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 21st March 2017
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Major Contracts Secured in the Year

RENMBZEESH

CUSTOMER
=F

A government authority

—BUBRE R

A government department

— BRI

A government department

— B BBFT

A government department

— BRI

A Hong Kong famous chain restaurant

— BB EHER

A leading financial services group in Asia

TMELEN SR = E

A theme park
—FERE

A top Hong Kong university
VI EYNE

An international airline
—BIR A ZE AR

An internationally recognized, research led and
comprehensive university
—FrEIER R RIA R R EEHRE RS

One of the biggest public transport companies
in Hong Kong
EEERHANLBH AR —

SCOPE OF WORK
BREE

Implementation of a project relating to a score counting system

it~ AEBBED BEAEHRR

A large-scale deployment of servers and support services

RIERCE AR MR A SR IR TS

Provision of large-scale network infrastructure services

PR AR AR B2 IR

Provision of privacy impact assessment, system analysis & design, system
implementation & integration services relating to an upgrade of a public
health system

Rt —REAHBRAGHAROFIBZETME
NEE RS

Rt Rat - RREM

Provision of scalable and highly secure online queuing, banquet and

reservation solutions
REAMZASELTE2NG LRI  ESTHEMBLORRTR

Provision of deskside and helpdesk support service covering customer’s offices
in Hong Kong and served over 3,000 users

RMEKEE KB ERY - BERXPEBNHIAER RS 3,000 & A
B

Provision of large-scale infrastructure innovation & refreshment services

TR R R B3 A AN R AR

Provision of load balancing hardware upgrade services and cyber security
software upgrade services

REEFFERGARRENBRRL U TR

Provision of a large-scale software-defined networking solution

REAEEHEEBETR

Provision of network infrastructure and Wi-Fi backbone upgrade services

REBKRERNERBR T B RRE

Provision of sophisticated and large-scale managed services

e A KRB IR RS

One of the leading commercial banks in Taiwan

BRI —

Provision of system security enhancement services

RERGL 2R
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ASL joins force with NTT Communications
and NetApp to host a seminar introducing
security, storage, backup and one-stop cloud
solutions.
ASLESE NTT Communications & NetApp &
W g NRLE - TR BRREmE
IRERRAER -

9 A
ASL establishes the Offshore Delivery
Excellence Center (ODEC) in Guangzhou to [ LEEL LT
provide tailor-made solutions for customers in
Southern China.
ASLRREM RGNNSO - BER
iR FFRAE FERNARTER

BA

ASL representatives introduce enterprise data
management and analytics solutions to the
senior executives of the financial enterprises
during the “HKEX RMB Fixed Income and
Currency Conference 2016".

ASL 7 [HKEX RMB Fixed Income and
Currency Conference 2016 A& &R %ES
ENBEEBBEEBRONBATER

tA

ASL opens the brand new Service Center at
ASL headquarters in Hong Kong to provide

better customer experience.

ASLIAE B EE R A 2 #T R IR 0 - IALR
HESKTHZFER -

+A

ASL and Check Point jointly organise the “APT
Solution Day” to introduce the Advanced
Persistent Threat Solutions.

ASLEZ Check Point & %% [ APT Solution

Dayl * NMAEMBHEERBHBAT R o

tARNAR

ASL collaborates with Nimble and Veeam to
organise four workshops. The participants
try out the advanced storage and backup
solutions at the workshops.

ASL £ Nimble £ Veeam & ## £ 00 )% T 1E;
EEGENSHAASHERSRERERS

-
E
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Activity Highlights
SEENTER

Kl seEp h A

ASL together with Citrix, HDS and Kodak
Alaris host the “TechShop Day” to share
multi-vendor solutions and services, including
the remote desktop solutions, the system
infrastructure and remote printing and
scanning solutions.

ASLEE Citrix ~ H 80U 248 (HDS) K Kodak
Alaris &% [TechShop Day| * MEFHF &R
R R VERRAMT - RATER R - & BRI
FTEN AR 5 2 (B 7 75 22 BBy

B ocr+A

ASL organises a luncheon with Hewlett
Packard Enterprise, i-Sprint and Intel Security
to present the security solutions on data
leakage prevention.

ASLE [&] Hewlett Packard Enterprise ~ i-Sprint
K Intel Security & #HFE G - NMARD LEEUE
BIRN L ERARTER

S ocTtt+A

ASL introduces the data integration and
business intelligence solutions at the
“Informatica World Tour 2017".

ASLTA [Informatica World Tour 2017 | /143
BB NBEBTE T HNEMBRA R

Elnov +—B8

ASL is invited to host a forum’s session -
“Build up secure environment for big data
applications” at the “Beijing-Hong Kong
Economic Cooperation Symposium” held in
Beijing.

ASLIEBGE R [« BBLLEA 1EH T
G WERTTER [ RARBERE
BREHERIE | BEE -

Bl Nnov +—A

ASL presents the outstanding managed
services as well as the monitoring and alarm
solutions to delegates at the “BMC Digital
Transformation Day”.

ASLH [BMC Digital Transformation Day | [
EE RN ) ASL B TR AR A R BEE AN
LRERTTER o

Bl DEC +=A

ASL joins force with FireEye, SSH and Pulse
Secure to host a seminar sharing the one-
stop cyber security solutions.
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management

EEREREEASEHN

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
HITES

Mr. WANG Weihang
THMEE

Mr. Wang, aged 50, has been a
Director of the Company since
2009 and was re-designated
from a Non-Executive Director
to an Executive Director in May
2014. Mr. Wang is currently the
chairman and president, and a
director of Beijing Teamsun Technology Co., Ltd. (“Teamsun”)
and the sole director of Teamsun Technology (HK) Limited
("Hong Kong Teamsun”), the Company’s immediate holding
company. Hong Kong Teamsun is a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Teamsun, the Company’s ultimate holding company listed on
the Shanghai Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 600410.SH). Prior
to re-designation as the chairman and president of Teamsun,
Mr. Wang was the general manager of Teamsun, and the vice
chairman and general manager of the first board of directors
of Teamsun. Mr. Wang holds an Executive Master’s Degree in
Business Administration from Tsinghua University in the People’s
Republic of China (“PRC") and a Master’s Degree in Semi-
Conductor Materials and Microelectronic Technology from the
Information and Electronic Engineering Department of Zhejiang
University in the PRC. Mr. Wang was awarded as #F B {E %
£ER ¥ (China Software Industry Outstanding Entrepreneur
Laureate?) and FEEHEZINBAY (China Software
Industry Prestige Award Laureate*) by China Software Industry
Association in 2009. He was also awarded the “Innovation
Outstanding Personality of Chinese Brand Award” in 2011.

FhAE CBELTR B-TTAFEREARAEE IR
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Mr. WANG Yueou
FTEBEE

Chief Executive Officer

TH#EER

Mr. Wang Yueou, aged 42, has
been the Chief Executive Officer
and an Executive Director of the
Company since September 2016
and September 2015 respectively.
Mr. Wang joined the Group in 2011 and was the Financial
Controller, the Chief Financial Officer and the Joint Company
Secretary of the Group. He is currently a director of certain
subsidiaries and associates of the Company (i.e. the directorship
of i-Sprint Holdings Limited and i-Sprint Innovations Pte Ltd)
and the chief financial officer and a director of Carnation
Software Ltd., a subsidiary of Teamsun. Mr. Wang was the chief
financial officer and a board secretary of Guangzhou Headway
Technology Co., Ltd. and the regional finance manager (China)
of Wistron Information Technology & Services Corporation. Mr.
Wang holds a Bachelor's Degree in International Accounting
from Jinan University in the PRC, a Master’s Degree in Business
Administration from University of Wales in the United Kingdom
and an Executive Master’s Degree in Business Administration
from Research Institute of Tsinghua University in the PRC.

FEBLELE  BFU+TZK 2B ZE—R"FAARZT
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
FITES

Mr. LI Wei
ZERE

Chairman

EE

Mr. Li, aged 52, has been appointed
as the Chairman of the Board and
a Non-Executive Director of the
Company since September 2015.
He has been appointed as a director
and the acting chief financial officer of Teamsun since March
2014 and April 2016 respectively. Mr. Li is currently a director of
certain subsidiaries of Teamsun. He was an instructor of Jinling
Institute of Technology, the manager of Jiangsu East Securities
Brokerage Company, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Huatai
Securities Co., Ltd. (formerly known as Jiangsu Securities Co.,
Ltd.), a company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange (Stock
Code: 601688.SH), the general manager of Nanjing Weizhong
Technology Industrial Co., Ltd., the general manager of Nanning
Yinhe South Software Co., Ltd., a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Beihai Yinhe Industry Investment Co., Ltd., a company listed
on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 000806.57),
a director of the East China Representative Office of China
Venture Capital Research Institute and the general manager of
Shanghai Business Department of the International Division of
China Potevio Co., Ltd., in the PRC. Mr. Li holds a Bachelor’s
Degree from East China Normal University in the PRC, a Master’s
Degree from Nanjing Normal University in the PRC and an
Executive Master's Degree in Business Administration from
Cheung Kong Graduate School of Business in the PRC.

Fh4d - BERAT R B-E-RFNABZIALARAE
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Mr. CUI Yong
EBRLE

Mr. Cui, aged 49, has been a Non-
Executive Director of the Company
since September 2015. He joined
Teamsun in March 2005. He has
been appointed as the executive
vice president and the general
manager of the system information
product (plate) division in Teamsun since January 2017 and
January 2015 respectively. During his tenure with Teamsun, Mr.
Cui was the general manager of various divisions, including
telecommunications industry, value-added storage business
division and system product business division. Mr. Cui holds an
Executive Master of Business Administration from Guanghua
School of Management in Peking University in the PRC.

EEE BEN+TAR B2 HFNAEZERAQFI
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management

EEREREBEAEBN

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

BAFITES

Mr. PAN Xinrong

Mr. Pan, aged 63, has been an
Independent Non-Executive Director
of the Company since September
2015. He was an executive director
and the deputy chairman of
Sinopec Kantons Holdings Limited,
a company listed on the Main Board
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (Stock Code:
934) from 2004 to 2007 and was the chief executive officer
of Petro-Cyberworks Information Technology Co., Ltd. from
2006 to 2014. Mr. Pan also held financial positions in various
companies, including China Petroleum & Chemical Corporation
("SINOPEC"), China Petrochemical Corporation, China Eastern
United Petrochemical (Group) Company Limited and SINOPEC
Anging Company (formerly known as China Petrochemical
Anging Petrochemical Plate). Mr. Pan graduated from China
Huazhong University of Science and Technology with a
profession in Quantitative Economics. Mr. Pan was awarded
the “Outstanding Management Award” by China Petroleum
and Chemical Industries Integration of Informatization and
Industrialization in 2011 and the First Prize of SINOPEC
Technology Advancement in 2014,

EEEBESTER AT - AFNABEEERELRFE
VHMITEE - REN_TEMFE_TTLFERBHER
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Mr. DENG Jianxin
WEF KL

Mr. Deng, aged 52, has been an
Independent Non-Executive Director
of the Company since September
2015. He is currently the chairman
of Shenzhen Zhuoyuan Capital
Investment Management Co.,
Ltd., a director of Suzhou Gardens
Construction Industry Corporation, a company listed on the
National Equities Exchange and Quotations System (the New
Third Board*) in the PRC (Stock Code: 833209.0C) and a director
of Shandong Bori Biological Energy Co., Ltd.. Mr. Deng was
a partner of Beijing JD Capital Co., Ltd., a partner of Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu Limited (“Deloitte”), a full-time member of
the 7th and 8th Stock Offering Approval Committee of China
Securities Regulatory Commission and an independent director
of Guangbo Group Stock Co., Ltd., a company listed on the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 002103.SZ). Mr. Deng
was mainly responsible for managing and auditing the listing
of companies as well as the merger and acquisition services in
Deloitte. Mr. Deng holds a Bachelor Degree in Accounting from
Zhongnan University of Economics and Law in the PRC and
an Executive Master’s Degree in Business Administration from
Cheung Kong Graduate School of Business in the PRC.

Hit WERA+T —m BT AFNAEZRTARRARBE
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTO RS (Continued)
BYEHITES W

Ms. YE Fang
Xzt

Ms. Ye, aged 37, has been an
Independent Non-Executive Director
of the Company since November
2015. She joined AlIBright
(Shanghai) Law Offices (“AllBright”)
since 2009, and is currently a senior
partner of AllBright. In addition,
she is a part-time legal counsel of Bonded Area Administration
of China (Shanghai) Pilot Free Trade Zone Administration. Ms.
Ye was an of counsel of Shanghai Jia Chuang Run Hua Law
Office and a teacher of China Executive Leadership Academy
Pudong. Ms. Ye holds a Bachelor’s degree in Law from East
China University of Political Science and Law in the PRC, a
Master’s degree in Law from Tsinghua University in the PRC, a
Master’s degree in Law from William S. Richardson School of
Law, University of Hawaii in the United States of America (“USA")
and a Doctor’s degree in Law from East China University of
Political Science and Law in the PRC. Ms. Ye is a practice lawyer
in the PRC and an honorary member of Hawaii State Bar
Association International Section in the USA.
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Note:

EERSREEAE[/N

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
SREBAER

Mr. NGAN Wai Hing
BEESE

Financial Controller and Company
Secretary

HBHEER A ARE

Mr. Ngan, aged 45, has been
the Company Secretary and
the Financial Controller of the

Company since September 2016.

Mr. Ngan joined the Company in 2009 and was a financial
controller of a subsidiary of the Company. He was also the Joint
Company Secretary of the Company from September 2014 to
August 2016. Mr. Ngan holds a Bachelor’s Degree in Financial
Administration (major in accounting) from University of New
England, Australia and is a certified public accountant of Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a certified
practicing accountant of CPA Australia.

BaL BENTAR B "FLARLEARFLQF
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1. Mr. Wang Yueou resigned as the Joint Company Secretary and the Chief Financial Officer of the Company with effect from 1st September 2016.

# For identification purpose only

MsE

1. TEBELERERADRBEARNWERMBELES -
rEHER)

B-ZE-RFAA-BRER-

Annual Report 2016 &

Automated Systems Holdings Limited & &) &4 &= E AR A A m



ERELRE

The Company recognises the importance of good corporate governance
to the Company’s healthy growth and has devoted considerable efforts to
identifying and formulating corporate governance practices appropriate to the
needs of its business.

The Company’s corporate governance practices are based on the principles
and code provisions as set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the “Code")
set out in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the
“Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange"”). During the year ended 31st December 2016, the Company has
complied with all the code provisions, save and except for code provisions
A.6.7 and E.1.2, details of which are explained below. The Company regularly
monitors and reviews its corporate governance practices to ensure these
continue to meet the increasing stringent regulatory requirements and to
improve its practices.

The Company wishes to highlight the importance of its Board of Directors (the
“Board”) in ensuring effective leadership and control of the Company and
transparency and accountability of all operations.

The key corporate governance principles and practices of the Company are
summarised as follows:

Responsibilities

The Company has formalised and adopted the written terms on the division
of functions reserved to the Board and delegated to the management.

The Board provides leadership and approves strategic policies and plans with
a view to enhancing shareholder interests while the day-to-day operations of
the Company are delegated to the management.

The Board reserves its decisions for all major matters of the Company,
including the approval of long term objectives and strategies, changes to
capital and overall corporate structure, risk management and internal control
systems, material transactions (in particular those which may involve conflicts
of interests), financial information, appointment of Directors and other
significant financial and operational matters.

All Directors have full and timely access to all relevant information as well as
the advice and services from the Company Secretary, with a view to ensuring
that Board procedures and all applicable rules and regulations are followed.

Each Director is normally able to seek independent professional advice in
appropriate circumstances at the Company’s expense, upon making request
to the Board.

m Automated Systems Holdings Limited & &) &&= E AR A A
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Responsibilities (Continued)

The day-to-day management, administration and operations of the Company
are delegated to the Chief Executive Officer and senior management. The
delegated functions and work tasks are periodically reviewed. Approvals
have to be obtained from the Board prior to entering into any significant
transactions by the above-mentioned officers.

The Board has the full support from the Chief Executive Officer and senior
management to discharge its responsibilities.

Composition

The Board has in its composition a balance of skills, experience and diversity
of perspectives necessary for independent decision making and fulfilling its
business needs.

The Board currently comprises seven members, consisting of two Executive
Directors, two Non-Executive Directors and three Independent Non-Executive
Directors. The number of Independent Non-Executive Directors represents
more than one-third of the Board as required by Rule 3.10A of the Listing
Rules.

The Board currently comprises the following members:

Executive Directors
Mr. Wang Weihang
Mr. Wang Yueou (Chief Executive Officer) '

Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Li Wei (Chairman)
Mr. Cui Yong

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Pan Xinrong

Mr. Deng Jianxin

Ms. Ye Fang

Note:

1. Mr. Wang Yueou was re-designated from the Acting Chief Executive Officer to the
Chief Executive Officer of the Company with effect from 1st September 2016.

None of the members of the Board is related to one another.
The biographical details of the Directors are set out in the section headed

"Profile of Directors and Senior Management” on pages 18 to 21 of this
annual report.
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Composition (Continued)

The list of Directors (by category) is also disclosed in all corporate
communications issued by the Company from time to time pursuant to the
Listing Rules and is available on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange.

During the year ended 31st December 2016, the Board at all times met the
requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three
Independent Non-Executive Directors with at least one of whom possessing
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise.

The Company has received from each Independent Non-Executive Director an
annual confirmation of his/her independence pursuant to the requirements
of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all Independent Non-Executive
Directors are independent in accordance with the independence guidelines set
out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

The Non-Executive Directors and Independent Non-Executive Directors bring a
wide range of business and financial expertise, experiences and independent
judgement to the Board. Through active participation in Board meetings and
affairs of the Company, taking the lead in managing issues involving potential
conflicts of interests and serving in Board committees, all Non-Executive
Directors and Independent Non-Executive Directors make various contributions
to the effective direction of the Company.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

The Company has established formal, considered and transparent procedures
for the appointment of Directors.

The Company has adopted the procedures for shareholders to propose a
person for election as a Director of the Company. These procedures are
available and accessible on the Company’s website at http://Awww.asl.com.hk.

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and removal of
Directors are as set out in the Bye-laws of the Company. The Board established
a Nomination Committee to review the structure, size, composition and
diversity of the Board at least annually, identify suitable candidates for the
Board, and to make recommendations on any matters in relation to the
appointment and re-appointment of members of the Board. Appointment of
new Directors is reserved for the Board's approval.
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Appointment and Re-election of Directors (Continued)

The Nomination Committee ensures that the Board comprises members with
a diverse range of skills and experience with the appropriate knowledge
necessary to oversee the business development, strategies, operations,
challenges and opportunities of the Group. The Nomination Committee takes
that person’s skills, qualifications and expected contributions to the Company
into account before making any recommendations to the Board in relation to
the appointment or re-appointment of members of the Board.

Where vacancies on the Board exist, the Board will carry out the selection
process, with the advice provided by the Nomination Committee, by making
reference to the proposed candidates’ skills, experience, professional
knowledge, personal integrity and time commitments as well as the needs of
the Company and other relevant statutory requirements and regulations. An
external recruitment agency may be engaged to carry out the recruitment and
selection process when necessary.

In accordance with the Bye-laws of the Company, at each annual general
meeting of the Company (“AGM") one-third of the Directors for the time
being, or, if their number is not three or a multiple of three, then the number
nearest to but not less than one-third, shall retire from office by rotation,
provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least
once every three years and any new Director appointed to fill a casual vacancy
or as additional Director shall be subject to re-election by shareholders at the
first general meeting after appointment.

Each of the Non-Executive Directors is appointed under a specific term
and they are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at AGM in
accordance with the Bye-laws of the Company.

The Company has formal letters of appointment for all Non-Executive
Directors (including Independent Non-Executive Directors) or service contracts
for Executive Directors setting out the key terms and conditions of their
appointment and the terms of references have set out the work scope of the
Board committees and delegation were made by the Board in respect of the
responsibilities of the Non-Executive Directors (including Independent Non-
Executive Directors) in such Board Committees.

In accordance with the Bye-laws of the Company, Mr. Wang Yueou, Mr. Li
Wei and Mr. Pan Xinrong will retire by rotation at the forthcoming AGM and

being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

The Board recommended the re-appointment of these Directors standing for
re-election at the forthcoming AGM.

The Company’s circular regarding the notice of the forthcoming AGM
contains detailed information of the Directors standing for re-election.
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Training for Directors

Directors keep abreast of responsibilities as a Director of the Company and
of the conduct, business activities and development of the Company. Each
newly-appointed Director receives a comprehensive, formal and tailored
induction on the first occasion of his/her appointment, so as to ensure that
he/she has an appropriate understanding of the business and operations of
the Company and that he/she is fully aware of his/her responsibilities and
obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant regulatory requirements.

The Company is responsible for arranging and funding suitable training
for its Directors. All Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills.
Directors are continually updated on developments in the statutory and
regulatory regime and the business environment to facilitate the discharge of
their responsibilities. Continuing briefing and professional development for
Directors are arranged where necessary.

During the year ended 31st December 2016, the Company had organised a
training session in August 2016 on offshore investments by Hong Kong listed
companies. The training session was conducted by a professional institute

with a presentation and briefing materials. All the Directors have attended the
above training session.

Insurance Cover for Directors

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in respect of legal
action against its Directors to comply with the requirement of the Code.

Attendance Records of Directors and Committee members
Number of Meetings and Directors’ Attendance

The Board has at least four regular meetings a year and holds additional
meetings on other occasions as needed.

During the year ended 31st December 2016, the Board held six meetings
(including four Board meetings and two adjourned meetings).
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Attendance Records of Directors and Committee members

(Continued)

Corporate Governance Report

hEE

Number of Meetings and Directors’ Attendance (Continued) EANEREFLEANE(E)

AWE

BEERZEENBHERER W@

The individual attendance records of each Director at the Board meetings, ®EFREE_T— A "F+_A=+—HIEFE

meetings of Board committees and/or the general meeting of the Company
held during the year ended 31st December 2016 are set out below: SRR A G 2 BRI E &M T

Name of Director

Board and
adjournments

E3ng Ezende

Attendance/Number of Meetings held during the tenure of directorship
RESEDALECETEENH

Remuneration Audit Nomination Management Investment
Committee Committee Committee Committee Committee

HHESS BNZES REZEE EBZEE R&ZEE

Executive Directors HITES
Wang Weihang T#m 4/6 N/A N/A N/A N/A 22
TR TER TEm TER
Wang Yueou TEE 6/6 N/A N/A N/A 0/0 22
TEm TEm TEm
Non-Executive Directors  F#/TEE
Li Wei 8 5/6 0 3/4 0 010 /A
TNER
Cui Yong EB 4f6 N/A N/A N/A 0/0 N/A
TER TR TER A
Independent Non- BUFHTES
Executive Directors
Pan Xinrong e 6/6 22 4/4 22 N/A 212
TEs
Deng Jianxin 2 56 NA 34 0 NA 0
TEm Tam
Ye Fang £S5 6/6 0 44 N/A /A N/A
TER TER TER
None of the meetings set out above was attended by any alternate Director. rFileZBMERENETESHE -

Apart from regular Board meetings, the Chairman of the Board held a HEZZERETHI %i_ =

meeting with the Non-Executive Directors (including the Independent Non-
Executive Directors) without the presence of Executive Directors during the

year ended 31st December 2016.
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Practices and Conduct of Meetings

Regular Board meetings are scheduled in advance to facilitate maximum
attendance of the Directors. Notices of regular Board meetings are served to
all Directors at least 14 days before the meetings. For other Board meetings
and Board committees meetings, reasonable notice is generally given.

Agenda and Board papers together with all appropriate, complete and reliable
information are sent to all Directors at least 3 days (or such other period as
agreed) before each Board meeting or Board committees meeting to keep
the Directors apprised of the latest developments and financial position of
the Company and to enable them to make informed decisions. The Board
and each Director also have separate and independent access to the senior
management whenever necessary.

The management has provided all members of the Board with monthly
updates giving a balanced and understandable assessment of the Company’s
performance, position and prospects in sufficient detail to enable the Board as
a whole and each Director to discharge their duties.

The Company Secretary is responsible to take and keep minutes of all Board
meetings and Board committees meetings. Draft minutes are normally
circulated to Directors for comment within a reasonable time after each
meeting and the final version is open for Directors’ inspection.

According to current Board practice, any material transaction, which involves
a conflict of interest for a substantial shareholder or a Director, will be
considered by the Board and dealt with by a physical board meeting rather
than a written resolution. The Company’s Bye-laws also contain provisions
requiring Directors to abstain from voting and not to be counted in the
quorum at meetings for approving transactions in which such Directors or any
of their associates have a material interest.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The Company fully supports the division of responsibility between the
Chairman of the Board and the Chief Executive Officer to ensure a balance of
power and authority.

The positions of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are held by Mr. Li Wei
and Mr. Wang Yueou respectively. Their respective responsibilities are clearly
defined and set out in writing.

The Chairman provides leadership and is responsible for the effective
functioning of the Board in accordance with good corporate governance
practice. With the support of the senior management, the Chairman is also
responsible for ensuring that the Directors receive adequate, complete and
reliable information in a timely manner and appropriate briefing on issues
arising at Board meetings.

The Chief Executive Officer focuses on implementing objectives, policies
and strategies approved and delegated by the Board. He is in charge of the
Company’s day-to-day management and operations. The Chief Executive
Officer is also responsible for developing strategic plans and formulating
the organisational structure, control systems and internal procedures and
processes for the Board's approval.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy effective since 30th August
2013. All board appointments will be based on meritocracy, and candidates
will be considered based on objective criteria, having due regard for the
benefits of diversity on the Board.

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity perspectives,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
professional experience, skills, knowledge, independence and length of
service. The ultimate decision will be based on merit and contribution that the
selected candidates will bring to the Board.

As at the date of this report, the Board comprises seven Directors. One of
them is female. Three of them are Independent Non-Executive Directors,
thereby promoting critical review and control of the management process.
The Board is also characterised by significant diversity, whether considered in
terms of gender, professional background and skills.
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The Board has established five committees, namely the Remuneration
Committee, Audit Committee, Nomination Committee, Management
Committee and Investment Committee, for overseeing particular aspects of
the Company’s affairs. All Board committees of the Company are established
with defined written terms of reference. The terms of reference of the
Remuneration Committee, Audit Committee and Nomination Committee are
posted on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange and/or are
available to shareholders upon request.

Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to discharge
their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expense.

The Board shall establish other committees for specific purposes from time to
time to facilitate the Company’s operations.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises one Non-Executive
Director and two Independent Non-Executive Directors, namely Mr. Li Wei,
Mr. Pan Xinrong and Ms. Ye Fang. Mr. Pan Xinrong is the chairman of the
Remuneration Committee.

The primary objectives of the Remuneration Committee include making
recommendations on and approving the remuneration policy and structure
and remuneration packages of all Directors and the senior management
and share options matters. The Remuneration Committee is also responsible
for establishing transparent procedures for developing such remuneration
policy and structure to ensure that no Director or any of his/her associates
will participate in deciding his/her own remuneration, which remuneration
will be determined by reference to the performance of the individual and the
Company as well as market practice and conditions.

The Remuneration Committee shall meet at least once a year for reviewing
the remuneration policy and structure and determination of the annual
remuneration packages of all Directors and the senior management and other
related matters. The Remuneration Committee shall consult the Chairman
of the Board and/or the Chief Executive Officer of the Company about these
recommendations on remuneration policy and structure and remuneration
packages.

The Remuneration Committee held two meetings during the year ended
31st December 2016. At these meetings, the Committee reviewed and/
or discussed the Directors’ remuneration package (including their service
agreements) and bonuses payable.
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Remuneration Committee (Continued)

Details of the Directors’ remuneration are set out in Note 14 to the
consolidated financial statements. In addition, pursuant to the code provision
B.1.5, the annual remuneration of a member of the senior management by
band for the year ended 31st December 2016 is set out below:

Remuneration band Number of individual

HK$1,000,001-HK$1,500,000 1

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee currently comprises one Non-Executive Director and
three Independent Non-Executive Directors, namely Mr. Li Wei, Mr. Pan
Xinrong, Mr. Deng Jianxin and Ms. Ye Fang, among them one Independent
Non-Executive Director possess the appropriate professional qualifications
or accounting or related financial management expertise. Mr. Deng Jianxin
is the chairman of the Audit Committee. None of the members of the Audit
Committee is a former partner of the Company’s existing external auditor.

The main duties of the Audit Committee include the following:

(@) to review the financial statements and reports and consider any
significant or unusual items raised by the management, internal auditor
or external auditor before submission to the Board;

(b) to review the relationship with the external auditor with reference to
the work performed by the auditor, its independence, fees and terms
of engagement, and make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment, re-appointment and removal of external auditor;

() to review the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s financial
reporting system, risk management and internal control systems and

associated procedures; and

(d) to report the findings and make recommendations to the Board for
improvements or implementations in relation to the above matters.
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BOARD COM M ITTEES (Continued)

Audit Committee (Continued)
The Audit Committee held four meetings during the year ended 31st
December 2016. At these meetings, the Committee reviewed and/or

discussed the following:

(@) the financial results and reports, financial reporting and compliance
procedures;

(b) the reports from the external auditor, management letters and
management response;

(c) the corporate governance matters;

(d) the matters in relation to the risk management and internal control
systems as well as internal audit function; and

(e) the re-appointment of the external auditor.

The Audit Committee also met the external auditor twice during the year
ended 31st December 2016.

There is no material uncertainty relating to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

There is no disagreement between the Board and the Audit Committee
regarding the selection, appointment, resignation or dismissal of external
auditor.

The Company's annual results for the year ended 31st December 2016 have
been reviewed by the Audit Committee.
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Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee currently comprises one Non-Executive Director
and two Independent Non-Executive Directors, namely Mr. Li Wei, Mr. Pan
Xinrong and Mr. Deng Jianxin. Mr. Li Wei is the chairman of the Nomination
Committee.

The primary functions of the Nomination Committee include the following:

(@) to review the structure, size, composition and diversity (including but not
limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background, professional
experience, skills, knowledge, independence and length of service) of the
Board at least annually and make recommendations on any proposed
changes to the Board to complement the Company’s corporate strategy;

(b) to identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board members
and select or make recommendations to the Board on the selection of
individuals nominated for directorships;

() to access the independence of Independent Non-Executive Directors; and

(d) to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-
appointment of Directors and succession planning for Directors, in
particular the Chairman of the Board and the chief executive.

The Nomination Committee held two meetings during the year ended
31st December 2016. At these meetings, the Committee reviewed and/or
discussed the following:

(@) the structure, size, composition and diversity of the Board;

(b) the independence of Independent Non-Executive Directors;

() to make recommendation to the Board about the proposed re-election
of Directors who were due to retire at the AGM, the re-designation of
Acting Chief Executive Officer to Chief Executive Officer, resignation of
Chief Financial Officer and Joint Company Secretary, and appointment of
Financial Controller; and

(d) the time spent by Non-Executive Directors to fulfill their duties.

A set of nomination procedures for selection of candidates for directorship of
the Company has been adopted by making reference to the skills, experience,
professional knowledge, personal integrity and time commitments of such
individuals, the Company’s needs and other relevant statutory requirements
and regulations.
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BOARD COM M |TTEES (Continued)

Management Committee

The Management Committee currently comprises one Executive Director and
two Non- Executive Directors, namely Mr. Wang Yueou, Mr. Li Wei and Mr.
Cui Yong. Mr. Wang Yueou is the chairman of the Management Committee.

The Management Committee is primarily responsible for managing and
reviewing the Company’s day-to-day operations and financial reporting, and
making recommendations in respect of the objectives and strategies of the
Group. The Management Committee meets as appropriate and when required
to discuss the related issues.

Investment Committee

The Investment Committee currently comprises two Executive Directors and
two Independent Non-Executive Directors, namely Mr. Wang Weihang, Mr.
Wang Yueou, Mr. Pan Xinrong and Mr. Deng Jianxin. Mr. Wang Weihang is
the chairman of the Investment Committee.

The Investment Committee is primarily responsible for identifying and
evaluating existing and potential investment opportunities for the Company,
and making recommendations to the Board. The Investment Committee
meets as and when required to discuss the related issues.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code") as set out in Appendix 10 to
the Listing Rules.

Specific enquiry has been made of all the Directors and the Directors have
confirmed that they have complied with the Model Code throughout the year
ended 31st December 2016.

The Company has also established written guidelines on no less exacting
terms than the Model Code (the “Employees Written Guidelines”) for
securities transactions by employees who are likely to be in possession of
unpublished inside information of the Company.

No incident of non-compliance of the Employees Written Guidelines by the
employees was noted by the Company.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board has delegated the duties and responsibilities in performing
its corporate governance functions to the Audit Committee. The Audit
Committee is responsible for corporate governance functions with the
following duties:

(@) to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on corporate
governance and make recommendations to the Board;

(b) to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

(c) to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(d) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance
manual (if any) applicable to Directors and employees; and

(e) to review the Company’'s compliance with the Code and disclosure in the
Corporate Governance Report.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY IN RESPECT
OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended 31st December 2016.

The Directors are responsible for overseeing the preparation of financial
statements of the Company with a view to ensuring that such financial
statements give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and
that relevant statutory and regulatory requirements and applicable accounting
standards are complied with.

The Board has received from the management explanation and relevant
information which enable the Board to make an informed assessment for
approving the financial statements.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The statement of external auditor of the Company about their reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in the “Independent
Auditor’s Report” on pages 65 to 71 of this annual report.

The remuneration paid and payable to Grant Thornton Hong Kong Limited,
the existing external auditor of the Company, in respect of audit services and
non-audit services for the year ended 31st December 2016 amounted to
HK$1,050,000 and HK$460,000 respectively.
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The main features of the Group's risk management and internal control
systems are to provide a clear governance structure, policies and procedures,
as well as reporting mechanism to facilitate the Group to manage its risks
across business operations.

The Group has established a risk management framework, which consists of
the Board of Directors, the Audit Committee and the senior management.
The Board has evaluated and determined the nature and extent of risks that
shall be taken in achieving the Group’s strategic objectives, and has overseen
the management in the design, implementation and monitoring of the risk
management and internal control systems.

The Group has formulated and adopted Risk Management Policy in providing
direction in identifying, evaluating and managing significant risks. At least on
an annual basis, the senior management identifies risks that would adversely
affect the achievement of the Group’s objectives, and assesses and prioritises
the identified risks according to a set of standardised criteria. Risk mitigation
plans and risk owners are then established for those risks considered to be
significant.

In addition, the Group has engaged an independent professional advisor to
assist the Board and the Audit Committee in ongoing monitoring of internal
control systems of the Group. Deficiencies in the design and implementation
of internal controls are identified and recommendations are proposed
for improvement. Significant internal control deficiencies are reported to
the Audit Committee and the Board on a timely basis to ensure prompt
remediation actions are taken.

Risk management report and internal control report which covered financial,
operational and compliance control for the year ended 31st December 2016,
has submitted for the Audit Committee’s and the Board’s reviews. The Group
has an internal audit function in place to provide an independent appraisal of
the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems in accordance with the Code. The Board had performed
annual review on the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems, including but not limited to the change, since the last
annual review, in nature and extent of significant risk, and the Group’s ability
to respond to changes in its business and external environment; the scope
and quality of management’s ongoing monitoring of risk management and
internal control systems; the extent and frequency of communication with
the Board in relation to monitoring result of risk and internal control review;
significant failures or weaknesses identified and their related implications;
and the effectiveness of the Company’s processes for financial reporting and
Listing Rules compliance. The Board considers the Group’s risk management
and internal control systems are effective. The Board in particular considers
the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience, training
programmes and budget of the Company’s accounting, internal audit and
financial reporting functions.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL (Continued)

The risk management and internal control systems are designed to manage
rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and
can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss.

Procedures and internal controls for the handling and
dissemination of inside information

The Group complies with requirements of Securities & Futures Ordinance
("SFO") and the Listing Rules. The Group discloses inside information to the
public as soon as reasonably practicable unless the information falls within
any of the Safe Harbours as provided in the SFO. Before the information is
fully disclosed to the public, the Group ensures the information is kept strictly
confidential. If the Group believes that the necessary degree of confidentiality
cannot be maintained or that confidentiality may have been breached, the
Group would immediately disclose the information to the public. The Group
is committed to ensure that information contained in announcements are not
false or misleading as to a material fact, or false or misleading through the
omission of a material fact in view of presenting information in a clear and
balanced way, which requires equal disclosure of both positive and negative
facts.

COMMUNICATION WITH
SHAREHOLDERS AND INVESTORS

The Company considers that effective communication with shareholders is
essential for enhancing investor relations and investor understanding of the
Group's business performance and strategies. The Company endeavours to
maintain an on-going dialogue with shareholders and in particular, through
AGMs and other general meetings. The Chairman of the Board, all Executive
Directors, Non-Executive Directors, Independent Non-Executive Directors, and
the Chairmen of all Board committees or their delegate will make themselves
available at each AGM to meet shareholders and answer their enquiries.

The Board has adopted a shareholders’ communication policy setting
out the Company’s procedures in providing the shareholders with clear
communication and easy access to information about the Company.

The 2016 AGM was held on 18th May 2016 (the “2016 AGM"). The notice

of 2016 AGM was sent to shareholders at least 20 clear business days before
the 2016 AGM.
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COMMUNICATION WITH
SHAREHOLDERS AND INVESTORS (continued)

Code provision A.6.7 stipulates that independent non-executive directors and
other non-executive directors should attend general meetings and develop
a balanced understanding of the view of shareholders. One Non-Executive
Director did not attend the 2016 AGM due to other commitments.

Code provision E.1.2 stipulates that the chairman of the Board should attend
the annual general meeting. The Chairman of the Board, Mr. Li Wei, was
unable to attend the 2016 AGM due to other commitments. However, the
chairmen of the Remuneration Committee, Audit Committee, Nomination
Committee, Management Committee and Investment Committee or their
delegate, and the Company's external auditor have attended the 2016 AGM
to answer questions.

To promote effective communication, the Company maintains a website at
http://www.asl.com.hk, where extensive information and updates on the
Company's business developments and operations, financial information,
corporate governance practices and other information are posted.

The Company continues to enhance communication and relationships with
its investors. Designated senior management maintains regular dialogue with
institutional investors and analysts to keep them abreast of the Company'’s
developments. Enquiries from investors are dealt with in an informative and
timely manner.

During the year under review, the Company has not made any changes to
its Memorandum of Association and Bye-laws. An updated version of the
Company’s Memorandum of Association and Bye-laws are available on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

To safeguard shareholder interests and rights, a separate resolution is
proposed for each substantially separate issue at general meetings, including
the election of individual Directors. Save as provided under the Listing Rules,
resolutions put to vote at the general meetings of the Company (other than
procedural matters) are taken by poll and poll results will be posted on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange after the general meetings.

Convening of Special General Meetings on Requisition
by Shareholders

Under Bermuda Companies Act 1981 (the “Companies Act”), shareholders
holding in aggregate of not less than one-tenth (10%) of the paid up capital
of the Company may convene a special general meeting (“SGM") by written
requisition.

BERREREEEM =

TR AL.TIRARTE » MU IFTEE R A M
FRTEERBERRAS  THRRNERLA
REMTHE - —ZERTEFHREMBS - K
BEHE T RFRFAFKE -

STFANEXEEN2IEHRTE EESEERLFIRE
BAFRG EFSFFETELEHREMBLE -
FERBE T —AEREBFTAE - AW - N
ZE8g FERLZET RELET EHZE
g REZBEMEFR HHEEZRE UK
AARINEZBAELFE ST —NEREBEAFK

GUARE R

REBEBWER ARANTHEPE(BiLtA
http://www.asl.com.hk) « E A A GRIAR A A
EBRBEREREE WBER  bEEAEMRRAE
B R 2 FFRE R R o

ARPEENRBIREE BAKER - IEEZ
BRERABGEREBREE RO EHFED
i WS REBRBARTZER - REENE
ASERMER L MR -

CIEBE—F  ARRMEHERAM R AR
WEEE) - AR BEGEERAME A B
AR B KRB A2 P b & B

BRERER

RREBAR MR - AR R E EAER
FH(BEESRERNES) RERAG LREBY
RBE - B ETRIREEIN - RARFBRAK
B LREZABR(EFSERIN BETRR
R MERERRERBERBRASHERBELAR
) Ko B 52 P A vt T,

ERRERBARRERNAE

BEBRE-NN—FRBEETREE]D  #4F
AREAEHETPR 02— (10%) BRI K
RAEHEmBR - BRARBRERIARE ([
RERRE] -

Annual Report 2016 3§



Convening of Special General Meetings on Requisition
by Shareholders (Continued)

The written requisition, duly signed by the shareholders concerned, must state
the purposes of the meeting and must be deposited at the registered office of
the Company.

The Company would take appropriate actions and make necessary
arrangements, and the shareholders concerned would be responsible for the
expenses incurred in giving effect thereto in accordance with the requirements
under Section 74 of the Companies Act once a valid requisition is received.

If the Directors do not within twenty-one days from the date of the deposit
of the requisition proceed duly to convene a SGM, the requisitionists, or any
of them representing more than one half of the total voting rights of all of
them, may themselves convene a SGM, but any SGM so convened shall not
be held after the expiration of three months from the date of deposit of the
requisition.

A SGM so convened by the requisitionists shall be convened in the same
manner, as nearly as possible, as that in which meetings are to be convened
by the Directors.

Procedures for Making Proposals at General Meetings by
Shareholders

The Companies Act allows certain shareholders to make requisition to the
Company to give notice to the shareholders in respect of any resolution which
is intended to be moved at AGM of the Company or circulate a statement in
respect of any proposed resolution or business to be considered at a general
meeting of the Company.

The number of shareholders necessary to put forward such proposal for
consideration at a general meeting of the Company shall be:

(@) either any number of members representing not less than one-twentieth
(5%) of the total voting rights of all the shareholders having at the date

of the requisition a right to vote at the meeting; or

(b) not less than 100 shareholders.
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Procedures for Making Proposals at General Meetings by
Shareholders (Continued)

The requisition specifying the proposal, duly signed by the shareholders
concerned and together with a statement of not more than 1,000 words
with respect to the matter referred to in the proposal, must be deposited at
the registered office of the Company. The Company would take appropriate
actions and make necessary arrangements, and unless the Company
otherwise resolves, the shareholders concerned would be responsible for the
expenses incurred in giving effect thereto in accordance with the requirements
under Sections 79 and 80 of the Companies Act once valid documents are
received.

Putting Forward Enquiries to the Board

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board of the Company, shareholders
may send written enquiries to the Company Secretary who will direct the
enquiries to the Board for handling. The contact details of the Company
Secretary are as follows:

Contact Details

The Company Secretary

Automated Systems Holdings Limited
15th Floor, Topsail Plaza,

11 On Sum Street, Shatin,

New Territories, Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 2601 6998

Fax: (852) 2608 6585

Email: ir@asl.com.hk

For avoidance of doubt, shareholder(s) must deposit and send the original
duly signed written requisition, notice or statement, or enquiry (as the case
may be) to the above address and provide their full name, contact details and
identification in order to give effect thereto. Shareholders’ information may
be disclosed as required by law.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary, a full time employee of the Company, who is
responsible for advising the Board through the Chairman of the Board on
governance matters and facilitates induction and professional development
of Directors. The Company Secretary reports to the Chairman of the Board.
All Directors have access to the advice and services of the Company Secretary
to ensure that Board procedures, all applicable law, rules and regulations are
followed.

As announced by the Company on 25th August 2016, Mr. Wang Yueou (“Mr.
Wang") resigned as the Joint Company Secretary of the Company with effect
from 1st September 2016. Following the resignation of Mr. Wang as the
Joint Company Secretary of the Company, Mr. Ngan Wai Hing (“Mr. Ngan")
remained in office as the sole Company Secretary of the Company.

The Company has complied with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules since Mr. Ngan
has undertaken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training during
the year ended 31st December 2016.

On behalf of the Board

Wang Yueou
Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 21st March 2017
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This Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG") report provides an annual
update of the Group’s corporate social responsibility performance covers the
Group's core businesses in Hong Kong for the year ended 31st December
2016 to comply with the “comply or explain” provisions of the ESG Reporting
Guide in Appendix 27 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “ESG Guide"). The ESG report
should be read in conjunction with the Company’s annual report, in particular
the Corporate Governance Report contained therein.

Since the Group is principally engaged in the delivery of comprehensive one-
stop information technology (“IT") services, no significant levels of pollutants
were discharged into the air or water and no substantial amount of packaging
materials was used during the reporting period. Therefore, disclosures relating
to these aspects, as set forth in the ESG Guide, are not applicable to the
Group and so have not been made.

Environmental Policies and Performance

The Group's Environmental Policy stresses carbon reduction and waste
reduction with the principle of “Reduce, Reuse and Recycle” to promote
better utilization of environmental resources. To further encourage
stakeholder engagement in protecting the environment, the Group is
committed to promoting an environmental-friendly ambience among its
employees.

In the long run, the Company will enhance its energy saving
management in minimizing the usage of lighting, air-conditioning and
electronic appliances and track its energy consumption regularly in the
coming years.

A.1 Emissions’

Our main business being IT services, our environmental impact, on
the whole, is relatively low. Our emissions, energy consumption and
water consumption mainly come from the use of resources in our
offices in Hong Kong. During the year, there was no material non-
compliance with applicable legislation or regulations.

Greenhouse gas (“GHG") emissions
Unless otherwise specified, the environmental data covers the

Group's operation in Hong Kong only. During the year, the total
GHG emissions in 2 respective scopes:

e Scope 1: Direct emissions in terms of fuel consumed by
corporate vehicles

e Scope 2: Indirect emissions in terms of electricity
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE - HERERBRSE

The total GHG emissions and intensity are as follows: BERRBHREREENT :

Issue 2016

=S| —E-RE

Fuel consumed by corporate vehicles Total (litre) 2,200

AR EEEFER ©E(RF)

Purchased Electricity Total (kWh) 2,202,433

BESE we (TR

GHG emissions? for Scopes 1 and 2 Total (tonnes) 1393.4964

BREE 1 REE2REREIR 1w (W)

GHG emissions for Scopes 1 and 2 per floor area Total (tonnes/m?) 0.1531

BEFAEEEEANBRESEE 1 REE2 AR EREBHNR 4 (Mg, F75K)

GHG emissions for Scopes 1 and 2 per employee Total (tonnes/employee) 2.3225

BRETHEE LEE2 NAREREBHN we (W, 8BI)

Notes: Bf5E

1. Due to our business nature, the significant air emissions of the Group 1. HREBMHEER  AEENTERE
are the GHG emissions, arising mainly from the use of electricity and FRAREREEN  T2HAERE
fuels derived from fossil fuels. FEEREIEAE -

2. GHG emissions data is presented in carbon dioxide equivalent and was 2. REREBHRBEBEN_SLREER
based on the reporting requirements of the “Guideline to Account for 5 - WAFBHETIRE LIRREEM
and Report on Greenhouse Gas Emissions and Removals for Buildings BCEEY (B EEXAHAR)H
(Commercial, Residential or Institutional Purposes)” issued by the BE RN ERGR A RE MR EE
Electrical and Mechanical Services Department and the Environmental SIFTEE RS ESFREL

Protection Department in Hong Kong.

BEEMER

Waste Management

HRARBEZEMNBARNEBRME -
AR T E I E B IR R AL S AR AR

For the business of the Company’s main subsidiaries, a standard
policy and procedures for handling damaged components and

materials have been established to ensure all damaged components HBR KRR - AR E TR 5 M pas2
and materials are properly identified and handled. For handling PR RIREER I TR © LRI E AR
hazardous waste produced, the Company has registered as a BEBRRNME - ARAERECEY
Chemical Waste Producer under the Waste Disposal (Chemical RE (LR (—R)RPDEZRRIL

Waste) (General) Regulation and send the waste to specialists for

BEWELE UBEDEEZEFIRE
Bl o R EEERERBRNERR
P -

recycling. There was no material non-compliance with applicable
legislation or regulations during the year.
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During the year, the total hazardous waste and total non-hazardous

R AEENEEERYHREREE

waste produced are as follows: FEEWRENT ¢

Issue 2016
ESE] —E-AN
Hazardous waste (i.e. used computer and server batteries) Total (tonnes) 4
BEEEEY (ANEEKRAREEM) = ()

Non-hazardous waste (i.e. used computer and components) Total (tonnes) 80

mEREEY (ANEEREAMT)

A.2 Use of Resources

1= ()

A2 BFREAH

Energy Consumption RERUHFE

FR - BRREREE BT KERR
HELRERES BRESRRERA
ERAETENEERRERENT -

During the year, the total energy consumption, total energy
consumption per floor area, total energy consumption per employee
and direct energy consumption in terms of electricity are as follows:
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Issue 2016

1HE —E—XRE
Energy consumption Total (kWh) 2,202,443
BT @5t (FRE)

Energy consumption per floor area Total (kWh/m?) 242.0267
FF I AKEEEREIRERE s (FRE / EHK)

Energy consumption per employee Total (kWh/employee) 3,670.7383
BRESIFUERE Wit (TRE/BE)

Water Consumption oK

FR - RFKEBRESF I KEEEERL

During the year, the total water consumption and total water

consumption per floor area are as follows: FKEMT

Issue 2016

1ER —E-XE
Water consumption Total (m?) 327
FEkE HET (S F5K)

Water consumption per floor area (m3/m?) Total (m*/m?) 0.0359

BEAKEmEBEREKE (5K / FHK) 5t (S2TK / FI3K)
FKEIRIFEARE B T EEHES o A
R BB FEK T R A E AR EAE
BREEARE TERRNE °

Water management is not a material area for the Group. Much of
our water consumption is for basic cleaning and sanitation, as well
as certain catering facilities in our offices.
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During the year, the Company adopted the following procedures in
its office to minimizing carbon emission and waste generation:

e Use energy saving light across all office areas

e Utilize electronic communication where applicable such as
e-form system, e-leave, e-memo and e-cards for festival
greetings

e Use high performance and quality of all-in-one “multi-function
printers” that incorporate printer, scanner and copier functions
into single device. This can be share use among teams in order
to reducing a large number of total quantity of different kind
of devices as to minimize power consumption and carbon
footprint as well as maintenance follow up

e Send used toner cartridge to specialist for further recycling
where feasible

e Redeploy office furniture within the company where usable
and suitable to reduce the amount of material going to landfill

e Redeploy computer or notebook within the company where
usable and suitable

e  Reuse or recycle computer parts by the selection from a team
of engineers, for those parts and materials cannot be reuse
by the company will be further sent to specialist for further
recycling

e Send spent battery to specialist for recycling

e Minimise waste wherever feasible

A.3 The Environment and Natural Resources

Although the core business of the Group has remote impact on the
environment and natural resources, as an ongoing commitment to
good corporate social responsibility, we recognize the responsibility
in minimizing the negative environmental impact of our business
operations and investment portfolio, in order to achieve a
sustainable development for generating long-term values to our
stakeholders and community as a whole. We regularly assess the
environmental risks of our business, and adopt preventive measures
as necessary to reduce the risks and ensure the compliance of
relevant laws and regulations.
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Employment and Labour Practices

The Group values its human capital with a belief that its employees are
pivotal to its success in the IT industry. The Group has established a series
of policies and measures regarding employment policy, health and safety,
development and training, labour standards and workplace quality to
provide its employees with a fair and comfortable working environment.

B.1 Employment Policy

The Group has implemented its comprehensive Employment Policy
which comprises recruitment, change of employment in relation to
promotion and transfer, working hours, annual leave entitlement,
maternity and paternity leave, annual salary review through annual
performance appraisal, job-related allowances, insurance schemes,
compensation and termination of employment. The Group stresses
equal opportunities in relation to recruitment or promotion of an
individual, without discrimination against their age, gender, race,
family status, sexual orientation, disability, nationality or region.
There was no material non-compliance with applicable legislation or
regulations during the year.

B.2 Health and Safety

Being committed to maintaining a safe and healthy working
environment for its employees, the Company has established a
safety and health policy. For safety measures, the Administrative
Department of the Company is responsible for monitoring and
reviewing the safety and security management from time to time
and performing regular checking in the entire office to ensure
furniture, fixtures and fittings are well-maintained and replaced
when necessary to avoid unnecessary physical injuries. Regarding
health measures, smoking is prohibited in the entire office premises
including enclosed offices, conference rooms and other open
area while proper light and ventilation are ensured to safeguard
employees’ health. In addition, first aid kits are available at an
easily-accessible location on every floor of the entire office. There
was no non-compliance with legislation or regulations related to
occupational safety and health during the year.

Apart from putting the safety and health measures in place,
safety and health programmes are organised from time to time
by the Human Resources Department of the Company to enrich
employees’ knowledge in the aforesaid area.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Development and Training

The Company understands that training and development is
indispensable for its staff to keep abreast of the latest trend in
IT industry and the dynamic pace in current domestic market. In
light of this, the Company provides regular training, development
programmes and training sponsorship. For the development of
IT staff, the Company promotes an e-Learning platform to hone
their hard and soft skills. For the development of non-IT staff, the
Company encourages department heads to work closely in assessing
areas of training and development for their subordinates to improve
their capabilities and ability in career advancement. Sponsorships
are available to employees who have met certain conditions set
by the Company. During the year, the Group spent approximately
HK$0.7 million on staff training and most of them were spent on
strengthening IT staff's competence and aiding them in obtaining
qualifications.

Labour Standard

With its head office and principal place of business based in Hong
Kong, the Group is confident that the environment where it
operates does not carry high risks of child labour or forced labour.
Meanwhile, the potential employees’ personal particulars are
confirmed during recruitment processes. The Group also ensures
a fair recruitment process and working environment without any
coercive acts. There was no non-compliance with legislation or
regulations related to child labour or forced labour during the year.

Workplace Quality

The Company is concerned about its employees’ quality of life
and promotes a positive work-life balance. During the year, we
organised various events to enhance work-life balance and to
strengthen employee relations such as ASL Fun Day at Hong Kong
Disneyland, Leather Workshop and ASL Christmas BBQ Party. The
Group always makes its best endeavours to strive for developing a
happy and caring working environment for its employees.

Moreover, the Company is committed to build a family-friendly
environment so as to bring its staff to their full potential. During
the year, the Company has implemented a series of measures
to promote a balance between work and family. The Company
provides its employees with marriage leave, compassionate leave
and welcome red envelop to its employees’ newborn babies. The
Company is also proud of having set up a nursing room with
comprehensive facilities and strict privacy in its office to support
its breastfeeding employees. With its best efforts in promoting
a family-friendly working environment, the Company has been
recognised by the Family Council with “Family-Friendly Employers”
and “Awards for Breastfeeding Support” in 2015/16 Family-Friendly
Employers Award Scheme.
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Operating Practices

The Group believes that monitoring and evaluation of the vendors are
important management tools to track the business progress and facilitate
decision making and, in return, the Company could serve the customers
towards their satisfaction through the products and services with the
best service quality. The Group will continue to maintain the vendor
management policy and actively seek room for improvement.

B.5 Supply Chain Management

The Company’s two major subsidiaries, Automated Systems (H.K.)
Limited (“ASLHK") and ELM Computer Technologies Limited
("ELM™), are committed to complying with a vendor management
policy established for ensuring the quality of services offered. The
policy covers the control of vendors, including nomination and
evaluation, selection, monitoring, suspension and blacklisting when
necessary. A list of approved vendors has been created and updated
on an ongoing basis according to procedures clearly stated in the
policy. ASLHK demonstrates our commitment to high standards of
quality in provision of supply chain management services with 1ISO
9001:2015 from Hong Kong Quality Assurance Agency.

During the year, the Group evaluated the top 15 product vendors
for our two major subsidiaries in 2015 in terms of the purchase
amount which equal to 66% of the total product purchase amount.
For service vendors, the Group particularly got the relevant service
delivery team(s) involved in selecting, monitoring and performance
evaluation of service vendors to ensure the quality of services
provided to customers.

In view of increasing environmental concerns in society, the
Company is aware of the importance in managing environmental
and social risks of its supply chain. The top 10 product brands
which ASLHK purchased during the year demonstrated excellent
environmental awareness. The product brands took initiatives in
minimizing their negative operational impacts regarding IT on the
environment and society. The Company will continue to monitor its
supply chain with regard to environmental and social standards.

B.6 Product (Service) Responsibility
Customers’ support has been of paramount importance to the
Group. The Group therefore put strong emphasis on assuring the
quality and reliability of its services.
The Group has implemented its IT Security Policy over a decade

ago for ensuring the confidentiality, integrity and availability
of customers’ security systems, which are set up and followed

m Automated Systems Holdings Limited & &) &&= E AR A A

EEE

AEERREHEFNEENTZEERMN
ERTE  HPEREBEREMNRAE
BE REARERERBEBRACER
FRE - ARBEBEEETHEREER
% WEEERSEASUENZER -

B5 (REHEHE

ARBMAMBAREB R (FE)E
BRAB(EEBBDES]) MR ERKTR
BRARAE ([ ]) BoEsHEnE
BIRE  BRMRHBRBHNER - ZK
RREHHEPNEE  BREAENE
& RHE BUE  BEE - EERBIEAE
PERBIABLENET - M RE
BEREM I BRRIE Fr a2 o (B 5
BURHEHEETEN - BBEHER
BREME S E SR LN R - KR
BERREDESHBEERERERE N
KB 2B IRRFISO 9001:2015 °

FA - AEER T —AFRPIMAM
BRARZETHHBEERERAME
ER66%AERBESROMHERETT
P - MRBHIER T H - REEEH
ERAERBZNEHRA2HEE - &
BRGHERLFGEERE - EmER
A& PR E R -

ENHGHRENETIALE  A2FH
AEREHERETNREIE SRR
ZEEMN - AR A RRFABANA
TAREMMEEEBREMBEORRE
& o ZEEmmE D RIUE R SR
HEMMKREHRELMENEEF
2 o ARRFEFBRRT L ERE
YA (RS o

B.6 En (fRF)EMT
EERNYBEHALEENEEHEEE -
It AEEZERBELRGHEE LA
Fik o
AEEEEHREEMBMEZ2BERE+

FENRBREFPLEAMOKE
M EEUERAGY - ZBEDREA

Annual Report 2016 3§



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

up on the basis of projects by the Company from time to time.
Relevant staff must comply with regulations in relation to physical
security, access control security, data security and network and
communication security, which are all covered in the IT Security
Policy, to protect the customers’ privacy. For redressing security
incidents, such as network or systems software malfunctions, the
Company has adopted a set of reporting and handling procedures,
which are executed by the relevant staff and a Customer Care Unit
(the “Unit”). There was no non-compliance with legislation or
regulations related to the services provided by the Company during
the year.

In addition, the Group has long established a policy with a set of
procedures to handle customers’ feedbacks or complaints in a
professional manner. The Unit reviews the feedbacks or complaints
and coordinates relevant teams to address the concerns. The Unit
will also escalate the feedbacks or complaints to appropriate level(s)
of management if necessary.

Intellectual Property Rights

Regarding intellectual property rights, employees of the Company
are reminded that the Company has exclusive ownership of its
intellectual property while all materials made or compiled by them
in the course of employment is the property of the Company, details
of which are set out in Business and Ethical Code of Conduct of the
Group.

Personal Data Protection

In relation to the customers’ data protection, the Company requires
its staff to handle customers’ data in a strictly confidential manner
to prevent data leakage, details of which are set out in the IT
Security Policy. The staff shall observe and comply with the non-
disclosure agreements made with the Company and the agreements
entered into between the Company and customers from time to
time. Besides, the Group may collect personal data from different
parties through the enquiry box on the Company’s website, from
candidates or employees through recruitment or employment
during the year. A privacy policy statement and the relevant
personal information collection statements have been set out and
uploaded on the Company’s website so that relevant parties were
timely informed before giving their personal information. During
the year, the Company follows the six general principles relating to
data protection as set down by the Hong Kong Privacy Commission.
During the year, there were no confirmed cases or non-compliance
with any rules and regulation of the Group as regards the Personal
Data (Privacy) Ordinance (Cap.486) and Personal Data (Privacy)
(Amendment) Ordinance.
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Quality Assurance

For quality assurance, the quality office of the Group has performed
quality reviews and internal audit functions monitoring the
effectiveness of the corrective actions taken and advised any
risk mitigation plans can be taken for years. The Company’s two
major subsidiaries, ASLHK and ELM, have been confident in their
quality management systems and IT service management system.
Throughout the past years, the two major subsidiaries have been
recognised with the following certifications:

Major Subsidiaries Certification Type of Service Provision
TEMNBARP BE RAAR 5 5
ASLHK ISO 9001:2008 Enterprise IT Services
ECEEES ISO 9001:2008 EEERBIRS
ISO 9001:2015 Supply chain management
services on computer related
products
ISO 9001:2015 EARRIE O B B TR AR
ISO 20000-1:2011 Service desk operations, hosting

services and infrastructure
hardware and system
maintenance services

ISO 20000-1:2011 fRis B 1R1E - sTE RIS R ARG BERLERER

W1 N R IR

mERE

pmEREMNS  ZFR > ARERE
BRI MITE B E R AR E XA E
B PR B A LT HE Bt B0 P BRI A2 A ) BRAN
MEMERF RS - ARBIMEEE
MEAREEEDRS LM EEL S
EEAFLERANEREERRRTM
fBh o BEBFRH ZMEIE2MNEA
R ERIATES :

Awarding Bodies

piEbL 7

Hong Kong Quality
Assurance Agency
HEmERER

Hong Kong Quality
Assurance Agency

ERmERER

Hong Kong Quality
Assurance Agency

ISO/IEC 27001:2013 Information security monitoring service SGS Hong Kong Limited

ISO/IEC 27001:2013 BiL 2 EERY

ELM ISO 9001:2008 IT system integration,
software development,
installation and maintenance
support services

IR ISO 9001:2008 BB RRES - WA
28 M SR RS
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B.7 Anti-corruption

The Company has established an anti-corruption policy and included
in Business and Ethical Code of Conduct of the Group. Employees
must not solicit or accept an advantage as a reward or inducement
for doing any act or showing favour to any person or corporate
without the permission of the Company. Any gifts or souvenirs
offered or received shall be reported and passed to the Company.
Besides the anti-bribery policy, employees are encouraged to
report without fear of reprisal any business malpractices including
questionable accounting and auditing matters. In line with the
Group’s commitment to anti-corruption, a whistle-blower policy
is also place to allow employees to report any malpractice and
misconduct to the Legal Manager of the Company with completed
confidentiality. During the year, there were no confirmed cases of
corruption and non-compliance with any rules and regulation of the
Group as regards anti-corruption such as the Prevention of Bribery
Ordinance.

A competition compliance policy has also been adopted in the
Company’s subsidiaries involving business conducted in Hong Kong,
of which to prohibit any conducts that prevents, restricts or distorts
competition in Hong Kong. Online training workshop is available
on the Company’s intranet to help employees understand the
competition compliance policy and the Competition Ordinance. Any
employees in doubt about the legality of any business activity may
consult the Legal Manager of the Company. Employees are also
encouraged to make a complaint or disclose any potential violations
of such policy in accordance with the Company’s whistle-blower
policy and procedure. During the year, there were no confirmed
cases or non-compliance with any rules and regulation of the Group
as regards the Competition Ordinance.

Community

B.8 Community investment

The Group, as a corporate citizen, makes every effort in giving back
to the community through helping the social vulnerable groups.
The Group has become a Platinum Sponsor of the 30th Annual
Hong Kong 24 Hour Pedal Kart Grand Prix though charitable
donations, which benefitted various organisations such as Hong Chi
Association, Hong Kong Blind Union and Hong Kong Society for the
Protection of Children.
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Over the years, the Company is also committed to promoting
web accessibility to facilitate persons with disabilities access to
online information and services. During the year, the Company has
received a Web Accessibility Recognition Scheme Triple Gold Award
presented by the Office of the Government Chief Information
Officer and the Equal Opportunities Commission in recognition of
the accomplishment in making the Company’s website accessible for
more than four years. Indeed, the Group has helped various public
organisations to meet the web accessibility standards, bringing the
Internet to all segments of the community including person with
disabilities.

Apart from taking the social vulnerable groups into consideration,
the Group is dedicated to developing a social responsibility culture
among its employees. Our core subsidiary, ASLHK, has long been
recognised by the Hong Kong Council of Social Service with “Caring
Company Award” under Caring Company Scheme for seven
consecutive years. The Group organised blood donation day and
continued in building up its volunteer team during the year.
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The Directors present their report and the audited consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31st December 2016.

The Company acts as an investment holding company and provides corporate
management services. The principal activities of its major subsidiaries and
associates are set out in Note 47 and 22, respectively, to the consolidated
financial statements.

The results of the Group for the year ended 31st December 2016 are set out
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and consolidated statement of
comprehensive income on pages 72 and 73 of the annual report respectively.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the year
ended 31st December 2016 (2015: Nil).

The Directors had resolved to recommend a bonus issue (“Bonus Issue”)
of shares of par value HK$0.1 each in the capital of the Company (“Bonus
Share(s)") on the basis of one (1) Bonus Share, credited as fully paid, for every
ten (10) existing shares held by the shareholders of the Company whose
names appeared on the register of members on Monday, 29th May 2017. The
Bonus Issue is conditional upon shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming
annual general meeting, the Listing Committee of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) granting listing of, and permission
to deal in, the Bonus Shares and compliance with the relevant legal
procedures and requirements (if any) under the applicable laws of Bermuda
and the Bye-laws of the Company to effect the Bonus Issue.

For determining the entitlement of the Bonus Shares, the register of members
of the Company will be closed from Wednesday, 24th May 2017 to Monday,
29th May 2017, both days inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares
of the Company will be registered. In order to qualify for the Bonus Shares, all
completed transfer forms accompanied by the relevant share certificates must
be lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor
Tengis Limited at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong
Kong, for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 23rd May 2017.
The share certificates for the Bonus Shares are expected to be despatched to
the qualifying shareholders of the Company on or before Thursday, 8th June
2017.
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EEEHRE

The Company will convene the forthcoming annual general meeting on
Wednesday, 17th May 2017. For determining the entitlement to attend and
vote at the forthcoming annual general meeting, the register of members of
the Company will be closed from Friday, 12th May 2017 to Wednesday, 17th
May 2017, both days inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares
of the Company will be registered. In order to determine the entitlement to
attend and vote at the forthcoming annual general meeting, all completed
transfer forms accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged
with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Tengis
Limited, at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong,
for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Thursday, 11th May 2017.

A fair review of the Group’s business during the year, a description of the
principal risks and uncertainties facing, particulars of important events
affecting the Group that have occurred since the end of the financial year
2016 and an indication of likely future development in the Group’s business
as required by schedule 5 of the Companies Ordinance (Cap.622) are set out
in the “Chairman’s Statement”, “Chief Executive Officer's Statement” and
Note 48 to the consolidated financial statements on pages 6 to 14 and 177
to 179 of the annual report, respectively. For the financial key performance
indicators for an understanding of the development, performance or position
of the Group’s business, it can also be found under the same sections and the
financial summary on page 5 of the annual report.

In addition, discussion on the Group’s environmental policies and
performance, relationships with the Group’s key stakeholders as well as
compliance with relevant laws and regulations which have significant impact
on the Company are set out in the “Environmental, Social and Governance
Report” on pages 42 to 52 respectively.

During the year, the Group was not aware of any non-compliance with any
relevant laws and regulations that had a significant impact on it.

To achieve the Company’s vision of becoming the most competitive entity in
Asia information technology (“IT") sector, strengthening business practices in
environmental protection and corporate social responsibilities are always an

integral part of the Group's corporate business strategy.

Movements in the reserves of the Group during the year ended 31st
December 2016 are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity on pages 76 to 77 of the annual report.
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RESERVES (Continued)

As at 31st December 2016, the Group’s special reserve and retained earnings
totaled approximately HK$372,655,000 (2015: HK$346,959,000).

The Company’s reserves are available for distribution to the shareholders as at
31st December 2016 included special reserve and retained earnings totaling
approximately HK$95,075,000 (2015: HK$96,203,000).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

During the year ended 31st December 2016, the Group spent approximately
HK$4,507,000 (2015: HK$9,624,000) on property, plant and equipment.

Details of these and other movements during the year ended 31st December
2016 in property, plant and equipment of the Group are set out in Note 19 to
the consolidated financial statements.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

The percentage of the Group’s purchases and sales attributable to major
suppliers and customers are as follows:

During the year ended 31st December 2016, the five largest customers and
single largest customer of the Group accounted for approximately 24.1% and
7.1% of the Group’s revenue respectively. The five largest suppliers and single
largest supplier of the Group accounted for approximately 34.2% and 9.1%
of the Group’s purchases respectively.

At no time during the year ended 31st December 2016 did a Director, an
associate of a Director or a shareholder of the Company (which to the
knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the number of the
Company’s issued shares) had an interest in any of the Group’s five largest
customers or suppliers.

SHARE CAPITAL

Movements during the year ended 31st December 2016 in share capital of
the Company are set out in Note 32 to the consolidated financial statements.

Annual Report 2016 &

Directors’ Report

EEEHRE

B o

RZZE—A"F+-A=1+—H ' AEEZH3IFH
HERIREEF A £49372,655,0008 L (—E—F
£F 1 346,959,000 7T) °

RZZE-—RE+ZA=+—0 ARFAAHIIK

FTREZHEEESIFEEMEBAETEGEY
95,075,000/ 0(—Z —F4F : 96,203,000/87T) °

Y% - BB RRE

HE_Z—XF+-_A=+—HLFER  £&
BEME - BB REHEFTEZM T 44,507,000
B (-Z—HRF 1 9,624,000/87T) °

i REE=F
HibEAAREBEYE - W5 L&
BRERE I S RERMIEE 19 ©

TEHREBREFR

TEHERREPHAREBERNHER
ot

—RE+=H EJr*EM:EF*‘W
BEBFE

HE-Z—XE+-_A=+t—HLFER kB
AARBFREREP ZWAD MG AEBmBIA
£9241% K% 7.1% « AR ER R AREER 2
FEERED R AEEERAEREL34.2% % 9.1% °

HE-Z—XF+-A=+—RHLFERN  £AQ
RIZES BERZHEATIRR(BESHAE
B5% A EARRBEITRODEBES) AEBEARE
EEz AREFSEERZFIZE o

EEIN

ARRZBRARBE-_T—RE+-_A=+—H
LIFFEARZ BHENGRE B RRMTE32 -

Automated Systems Holdings Limited & &) &4 &= E AR A A



Directors’ Report
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The Directors of the Company during the year ended 31st December 2016
and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors
Wang Weihang
Wang Yueou

Non-Executive Directors
Li Wei
Cui Yong

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Pan Xinrong

Deng Jianxin

Ye Fang

In accordance with Bye-law 99 of the Company, Mr. Wang Yueou, Mr. Li Wei,
Mr. Pan Xinrong will retire by rotation at the forthcoming annual general
meeting and, be eligible, offer himself for election.

As at the date of this report, each of the Directors has entered into either a
service contract or a letter of appointment with the Company. All Directors
are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election in accordance with the
Bye-laws of the Company.

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company or its subsidiaries
which is not determinable by the Group within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

The Company has received, from each of the Independent Non-Executive
Directors, an annual confirmation of his/her independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on
the Stock Exchange. The Company considers all of the Independent Non-
Executive Directors are independent.
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UPDATE ON DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, the changes in information of
Directors of the Company are set out below:

Details of changes

Mr. Deng Jianxin resigned as an independent director of Guangbo Group
Stock Co., Ltd., a company listed on Shenzhen Stock Exchange (Stock Code:
002103.52) with effect from February 2017.

Mr. Cui Yong was re-designated from the vice president to the executive
vice president of Beijing Teamsun Technology Co., Ltd. (“Teamsun”), the
Company’s ultimate holding company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange
(Stock Code: 600410.SH), since January 2017.

Mr. Li Wei was appointed as the acting chief financial officer of Teamsun
since April 2016. Mr. Li further entered into a secondment agreement with
the Company for a term of one year with effect from 1st July 2016. The
annual director’s fee payable to Mr. Li is HK$55,000 for serving on the Board,
HK$22,000 for serving as the Chairman of the Board and HK$480,000
for secondment of monitoring the Group’s operation temporarily, which is
determined with reference to Mr. Li's duties and responsibilities.

Mr. Wang Yueou (“Mr. Wang”) was re-designated from the Acting Chief
Executive Officer to the Chief Executive Officer of the Company and resigned
as the Chief Financial Officer and the Joint Company Secretary of the
Company with effect from 1st September 2016. He entered into a new service
contract with the Company for a term of three years with effect from 1st
September 2016, in replacement of his original service contract dated 17th
September 2015 with the Company. His directorship is subject to retirement
by rotation and re-election at annual general meetings of the Company in
accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws. In accordance with the new service
contract, Mr. Wang is entitled to a basic annual salary of HK$1,539,000,
a performance-related incentive payment calculated based on measurable
performance contribution of the Group and other benefits in kind. Mr. Wang’s
remuneration was determined with reference to his duties and responsibilities,
experience, performance and market conditions.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

No transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance to which the
Company, or any of its holding companies or fellow subsidiaries or subsidiaries
was a party and in which a Director of the Company or his or her connected
entity had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the
end of the year ended 31st December 2016 or at any time during the year
ended 31st December 2016.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING EERHBREK2#R

BUSINESS

Pursuant to Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules, during the year ended 31st December ~ 1RIE ETARAIE 810K TE - REE T —~F

2016, the following Directors were considered to have interests in the businesses
which competed or were likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the
businesses of the Group, particulars of which are set out below:

Name of the entities which were
considered to compete or likely
to compete with the businesses

TTA=+—BIEFEAR U NEERAREEX
TR BN 5 [ SE TS IR AR 3 T Bl P AR AN SR [BI 36 75

BRESF 2EGPRARD - HFHEEIT -

Description of businesses of the
entities which were considered to
compete or likely to compete with

of the Group the businesses of the Group Nature of Director's

Name of Director BRREREEEEBRR WRREREEERBRS TR interest in the entities

E=py AHERGE 2 ERARE BRAEE BB EBHET ESpRZSER EENE

Wang Weihang Teamsun IT product service, application Chairman and president,
software development, value-added and director
distribution and system integration

T#Mm ERRK BARRERRS EARASMHRE .  EERREUANER
BENHEIERES

Teamsun Technology (HK) Limited Window company of Teamsun in Sole director
("Hong Kong Teamsun”) Hong Kong and mainly provides
administrative support to the clients
of Teamsun in the PRC and Hong Kong
ERBRARHR (FE) BRAF ERAREERRERR  FEMEBR E—EF
([BAREBRK ) W2 BERAE REBREITHIIE
Certain subsidiaries of Teamsun [T related Director
EBRKZETHERR TR E MR %
Wang Yueou Carnation Software Ltd. T related Director
(a subsidiary of Teamsun)
TeR BINAMHERRHARA AR L
(EBRHHMBRAT)

Li Wei Teamsun IT product service, application Director and acting chief
software development, value-added financial officer
distribution and system integration

e ZEBRK BEAMRERRY  EREAEMHEE . BRRAERBER
BENHERERES

Certain subsidiaries of Teamsun T related Director
EBRHETHBEAR MR R =

Cui Yong Teamsun IT product service, application Executive vice president and
software development, value-added general manager of the
distribution and system integration system information product

(plate) division
ER EBRK BEAMRERRS  ERREASMEEE . ATRLEARERESER

As the Board is independent from the board of directors of the aforesaid
companies, and as none of the above Directors controls the Board, the Group

BENELEZRES

(fRiR) AR

HREBEFESGBUN LARRIZEFEMALES
PEZHEEE  AREABYR LERARZE

is capable of carrying on its business independently of, and at arm’s length AR FERMF A RRELZERS -
from, the businesses of the aforesaid companies.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES'
INTERESTS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES

As at 31st December 2016, the interests or short positions of the Directors
and chief executives of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company and any of its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO"))
which (a) were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short
positions which they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions
of the SFO); or (b) were recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 352 of the SFO; or (c) were required, pursuant to the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model

Directors’ Report
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EERESTHRAEZKRG
KREER G 2 Em

RZZE—ARF+ZA=1+—H ' EFERARA&
BITIRA BRARA R REFEEREE (ERRE
HNEREGO ([EH RGN ]) EXVED) 2
7 RGN REREEREE @ BEELSLEE

MWJ%XV*B%7&8’\* BAE AR E LB
ZIERLAR (BERIEES RIS EN 2 255
X?EMEX Wiﬁ%ﬁﬁﬂé KB H(b)IRIE
BHELBEEHEIREARAATHETZERT
AT sk B ROK R  S(ORIE ETEITAE
FHRITESHRXHWIZESFA(MZESFRI]) B

Code”), to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange (“Directors’ AR AI MRz EZSAR ([EERESTTH
and Chief Executives’ Interests in Shares and Underlying Shares”), were as A B2 &7 RABEEMRMD 2 = DT -
follows:
(a) Shares (F) K&
Approximate
Personal Family Corporate percentage of
Name of company Director interests interests interests Other Total shareholding
NEER Bz AR FER DRER Hits #xt  RESORIL
Teamsun, the ultimate holding ~ Wang Weihang 91,913,216 - - - 91,913,216 8.32%
company of the Company ThH
ERERN - AREZ Li Wei 240,520 - - - 240,520 0.02%
HEERAE 7R
(b) Underlying shares (Z) +rEEERD
Approximate
Personal Family Corporate percentage of
Name of company Director interests interests interests Other Total shareholding
NEER Bz fEAES iR DERE Hit &  RESOEIN
Teamsun Li Wei 196,000 - - - 196,000 0.02%
EBERN TR
Cui Yong 245,000 - - - 245,000 0.02%
EE
Note: P 5%
1. Restricted shares of Teamsun may be unlocked and traded on the Shanghai 1. ARIRERSRAE —HIRRBESEATE] - RS RAR

Stock Exchange after unlocking conditions are met pursuant to Teamsun'’s second
phase of equity incentive plan, details of which were disclosed in Teamsun’s
announcements dated 27th May 2015 and 14th July 2015.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31st December 2016, none of the Directors and
the chief executives of the Company had any Directors’ Interests in Shares and
Underlying Shares.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

A. The Old Share Option Scheme

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Old Share Option
Scheme”) on 8th August 2002 for the purpose of providing incentives
and rewards to any employee and/or Director of the Company or any
of its subsidiaries. The Old Share Option Scheme expired on 7th August
2012. As a result, the Company can no longer grant any further share
options under the Old Share Option Scheme. However, all share options
granted prior to 7th August 2012 will remain in full force and effect.
Details of the Old Share Option Scheme are set out in Note 38 to the
consolidated financial statements.

R E
A BERETE

ARRRZEZF \ANBRGBRE
3 ([ERBRERTE]) - EEARARHMEM
H B AR 2 (Ef{E & K& =R
R - EEREFIR _Z-—FNAL
BREWR - Bt - KRR SBREERKE
FELE— SR O EMBEEE - AT - RZF
—ZFN\ALARDRE ZAE B’
REBTREHRUA - BBRRET 228
BHEHN AT BRI 38 -

The following table discloses movements in the Company’s share options RREZBRERFAN 2 ZEHIT -
during the year:
Number of shares to be issued upon exercise of share options
IMIRBRERARTZIRE
Granted Exercised Lapsed Cancelled Adjusted At 31st
At 1st during during during during during December Date Adjusted
January 2016 the year the year the year the year the year 2016 ofgrant  Exercise Exercise
Participants RZB-RF REE REE REE REE REE R-B-~§  RiHE period price
8% -R-A R WITE REX Wi w#E t-A=t-B  RERE RS &
(Note 2) (Note 1) (Note 1)
(Fz2) (FizE1) (RizE1)
HKS
BT
Other employees 360,000 - - - - 36,000 396000 1932012 1932013t0% 099
AfblER 183.2022
590,000 - (150,000) (363,000) - 44,000 121,000 252012 252013t0F 1.02
1.5.2022
Total 950,000 - (150,000) (363,000) - 80,000 517,000
GES
Notes: Mk

1. The number of outstanding share options and exercise price were adjusted as
a result of the bonus issue of shares of the Company on 15th June 2016, the
details of which are disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 15th
June 2016.

2. No Director held any share options.

3. All of the above options were vested equally on each of the first, second and
third anniversaries of the date of grant.

4. The weighted average closing price of the shares of the Company immediately
before the date on which the options were exercised was HK$1.40.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued)

B. The New Share Option Scheme

The Company adopted a new share option scheme (the “New Share
Option Scheme”) at its special general meeting on 13th March 2017.
Under the New Share Option Scheme, the Directors may grant options
to any eligible employee, executive or officer including directors of the
Company and its subsidiaries, to subscribe for shares in the Company.
The total number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of
all options to be granted under the New Share Option Scheme and
any other share option schemes of the Company (if any) shall not in
aggregate exceed 10% of the total number of shares of the Company
in issue as at 13th March 2017, the date of approval of the adoption of
the New Share Option Scheme. Unless approved by the shareholders of
the Company, the total number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted to each eligible participant (including
both exercised and outstanding options) in any 12-month period must
not exceed 1% of the total number of shares of the Company in issue.
Options granted must be taken up within 28 days of the date of offer,
upon payment of HK$1 as consideration per grant The Board may at
its absolute discretion impose any minimum period for which an option
must be held before it can be exercised and/or any performance targets
which must be achieved by the eligible participant before the option can
be exercised. The period during which an option may be exercised will
be determined by the Directors at its absolute discretion, save that no
option may be exercised more than 10 years after it has been granted.
The exercise price is determined by the Board, and shall be at least the
higher of (a) the closing price of the shares on the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotation sheets on the date an offer is made; (b) the average of the
closing prices of the shares on the Stock Exchange for the five business
days immediately preceding the date an offer is made; and (c) the
nominal value of a share. As at the date of this report, no options have
been granted under the New Share Option Scheme.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

Other than as disclosed in the sections headed “Directors’ and Chief
Executives’ Interests in Shares and Underlying Shares” and “Share Option
Schemes” above, at no time during the year ended 31st December 2016
was the Company, or any of its holding companies or fellow subsidiaries
or subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors of the
Company or their connected entities to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate.
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CONNECTED AND RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31st December 2016, none of the related party
transactions entered into by the Group set out in the section headed “Related
Party Transactions” in Note 46 to the consolidated financial statements
constitutes connected transaction or continuing connected transaction which
is required to be disclosed under the Listing Rules. The Directors confirm that
the Company has complied with the disclosure requirements in accordance

with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31st December 2016, so far as was known to the Directors and chief
executives of the Company, the following person (other than Directors or
chief executives of the Company) had interests or short positions in the shares
or underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company and the Stock Exchange under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3
of Part XV of the SFO or were recorded in the register of interests required to
be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO:

RRE-F—~ET- A=+ BLEEREHR

R A M RENI 46 BHEA LR S | —Hr0A
SEBDEA L 2 HEAARE R T AR
MBS HIHEBER S - EFRR - AQT
BRI EARAIE 14A BB PHBRT -

FERR

R-ZE—ARE+-A=+—8 RESERERAAF
BRTBRABA  EEHARFEETTHRAR
LASNE AL » RARB ZRH AR D TS
RIEFEHFREEEOIEXVEE 2 K35 IHE
AR NN ) B B X BT 8 7R sl AR B 38 2 Kk B 115
FIB6BEARNBETHEF 2 ELMATR 2
ORBIAT

Number of ordinary
shares of the Company held

ATBEZETERRAHE Percentage of

Direct Deemed issued share capital

Name of shareholder Nature interest interest IHBITRAZ

REREH HE HiEEn WRBER R

Hong Kong Teamsun Long Position 229,672,295 - 65.47%
EREBRK Ha

Teamsun Long Position - 229,672,295 65.47%
R RK He

Note: B3 :

1. Teamsun was interested in the entire issued share capital of Hong Kong Teamsun
and was therefore deemed to be interested in the 229,672,295 shares in which
Hong Kong Teamsun was interested.

Save as mentioned above, as at 31st December 2016, there was no other
person (other than the Directors or chief executives of the Company) who had
interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Company
which would fall to be disclosed to the Company or the Stock Exchange
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or, which were
recorded in the register of interest required to be kept by the Company under
Section 336 of the SFO.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31st December 2016, neither the Company nor any
of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-laws of the
Company, or the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the Company to offer
new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company has complied with the Corporate Governance Code (the
“Code") set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules throughout the year
ended 31st December 2016, except as noted below:

(@) with respect to Code provision A.6.7, one Non-Executive Director did not
attend the annual general meeting of the Company held on 18th May
2016 (the “2016 AGM") due to other commitments; and

(b) with respect to Code provision E.1.2, Mr. Li Wei, the Chairman of the
Board, was unable to attend the 2016 AGM due to other commitments.

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10 of
the Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiry of all Directors, all Directors
confirmed they have complied with the required standard set out in the
Model Code during the year ended 31st December 2016.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the Directors, the Directors confirmed that the Company has
maintained a sufficient public float throughout the year ended 31st December
2016.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

As permitted by the Bye-laws of the Company, a director of the Company
may be indemnified out of the Company’s assets against any liability incurred
by the director, to the extent permitted by Bermuda law. Such permitted
indemnity provision has been in force during the year and is currently in force
at the time of approval of this report.

The Company has also taken out and maintained directors’ and officers’
liability insurance during the year, which provides appropriate cover for certain
legal actions brought against its directors and officers.

As permitted by the articles of association of the Company’s subsidiaries
in Hong Kong (“Hong Kong Subsidiaries”), a director or a former director
of the Hong Kong Subsidiaries may be indemnified out of the Hong Kong
Subsidiaries’ assets against any liability incurred by the director to a person
other than the Hong Kong Subsidiaries or an associated company of the Hong
Kong Subsidiaries, to the extent permitted by law. Such permitted indemnity
provision is currently in force at the time of approval of this report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee met four times during the year ended 31st December
2016. During the meetings, the Audit Committee reviewed with the
management accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group
including the review of the annual results and interim results, and discussed
various auditing, financial reporting and internal control matters.

AUDITOR

A resolution will be tabled in the forthcoming annual general meeting to re-
appoint Grant Thornton Hong Kong Limited as Auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Wang Yueou
Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 21st March 2017
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Independent Auditor’s Report

~a‘ GrantThornton
- BE

To the members of Automated Systems Holdings Limited
BERGEEERAR

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Automated Systems
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”)
set out on pages 72 to 179, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31st December 2016, the consolidated statement
of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement
of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31st December 2016,
and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in compliance with
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B2 AR

RERELEE

BAREZEAERERMNERHE - RAHA
HHSEAMBERENEZRREENFTR - %F
EZHRRARMECERR S M BIRR L AR
BB RRETRIZE - BRM T EHZEEAR
HEBHER -

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key Audit Matters
BERERSE

Impairment assessment of interests in associates

B N Rl RS Z W E T

Refer to notes 3(h) (Significant Accounting Policies), 4(b)(iii)
(Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements) and 22 (Notes)
to the consolidated financial statements
ZIBMATE I T IRAMN T 3(0) (EZ B TR ) ~ 4b)ii) (EX
ZaT1GET R AL KX 22 (H17T)

Interests in associates included the Group's 35.42% equity
interest in i-Sprint Holdings Limited (“i-Sprint”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively, “i-Sprint Group”). As at 31st December
2016, the carrying amount of interests in i-Sprint Group was
approximately HK$52,504,000.

REE QA= BIE B % B Ri-Sprint Holdings Limited
(Ti-Sprint)) K EC B & 2 &) (4278 4 [i-Sprint 5 1) #935.42 %
i - RZF—ARFTZA=+—H ' Ri-Sprint R B 8RR
HE{E#) 452,504,000 7T °

i-Sprint Group’s recorded loss in the current and prior years
indicated an impairment trigger existed and accordingly
management assessed the carrying value of the Group's
interests in i-Sprint.

-Sprint EENAFE MBEFEHSEE
R B EREE

RPAFHERED
BB i-Sprint R EREE ©

The recoverable amount for the business, which was a key
determinant of the recoverable value of the investment, was
based on a discounted cash flow model. Key assumptions
within this model include estimates of growth rate and discount
rate with reference to the available market information and
recent shares issued.
ZEBHAWESERETRESENEEZREAR) I
URRETERLAEN - ZEUNTEBRRBEHERER
BRI KA (5T - WA R BS R TIS AR KT BEITORG #2
e

How the Key Audit Matters were addressed in our audit

EMHECRNMRERREEREE

Our audit procedures to assess impairment of interests in
associates included the following:

Bt e AR R 2R EETHNEZIZFBEAT
&IF :

e assessed the modelling methodologies for compliance with
the requirements of HKFRS.
AHEREN AR BN A B BUBRELRNRTE -

e tested the mathematical accuracy of the cash flow model
used to support the recoverable amount.
AHBARAERWE SR R RERIHLER -

e compared future cash flow forecasts from i-Sprint Group
management to their latest internal board approved plans
and publicly available information where it existed.

i i-Sprint R B ERBHARRERENTAYRELEES
BER ST ARG B R AR AIFE S (85 ) 1T °

e assessed the reasonableness of the discount rate and
growth rate used and determined that they were within
a range of independent derived data and the model was
not sensitive to reasonably possible changes in these
assumptions.
FHEPTERABRIR R MR R EN S IR - WHETE KRN EL
FRBIBENHBERN - BZEAEZEREMN SR
TR -

We satisfied ourselves that the assumptions used to determine
the recoverable amount of the investment were reasonable.
BPEH - AREEREATWESHENBRERBSIE o
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Annual Report 2016 3§



KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key Audit Matters
BERERSE

Impairment assessment of interests in associates

B N R RS 2 W E R

We specifically focused on the assessment given the
judgemental nature of the future cash flow forecasts and
therefore considered as a key audit matter.

HMEZETAMEERARRRSRERABNHENEE -
WAELF SRS E LRI

Provision for customers’ claim

BEFRERE

Refer to notes 3(q) (Significant Accounting Policies), 4(b)(iv)
(Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements) and 34 and 44
(Notes) to the consolidated financial statements

ZIBMGFE R BN T 3(q) (EEEFTEE) ~ 4b)iv) (BEX
BET1GE RAEF) X 34 J 44 (ff15T)

The Group is involved in claims incidental to the ordinary
course of business. For the various customer claims identified,
significant judgement is involved in the determination of the
required provision amount, if any, and it is inherently subjective
due to the range of potential outcomes and the uncertainty
around its resolution and therefore considered as a key audit
matter.

EEENEREBBIZETESRE - EHFINSEEFPHE
mE - BEMHNRESE(WNE) P RERFE - BRRNEE
ERZEREBRAFENEEMN - HEEFHEME - RitdA
BARERZEIR -

As at 31st December 2016, provision for customers’ claim
of approximately HK$9,630,000 represented management’s
best estimates of the amounts likely to be required to settle
these matters, and is included within the balance of other
payables and accruals and classified as current liabilities in the
consolidated statement of financial position.
RZZ—RE+ZA=+—0 TP RERE# 9,630,000
T DEBREHNEA LR EIEA AT EN S KEME
e TN E A B FUIE R BT B AR MR AR - WHRERE B
BARAKRPIBRBEE -

Independent Auditor’s Report
B 2B AN RS

FEREXEE e

How the Key Audit Matters were addressed in our audit

EMHERNAEERREERER

Our audit procedures on provision for customers’ claim included
the following:

B EPNREBERINERREFEENTRIEA

e challenged the key assumptions and critical judgement
made by the management which impacted their estimations
of the provisions required based on our assessment of
the historical accuracy of the Group’s estimates and
assumptions in previous periods. Consideration was also
given to judgements previously made by the customer and
any relevant opinions given by third party advisors.
RERMYE ERERBERBAERT RRR 2 EREIT
EITHRE - WEREFLEREAA B ENERIRR
MEAABREEE - KPS ZBE S AP ER HEf
ARE=FEROERER -
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BYZEAHRE

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key Audit Matters
BERERSE

Provision for customers’ claim

BEERERE

OTHER INFORMATION

FEREXEE e

How the Key Audit Matters were addressed in our audit

EMHELNMEERRERER

assessed the adequacy of the Group’s provisions for
potential exposure to each customers’ claim by discussing
with management to understand the claims and reviewing
correspondence with the customer to understand the
relevant associated risks.

BREERENW  BRELETER IEFETFHNE
EUABRERERR - #imaTh EEEUIETPNEEE
R AT R HAE B

discussed the status and potential exposures in respect of
significant claims with the Group’s internal legal counsel
and also obtained correspondence regarding the progress
of claims from the Group’s external legal counsel, including
their views on the likely outcome of each claim and the
magnitude of potential exposure.

i E‘i@W*Kifi%ﬁf‘ﬁ?iiﬁEE,%EﬁHX/R&/@EH
Tatem - WE SEEIINDEEEMSRRESETE
e E? FREHERRRAEHRNERAEER

challenged management’s estimates using information
and evidence that we gathered, as noted above, to assess
whether or not there was an indication of management bias.
HPMA LA RN ER RE R TR BT IREE
5 MRS FEEEERENDR

We concluded management’s estimation to be consistent with
the available information.

RREEENGHEATRENEN % -

H &R

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information =~ ERZAXEMEREE - HMbERBEAREZ
comprises all the information in the 2016 annual report of the Company, ZE— NFEFRFATHMABER - ETBIERE Y
but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s — #5R& KIZEEMHE -

report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other ~ HM¥E#ARE M IEHENE R L NREHMER -
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. PRI T~ &t H b &R B RERF X OZB L

N
afg ©

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our ~ REMEGEMBBRENEZME - BAIWEE
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider EMEEMEEL @ EMEREMENZSEES
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated ~ B Wz kR MIE R ZBIE R BB ERIFESE
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise — AR + SAFIEE ASE AR o

appears to be materially misstated.

m Automated Systems Holdings Limited & &) & 4% E AR A A
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OTHER INFORMATION (continued)

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued
by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but
to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging their
responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with Section 90 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BYZEAHRE

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by
the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

BB BT B A S MRk
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

We communicate with Audit Committee regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

We also provide Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with Audit Committee, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Grant Thornton Hong Kong Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Level 12

28 Hennessy Road

Wanchai

Hong Kong

21st March 2017

Shaw Chi Kit
Practising Certificate No.: P04834
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

HEEER

For the year ended 31st December 2016 BE T — X "F+_A=+—HILtFE

2016 2015
—B—REF —T—hF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FTHET FHT
Revenue KA 7 1,521,985 1,506,041
Cost of goods sold SHERK AR (742,342) (748,682)
Cost of services rendered RUEARE 2 AR (612,958) (613,803)
Other income EAbA 8 5,797 4,537
Other (loss)/gain, net HF (E518),Was 9 (3,874) 2,629
Fair value gain on revaluation of BEREMEZ
investment properties A BEEKE 20 400 =
Selling expenses HEEH (70,157) (73,389)
Administrative expenses 1THEH (51,085) (43,314)
Finance income EARSIA 10 545 478
Finance costs B TSR AR 11 (793) (1,005)
Share of results of associates FEARHR &N RIZAE 22 (8,540) (5,914)
Profit before income tax BRAT S BL A= R 12 38,978 27,578
Income tax expense FriSHim s 16 (10,181) (7,874)
Profit for the year attributable to EABRREFEA
equity holders of the Company iR ERiER 28,797 19,704
HK cents HK cents
Bl Al
Earnings per share BREF
Basic E-YIN 18 8.21 5.67*
Diluted e 18 8.21 5.64*

*  Adjusted for bonus issue of shares in 2016

The notes on pages 79 to 179 are an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.

Automated Systems Holdings Limited & &) & 4% E AR A A
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

FEREWER

For the year ended 31st December 2016 BE —T—F+_A=+—HILFE

2016 2015
—B—REF —T—hF

HK$°000 HK$'000
Figs T

Profit for the year FRER 28,797 19,704

Other comprehensive income/(loss):  Hft2mk#E ~(BA) :

Items that will not be reclassified BT EHETPEE
subsequently to profit or loss: 1B Zc AV IE H -
Revaluation surplus of land Ti RIEFE GBS
and buildings 19 11,093 7,989
Deferred taxation arising from T REFEGHRBRESE
revaluation surplus of land ZIRERIR
and buildings 37 (1,830) (1,318)
Items that may be reclassified R GRIpE EFT DHE R
subsequently to profit or loss: B RAIEA -
Exchange differences on translation BREBINEG 2 ERER
of overseas operations (1,901) (5,593)
Reclassification adjustment of translation 1R {EH EH & N BlHH R
reserve upon deemed disposal of FRIE N R 2 B DA
partial interests in associates 31 42 52
Share of other comprehensive FEEEE AR EMEE
(loss)/income of associates (B518) Wz 22 (686) 78

Total comprehensive income for the  ARATREKEFEAEGLEER
year attributable to equity holders 2HENRERE
of the Company 35,515 20,912

The notes on pages 79 to 179 are an integral part of these consolidated ~ ERE79EF 179 B Z Mt iFE MK 2
financial statements. A ERED D ©
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

G EMBIRILR

As at 31st December 2016 R=ZF—"F+=-A=+—H

2016 2015
—B—REF —T—hF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
TR FHT
Non-current assets FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - BE KRR 19 276,332 278,482
Investment properties TEME 20 50,600 50,200
Intangible assets EREE 21 681 2,349
Interests in associates N Al 22 53,458 58,382
Finance lease receivables FEW R A T & FRIE 26 4,035 3,943
Deferred income tax assets RIEFTISTHEE 37 953 679
386,059 394,035
Current assets REEE
Inventories AT 24 128,414 106,842
Trade receivables FEWE 5508 25 166,651 218,282
Finance lease receivables FEW R A ERIE 26 4,264 4,254
Other receivables, deposits HMEUGIE - e
and prepayments RIERFIE 27 21,337 27,926
Amounts due from customers AR IRREREFHIE
for contract work 28 220,884 248,647
Other financial asset Hith & & E 29 - 1,180
Tax recoverable AT Bl FE IR 88 1,000
Restricted bank deposits ZIRFIRITER 30 876 =
Cash and cash equivalents ReRReEEY 30 237,755 172,955
780,269 781,086
Total assets HmEE 1,166,328 1,175,121
Equity attributable to equity holders  ZRA TR AIEH AELER
of the Company
Share capital A& 32 35,079 31,875
Share premium A& 17 B RR 114,497 114,305
Reserves & 569,457 537,170
Total equity B 719,033 683,350
The notes on pages 79 to 179 are an integral part of these consolidated ~ #MXFE79EFE 179 B ZMisHiBK G E B HRET 2
financial statements. TR SRR ER

Automated Systems Holdings Limited & &) & 4% E AR A A
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e MR R

As at 31st December 2016 R=Z—"F+=-A=+—H

2016 2015
—B—REF —T—hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHT

Non-current liabilities FEREBAE
Deferred income tax liabilities BRIEFTSRBE 37 45,899 44,510
45,899 44,510

Current liabilities mEAE
Trade payables FERTE 55038 33 185,380 244,907
Other payables and accruals EfhENFIEREER 34 72,909 63,730
Receipts in advance TEl s A 35 125,660 117,521
Current income tax liabilities BNERFRIS BB & 7,447 1,103
Bank borrowings RITEE 36 10,000 20,000
401,396 447,261
Total liabilities PN 447,295 491,771
Total equity and liabilities BEZRAE 1,166,328 1,175,121
Net current assets RBEETE 378,873 333,825
Total assets less current liabilities HEERRBAR 764,932 727,860
LI Wei WANG Yueou
=g TER
Director Director
E EZE

The notes on pages 79 to 179 are an integral part of these consolidated ~ EWRE79EF 179 B Z MK iFE M ]mEK 2
financial statements. TRISERE D ©
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
FEERBHR

For the year ended 31st December 2016 BE T — X "F+_A=+—HILtFE

Share-
based
Special Property payment
reserve  revaluation reserve
NIEE Share (Note (i) reserve Translation f Retained Total
capital ium el MESH reserve earnings equity
B i3 (P3EG)) & 3 | 1 ]
HK$000 HK$'00! HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T TAT FAT BT T BT ou BT
At 1st January 2015 R-B-EF
—-B—H 31,186 105,528 34,350 189,646 (896) 2,259 300,764 662,837
Comprehensive income: 2EKE
Profit for the year FEREF - - - - - - 19,704 19,704
Other comprehensive Hit2@E
income/(loss): Wi/ (F58) :
Revaluation surplus of land THRETF
and buildings EfRAH - = = 7,989 = = = 7,989
Deferred taxation arising from THRETF
revaluation surplus of land BRBHELY
and buildings ERERIE - - - (1,318) = = = (1,318)
Exchange differences on translation  REE5NEBZ
of overseas operations ERZEE - - - - (5,593) - = (5,593)
Redlassification adjustment of RELEBEDR
translation reserve upon deemed B B
disposal of partial interests B8 E
in associates (Note 31) (Bi=E31) = = = = 52 = = 52
Share of other comprehensive FEMRBE R A EA
income of associates (Note 22) 2E%E
(HizE22) - - - - 78 - - 78
Total comprehensive income FR2HEKGELE
for the year - - - 6,671 (5,463) - 19,704 20,912
Transactions with owners: HEBEARRS
Forfeiture of unclaimed dividends ~ JZURERE = - - - - - 16 16
Final dividend for the year ended ~ IKEEZE-ZT—UF
31st December 2014 (Note 17) +-A=1+—H
EFEZRARE
(HsE17) - - - - - - (7.908) (7,908)
Issue of ordinary shares upon TR 3T
exercise of share options Lk 689 8,777 = = = (1,863) = 7,603
Recognition of equity-settled R D RER
share-based payments YRZEX - - = = = (110) = (110)
Lapse of share options transferred ~ EBEZREA AT
to retained earnings 2R RE - - - - - (33) 33 =
Total transactions with owners  EEEAZRZHE 689 8,777 - - - (2,006) (7,859) (399)
At 31st December 2015 R-Z-1F
+-B=+—-H 31,875 114,305 34,350 196,317 (6,359) 253 312,609 683,350

The notes on pages 79 to 179 are an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31st December 2016 BE —T—F+_A=+—HILFE

Share-
based
Special Property payment
reserve  revaluation reserve
Share Share (Note (i) reserve  Translation YT Retained Total

capital premium ReRl 1R MEER reserve RER earnings equity
BE  ROEER (R=E (i) e ERf#E X% REEF BRAE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
FET T T FHT FET T FHT

At 1st January 2016 RIB-XF
-B—H 31,875 114,305 34,350 196,317 (6,359) 253 312,609 683,350
Comprehensive income: 2EKE
Profit for the year FEREF - - - - - - 28,797 28,797
Other comprehensive Hit2E
income/(loss): Wi/ (&8) :
Revaluation surplus of land T RIETF
and buildings B A% - - - 11,093 - - - 11,093
Deferred taxation arising from THRIET
revaluation surplus of land BRBHES
and buildings ZIEERIE - = = (1,830) = = = (1,830)
Exchange differences on translation &GN ER
of overseas operations JEREE - - - - (1,901) - - (1,901)
Reclassification adjustment of RiELEmE
translation reserve upon deemed NG
disposal of partial interests RELREZ
in associates (Note 31) ELIIFEE:S
(PzE31) - - - - L} - - L}
Share of other comprehensive loss ~ FE{EES& A ]
of associates (Note 22) Hth2EEE
(FizE22) - - - - (686) = = (686)
Total comprehensive income FR2ERE
for the year Foke] - - - 9,263 (2,545) - 28,797 35,515
Transactions with owners: BEEAZRS
Issue of ordinary shares upon B IRERS
exercise of share options BT LB 15 192 - - - (39) = 168
Issue of ordinary shares under BITART
the bonus issue BT LRk 3,189 - - - - = (3,189) =
Lapse of share options transferred ~~ EBAZRE&F
to retained earnings LR E - - - = = (88) 88 =
Total transactions with owners ~ SHAAZ
RHBE 3,204 192 - - - (127) (3,101) 168
At 31st December 2016 R-B-~F
+=A=+—-H 35079 114,497 34,350 205,580 (8,904) 126 338,305 719,033

Note ()): The special reserve of Automated Systems Holdings Limited (the “Company”) MizEd): BEBESERABRAT (AR REKEBA

and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) represents the difference between Al [ AEE]) 2BREEREN— W hLtE
the nominal value of the shares of the acquired subsidiaries and the nominal AARMD EHRETEBEAR - HKEZ
value of the Company’s shares issued for the acquisition at the time of the B A RS ITRMG 2 EE - Stz ks m 3
Group reorganisation prior to the listing of the Company’s shares in 1997. TTARRRIRMDZEE - MEZHZERE -

The notes on pages 79 to 179 are an integral part of these consolidated ~ EWRE79EF 179 B Z MK iFE M ]mEK 2
financial statements. TRISERE D ©
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

nv, \éiﬁﬁiﬁaﬁﬁ

For the year ended 31st December 2016 BE T — X "F+_A=+—HILtFE

2016 2015
—B—REF —T—hF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FTHET FHT
Operating activities REEK
Cash generated from operations KEEB 2B 40 85,544 77,648
Tax paid BEASHIE (4,130) (4,450)
Overseas tax (paid)/refund (X)) REEINEIE (509) 83
Tax refund REIFE 1,000 4,135
Net cash from operating activities REEBCHEEWAFE 81,905 77,416
Investing activities REED
Purchases of property, plant BEYE  BRE K&E
and equipment (4,507) (9,624)
Professional fee for proposed [EERpEEANE S
acquisition paid AR7%5 & A (2,817) =
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE - BEK
plant and equipment BABFTISHIE 36 47
Proceed from disposal of other REEAH EH th & &l
financial asset upon maturity BEAGRIE 1,180
Purchase of other financial asset BEHEMEREE = (1,180)
Interest received = RIS 8 40 54
Dividends received from associates BBk A AR Z AR B 22 486 481
Net cash used in investing activities = REZFBH 2RSS HFHE (5.582) (10,222)
Financing activities RESEE
Repayment of bank borrowings BBIRITIEE (10,000) (22,000)
Proceeds from issuing shares BITRMH TS FUE 168 7,603
Interest paid EASALE (793) (1,005)
Dividends paid [EER]iEsS - (7,908)
Net cash used in financing activities = BEEE 2B S HFH (10,625) (23,310)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents IR& NMIR& S (EY) 2 & HINFEE 65,698 43,884
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning F#] 2R & MIREEEY
of the year 172,955 130,439
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes ~ SNE[E R & &) 7 /& (898) (1,368)
Cash and cash equivalents at the FRZAGREEEEY
end of the year 237,755 172,955

The notes on pages 79 to 179 are an integral part of these consolidated ~— ®ARE79EFE 179 A 2 M BAKERS BB wER 2

financial statements. DA SRR EB D
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1.

Annual Report 2016 &

For the year ended 31st December 2016 HZ =% —

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted company
with limited liability and its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). At 31st December 2016, its
immediate holding company is Teamsun Technology (HK) Limited (“Hong
Kong Teamsun”), a company incorporated in Hong Kong. Its ultimate
holding company is Beijing Teamsun Technology Co., Ltd. (“Teamsun”),
a company incorporated in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC")
and its shares are listed on The Shanghai Stock Exchange of the PRC.
The addresses of the registered office and principal place of business of
the Company are Canon’s Court, 22 Victoria Street, Hamilton HM12,
Bermuda, and 15th Floor, Topsail Plaza, 11 On Sum Street, Shatin, New
Territories, Hong Kong, respectively.

The Company is an investment holding company and provides corporate
management services to its subsidiaries. The principal activities of
its major associates and subsidiaries are set out in Notes 22 and 47
respectively.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in thousands of
units of Hong Kong dollars (HK$'000), unless otherwise stated. These
consolidated financial statements have been approved for issue by the
Board of Directors (the “Board”) on 21st March 2017.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") which
collective term includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKAS") and
Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA") and the accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong.

The consolidated financial statements also comply with the applicable
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and
include the applicable disclosure requirements of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”).

& M TSR R M 5T

NETZRA=T—BIEFE

1. —RE1E
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K]  EEEERA B AR EARLRM
B ([ B ) B R E IR R AP B 75 5552
S Em 2 It REBREREROER QA
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BERMRLBLLE 1 SREIEEIS 154 -

RRAFREEREER AR LI A R E LR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e VI ERRM

For the year ended 31st December 2016 HE T — A F+_-_A=+—HBILtFE

m Automated Systems Holdings Limited & &) & 4% E AR A A

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

The significant accounting policies that have been used in the
preparation of these consolidated financial statements are summarised
in Note 3. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented unless otherwise stated. The adoption of new or amended
HKFRSs and the impacts on the Group’s financial statements, if any, are
disclosed below.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost basis except that the land and buildings, investment
properties and financial assets classified as at fair value through profit or
loss are stated at fair values.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying
the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of
judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are
significant to the consolidated financial statements are disclosed in Note
4.

The impacts of the adoption of the amended HKFRSs are discussed
below:

(a) Amended HKFRSs that are effective for the
annual periods beginning on or after 1st January
2016:

In the current year, the Group has applied for the first time the
following amended HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA, which are
relevant to the Group’s operations and effective for the Group’s
financial statements for the annual period beginning on 1st January
2016:

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure initiative
Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 Clarification
of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and Amortisation

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2012 — 2014 Cycle

2. RBEE )

B FERE M B RMARFPIRAERNE I
RINMIEE 3 TEE - BRA AR - ILFEEK
BEE-BUERRAE 2HRMME - AR X
RER BB IME LR MM AN E B3R
RZFE(NA) N T XA -
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o

N

N

RAHA TR BRE RN G AN BRE
BERERETRRGH & - AFERE
72 B 78 PR A S B T TR B (T
B - S RS BT SR M S R SR A
BREAMEBEAZBRRIE - HERH
HAWE -

RARIERI BRI HRES BN ZZEEHET

R

@ R-B—AE—B—BH 2%
B 24 o B B A o A
AT BB IR ER

RAFE  AREEXERATIEES
BETED AR - MAKEZERRY
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e VI ERRMEE

For the year ended 31st December 2016 HE—T— A F+_A=+—BILFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

(a) Amended HKFRSs that are effective for the

annual periods beginning on or after 1st January
2016: (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1: Disclosure Initiative

The Amendments are designed to further encourage companies to
apply professional judgement in determining what information to
disclose in their financial statements. Furthermore, the Amendments
clarify that companies should use professional judgement in
determining where and in what order information is presented in
the financial disclosures.

Specifically, the Amendments clarify (i) the materiality requirements
in HKAS 1, including an emphasis on the potentially detrimental
effect of obscuring useful information with immaterial information;
(ii) clarify that HKAS 1's specified line items in the statement(s) of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income and the statement
of financial position can be disaggregated; (iii) add requirements
for how an entity should present subtotals in the statement(s) of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income and the statement
of financial position; (iv) clarify that entities have flexibility as to
the order in which they present the notes, but also emphasis
that understandability and comparability should be considered
by an entity when deciding that order; and (v) remove potentially
unhelpful guidance in HKAS 1 for identifying a significant
accounting policy.

The Amendments also clarify that the share of other comprehensive
income of associates and joint ventures accounted for using the
equity method must be presented in aggregate as a single line
item, and classified between those items that will or will not be
subsequently reclassified to profit or loss.

The Amendments have had no material impact on these
consolidated financial statements.

2. RREE &)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e Mg mRMEE
For the year ended 31st December 2016 HE T — A F+_-_A=+—HBILtFE

2. RREE &)
() R=B—XRE—HF—H=8iz2#&

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

(a) Amended HKFRSs that are effective for the

m Automated Systems Holdings Limited & &) & 4% E AR A A

annual periods beginning on or after 1st January
2016: (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38: Clarification of Acceptable
Methods of Depreciation and Amortisation

The amendments introduce a rebuttable presumption to HKAS 38
that the use of revenue-based methods to calculate the amortisation
of an intangible asset is not appropriate. This presumption can only
be rebutted in the limited circumstances in which the intangible
asset is expressed as a measure of revenue or when revenue and the
consumption of the economic benefits of the intangible asset are
highly correlated. The amendments also prohibit the use of revenue-
based methods to calculate the depreciation of property, plant and
machinery under HKAS 16.

The amendments have no material impact on these consolidated
financial statements as the Group has not used revenue-based
methods to calculate the amortisation for its intangible assets and
depreciation for its property, plant and equipment.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2012 — 2014 Cycle

The amendments contained in this cycle of annual improvements
are detailed below:

e HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued
Operations: provides guidance when an entity reclassifies
either an asset or a disposal group from held for sale to held
for distribution (or vice versa), or when held for distribution
accounting is discontinued; and clarifies that these types of
changes in plans do not result in a new classification but instead
lead to the same classification, presentation and measurement
requirements for each type of disposal in HKFRS 5. The
amendment has had no significant impact on the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

rE MR
For the year ended 31st December 2016 HE—T— A F+_A=+—BILFE

2. RREE &)

(a) Amended HKFRSs that are effective for the () A=ZE—RFE—H—HHz%E
annual periods beginning on or after 1st January iz MBRFERBER 2K
2016: (Continued) BRI EBMBHRERER © (&)

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

BEHFHER —F——FF—F
—IOEFRE FEUAE ()

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2012 — 2014 Cycle (Continued)

e HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments: provides additional guidance in o BEBMBWMEEAFETIR 24T
identifying the circumstances under which a servicing contract A RHE— SIS TAEARES
BEEZRBEREREER[#
applying the disclosure requirements for transferred assets. The B2E|MER - ZEEITNER
amendments also clarifies that the additional disclosure required BN BMEENE 7REFTA
by the amendments to HKFRS 7 on offsetting financial assets KEemEERERBE KNP
5 BARDS A R E B SR T B
B WRES RS E R 2R
AR E RS AR ARSI - Rt
BERTAMAZERE - 2B 4
REBWEmEANTE -

is considered to be ‘continuing involvement’ for the purposes of

and financial liabilities is not specifically required for all interim
periods, except where the disclosures provide a significant
update to the information reported in the most recent annual
report, in which case the disclosures should be included. The
amendment has had no significant impact on the Group.

o HKAS 19 Employee Benefits: requires that the currency and o ABEGHERE19W ESFF -

Annual Report 2016 &

term of the corporate or government bonds used to determine
the discount rate for post-employment benefit obligations
must be consistent with the currency and estimated term of
the obligations. The amendments clarify that the assessment of
the depth of the corporate bond market shall be made at the
currency-level rather than the country-level. The amendment
does not have any impact on the Group as the Group does not
operate a defined benefit plan.

F R AN EEE BRI R M B AERAIR
KW RAREFIBAESZEER
FHREZSAET 2GR RMETF
H—% - ZFEAEBRAESN
LR REEEEmT G - M 2
EEREEETIE - ARAKE
WER T RERMET S - ZIEFTH
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Automated Systems Holdings Limited B &) &4 &= E AR A 7]



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRME

For the year ended 31st December 2016 HE T — A F+_-_A=+—HBILtFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

(b) Issued but not yet effective:

At the date of authorisation of these consolidated financial

statements, certain new and amended HKFRSs have been published
but are not yet effective, and have not been adopted early by the

Group.

Amendments to HKAS 12

Amendments to HKAS 7

Amendments to HKFRS 2

HKFRS 9

HKFRS 15

Amendments to HKFRS 15

HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28 (2011)

Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets
for Unrealised Losses'

Disclosure Initiative'

Classification and Measurement of
Share-based Payment
Transactions?

Financial Instruments?

Revenue from Contracts
with Customers?

Clarifications to HKFRS 15 Revenue
from Contracts with Customers?

Leases®

Sale or Contribution of Assets

between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture*

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January 2017

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January 2018

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January 2019

4 No mandatory effective date is determined but is available for early

adoption

The directors anticipate that all of the pronouncements will be

adopted in the Group's accounting policy for the first period

beginning after the effective date of the pronouncement.
Information on new and amended HKFRSs that are expected to

have impact on the Group’s accounting policies is provided below.
Other new and amended HKFRSs are not expected to have a

material impact on the Group’s financial statements.

m Automated Systems Holdings Limited & &) & 4% E AR A A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR Y EE

For the year ended 31st December 2016 HE—T— A F+_A=+—BILFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

(b) Issued but not yet effective: (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 2: Classification and Measurement of Share-
based Payment Transactions

The amendments clarify the following:

1. The fair value of liabilities for cash-settled share-based payments
should be measured using the same approach as for equity-
settled share-based payments.

2. Introduce an exception so that a share-based payment
transaction with net settlement feature for withholding an
amount to cover the employee’s tax obligations is classified as
equity-settled in its entirety when certain conditions are met,
even though the entity is then required to transfer cash (or
other assets) to the tax authority to settle the employee’s tax
obligation.

3. Clarify that on such modification the liability for the original
cash-settled share-based payment is derecognised and the
equity-settled share-based payment is measured at its fair value
and recognised to the extent that the goods or services have
been received up to that date. Any difference between the
carrying amount of the liability derecognised and the amount
recognised in equity at the modification date is recognised in
profit or loss immediately.

Amendments to HKFRS 2 is effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1st January 2018. The directors expect that the
amendments have no material impact on these consolidated
financial statements.

HKFRS 9: Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 “Financial instruments” introduces new requirements for
classification and measurement, impairment and hedge accounting.
The Group expects to adopt HKFRS 9 from 1st January 2018. The
directors have started to assess the impact of HKFRS 9 but are not
yet in a position to provide quantified information.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e Mg mRMEE
For the year ended 31st December 2016 HE T — A F+_-_A=+—HBILtFE

2. TESTBER @
(b) BAREREREN : (&)

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

(b) Issued but not yet effective: (Continued)

m Automated Systems Holdings Limited & &) & 4% E AR A A

HKFRS 15: Revenue from Contracts with Customers

HKFRS 15 presents new requirements for the recognition of
revenue, replacing HKAS 18 Revenue, HKAS 11 Construction
Contracts, and several revenue related Interpretations. The new
standard establishes a control-based revenue recognition model and
provides additional guidance in many areas not covered in detail
under existing HKFRSs, including how to account for arrangements
with multiple performance obligations, variable pricing, customer
refund rights, supplier repurchase options, and other common
complexities. The directors have started to assess the impact
of HKFRS 15 but are not yet in a position to provide quantified
information.

HKFRS 16: Leases

HKFRS 16 “Leases” will replace HKAS 17 and three related
Interpretations. Leases will be recorded on the statement of financial
position in the form of a right-of-use asset and a lease liability.
HKFRS 16 is effective from periods beginning on or after 1st January
2019. The directors are yet to fully assess the impact of HKFRS 16
and therefore is unable to provide quantified information. However,
in order to determine the impact the Group are in the process of:

e performing a full review of all agreements to assess whether
any additional contracts will now become a lease under HKFRS
16's new definition.

e deciding which transitional provision to adopt; either full
retrospective application or partial retrospective application
(which means comparatives do not need to be restated). The
partial application method also provides optional relief from
reassessing whether contracts in place are, or contain, a lease,
as well as other reliefs. Deciding which of these practical
expedients to adopt is important as they are one-off choices.

e assessing their current disclosures for operating leases (Note
41) as these are likely to form the basis of the amounts to be
capitalised and become right-of-use assets.

e determining which optional accounting simplifications apply
to their lease portfolio and if they are going to use these
exemptions assessing the additional disclosures that will be
required.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR Y EE

For the year ended 31st December 2016 HE—T— A F+_A=+—BILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies have
been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise
stated.

(a) Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries made up to 31st
December each year.

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group controls
an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the entity. When assessing whether
the Group has power, only substantive rights (held by the Group
and other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the consolidated
financial statements from the date that control commences until
the date that control ceases. Intra-group balances, transactions
and cash flows and any unrealised profits arising from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated
financial statements. Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains but
only to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that do not result in
a loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions, whereby
adjustments are made to the amounts of controlling and non-
controlling interests within consolidated equity to reflect the change
in relative interests, but no adjustments are made to goodwill and
no gain or loss is recognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Automated Systems Holdings Limited & &) & 4% E AR A A

ar ended 31st December 2016 HE =T — X "F+_A=1T—HILFE

GNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

ntinued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted
for as a disposal of the entire interest in that subsidiary, with a
resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any interest
retained in that former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is
recognised at fair value and this amount is regarded as the fair value
on initial recognition of a financial asset or, when appropriate, the
cost on initial recognition of an investment in an associate or joint
venture.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an investment
in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment losses, unless the
investment is classified as held for sale (or included in a disposal
group that is classified as held for sale).

The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the
basis of dividends received and receivable. All dividends whether
received out of the investee’s pre or post-acquisition profits are
recognised in the Company’s profit or loss.

Interests in associates

An associate is an entity in which the Group or Company has
significant influence, but not control or joint control, over its
management, including participation in the financial and operating
policy decisions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31st December 2016 HE—T— A F+_A=+—BILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EESTHR @)

(Continued)

(b) Interests in associates (Continued) (b) BEE QTR (8)

Annual Report 2016 &

An investment in an associate is accounted for in the consolidated
financial statements under the equity method, unless it is classified
as held for sale. Under the equity method, the investment is initially
recorded at cost, adjusted for any excess of the Group’s share of the
acquisition-date fair values of the investee’s identifiable net assets
over the cost of the investment (if any). Thereafter, the investment
is adjusted for the post acquisition change in the Group’s share of
the investee’s net assets and any impairment loss relating to the
investment. Any acquisition-date excess over cost, the Group’s share
of the post-acquisition, post-tax results of the investees and any
impairment losses for the year are recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, whereas the Group’s share of the post-
acquisition post-tax items of the investees' other comprehensive
income is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
or consolidated statement of comprehensive income. Adjustments
are made to bring into line any dissimilar accounting policies that
may exist.

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest in the
associate, the Group's interest is reduced to nil and recognition of
further losses is discontinued except to the extent that the Group
has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments
on behalf of the investee. For this purpose, the Group’s interest is
the carrying amount of the investment under the equity method
together with the Group’s long-term interests that in substance
form part of the Group’s net investment in the associate.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions between
the Group and its associates are eliminated to the extent of the
Group’s interest in the investee, except where unrealised losses
provide evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred, in which
case they are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

REEE R B2 R B R E ARG W5
BRAR - BRIFEZRENDBRFEEL
S REEDE REMITRKARL
fR o WIRAKERG KRR ERARRKE
HERRAFEE 2 AR EEBLHIRE
Az ZEB (A (EHHE - Hig - 1%
B AKRERIGEHRRERFTRERZ
FEEEPREREGMZERRER
BEH R - B B I AR Z (EfA]
EH - AEBREREREQRFNKEER
RRBEEEARAFEEMRERBE
TN E BERTER - MASEEER
REDBRKBR KGR EE 2K
=IA B NG EBRERIGRS 2 E RS
RATER - AARSIEHABRS A
FRENEA N ER SRR B -

EAKEREKE AR BB HERE
w5l AEBEZERSBERET LA
BRERE—FEER  RIFAKBEARE
ERREERME - AABIRE R RINK
She LT E - ANEEZ R ARERE
HEFHEZIREREE  EREE LB
RAEEREE R BFIRE B2 A
SERHES -

AEEREBENRMIXSMELELZ
AEHIER - DAREERBIRE AT
ZREERR T AL - BRIFREBRER
RECEREE ZRERE  EUtER
T RIEZEAREHR BRI AR NIRRT

-

Automated Systems Holdings Limited B &) &4 &= E AR A 7] m



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31st December 2016 HE T — A F+_-_A=+—HBILtFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(b) Interests in associates (Continued)

(9]

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment in a joint
venture or vice versa, retained interest is not remeasured. Instead,
the investment continues to be accounted for under the equity
method.

In all other cases, when the Group ceases to have significant
influence over an associate, it is accounted for as a disposal of the
entire interest in that investee, with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained in that former
investee at the date when significant influence or joint control is lost
is recognised at fair value and this amount is regarded as the fair
value on initial recognition of a financial asset.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the
internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker.
The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating
resources and assessing performance of the operating segments,
has been identified as the Board that makes strategic decisions.

(d) Foreign currency translation

m Automated Systems Holdings Limited & &) & 4% E AR A A

(i) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of the
Group's entities are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates (the
“functional currency”). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in Hong Kong dollars (HKD or HK$), which is the
Company'’s functional currency and the Group’s presentation
currency.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRME

For the year ended 31st December 2016 HE—T— A F+_A=+—BILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EESTHR @)

(Continued)

(d) Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Annual Report 2016 &

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions or valuation where items are remeasured. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange
rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to cash and cash
equivalents are presented in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss. All other foreign exchange gains and losses are
presented in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group entities (none
of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary economy)
that have a functional currency different from the presentation
currency are translated into the presentation currency as
follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each statement of financial
position presented are translated at the closing rate at the
reporting date;

(i) income and expenses for each statement of profit or loss
presented are translated at average exchange rates (unless
this average is not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction
dates, in which case income and expenses are translated
at the rate on the dates of the transactions); and

(iii)  all resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated separately in the
translation reserve in equity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31st December 2016 HE T — A F+_-_A=+—HBILtFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EESTHR @

(Continued)

(d) SNEIRE (8)

(d) Foreign currency translation (Continued)

m Automated Systems Holdings Limited & &) & 4% E AR A A

(ii) Group companies (Continued)

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of
a foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign
entity and translated at the closing rate. Currency translation
differences arising are recognised in other comprehensive
income.

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e., a disposal of the
Group's entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal
involving loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a
foreign operation, loss of joint control over a joint venture that
includes a foreign operation, or loss of significant influence
over an associate that includes a foreign operation), all of the
accumulated exchange differences in respect of that operation
attributable to the Group are reclassified to profit or loss.

(e) Property, plant and equipment

Land and buildings are stated at fair value. Property, plant and
equipment, other than land and buildings, are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

Land and buildings are stated in the statement of financial position
at their revalued amounts, being the fair value at the date of
revaluation less any subsequent accumulated depreciation and
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Revaluations are
performed with sufficient regularity such that the carrying amount
does not differ materially from that which would be determined
using fair values at the reporting date.

Any revaluation increase arising on revaluation of land and buildings
is credited to the revaluation reserve, except to the extent that
it reverses a revaluation decrease of the same assets previously
recognised as an expense, in which case the increase is credited
to the consolidated statement of profit or loss to the extent of the
decrease previously charged. A decrease in net carrying amount
arising on revaluation of an asset is dealt with as an expense to the
extent that it exceeds the balance, if any, on the revaluation reserve
relating to a previous revaluation of that asset.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31st December 2016 HE—T— A F+_A=+—BILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EESTHR @)

(Continued)

(e) W%  BMERRE @

(e) Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Annual Report 2016 &

Depreciation and amortisation of property, plant and equipment is
calculated using the straight-line method to allocate cost or revalued
amounts to their residual values over their estimated useful lives, as
follows:

Over the remaining term
of the lease or 50 years,

Land and buildings

whichever is shorter
Furniture and fixtures 10% - 33'3%
Motor vehicles 20%
Computer and office equipment  162/3% — 50%

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at each reporting date.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the
proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss. When revalued assets are
sold, the amounts included in other reserves are transferred to
retained earnings.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31st December 2016 HE T — A F+_-_A=+—HBILtFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EESTHR @

(Continued)

(f) mEME

(f) Investment properties

m Automated Systems Holdings Limited & &) & 4% E AR A A

Property that is held for long-term rental yields and is not occupied
by the Group, is classified as investment properties. Investment
property is measured initially at its cost, including related transaction
costs.

After initial recognition at cost, investment properties are carried
at fair value, representing open market value determined at each
reporting date by external valuers. Fair value is based on active
market prices, adjusted, if necessary, for any difference in the
nature, location or condition of the specific asset. If this information
is not available, the Group uses alternative valuation methods such
as recent prices on less active markets or discounted cash flow
projections. Changes in fair values are recorded in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

If an item of property, plant and equipment becomes an investment
property because its use has changed, any difference resulting
between the carrying amount and the fair value of this item at the
date of transfer is recognised in equity as a revaluation of property,
plant and equipment. However, if a fair value gain reverses a
previous impairment loss, the gain is recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31st December 2016 HE—T— A F+_A=+—BILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EESTHR @)

(Continued)

(9) Intangible assets (9) B EE
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Research and development expenditure

Costs associated with research activities are expensed in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss as incurred. Costs that
are directly attributable to development activities are recognised
as intangible assets provided they meet the following recognition
requirements:

(a) demonstration of technical feasibility of the prospective product
for internal use or sale;

(b) there is intention to complete the intangible asset and use or
sell it;

(c) the Group's ability to use or sell the intangible asset is
demonstrated;

(d) the intangible asset will generate probable economic benefits
through internal use or sale;

(e) sufficient technical, financial and other resources are available
for completion; and

(f) the expenditure attributable to the intangible asset can be
reliably measured.

The amount initially recognised for internally-generated intangible
asset is the sum of the direct costs incurred from the date when
the intangible asset first meets the recognition criteria. Where
no internally-generated intangible asset can be recognised,
development expenditure is recognised as an expense in the period
in which it is incurred. Direct costs include employee costs incurred
on development activities along with an appropriate portion of
relevant overheads.

Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-generated intangible
asset is reported at cost less accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses, on the same basis as intangible
assets acquired separately. Amortisation is calculated using the
straight-line method over the estimated useful life of 3 years.
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For the year ended 31st December 2016 HE T — A F+_-_A=+—HBILtFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(h) Impairment of investments in subsidiaries,

(i)

m Automated Systems Holdings Limited & &) & 4% E AR A A

associates and non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life or those not yet available
for use are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for
impairment. All other assets are reviewed for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised
for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an
asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessment of time value of money and the risk specific
to the asset. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets
are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately
identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets
other than goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for
possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.

Financial assets and liabilities

The Group classifies its financial assets and financial liabilities
depending on the purpose for which the financial assets and
financial liabilities were acquired at initial recognition and where
allowed and appropriate, re-evaluates this designation at each
reporting date.

(i)  Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets into financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss and loans and receivables.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets are classified as fair value through profit or
loss when the financial asset is either held for trading or it is
designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through
profit or loss. The Group’s “other financial asset” was
designated as financial asset at fair value through profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRME

For the year ended 31st December 2016 HE—T— A F+_A=+—BILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EESTHR @)

(Continued)

(i) Financial assets and liabilities (Continued) (i) eRMEEREE®
(i) Financial assets (Continued) () THEE &)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (Continued) AAnBEEABRIIENEME
E (&)
Financial assets other than financial assets held for trading may BREBIEEENSRMEEIN  FHENU
be designated at initial recognition as at fair value through TRz emEES TR ERR
profit or loss if the following criteria are met: WIRERA AR BEEREBERTR
ZEREE
-~ the designation eliminates or significantly reduces the - SRR SBT
inconsistent treatment that would otherwise arise from REEMEEMNEESGSIIE
measuring the assets or recognising gains or losses on SRS — BRI
them on a different basis; or 54
—  the assets are part of a group of financial assets which - HhEeREER—RIBENE
are managed and their performance is evaluated on a I8 B H ¥ AR R R B IR B
fair value basis, in accordance with a documented risk NRAAEEEMNEELZ— &
management strategy and information about the group RERELEREZEEERHE
of financial assets is provided internally on that basis to ERSREENNTER : 3

the key management personnel; or

-~ the financial asset contains an embedded derivative that - heREEREABBARN
would need to be separately recorded. BMARPTETLAR o
Subsequent to initial recognition, the financial assets included ML HERE - BREELENINSE
in this category are measured at fair value with changes in fair BEMNARBEZEFELENKES
value recognised in profit or loss. Fair value is determined by BRANEZER - AR BERESZ
reference to active market transactions or using a valuation EEBMBSNRS  EEERED
technique where no active market exists. Fair value gain or % BIEA S —EMEREME -
loss does not include any dividend or interest earned on these ARBEEZEEEENNESNEEL
financial assets. Dividend and interest income is recognised TEREFARESREEMSHRE
in accordance with the Group’s policies in Note 3(r) to these RFE o 1B 1R & B 5 5 M 3230 &Y
consolidated financial statements. Bk - HRE KA EGHERANRES

ATEMKRA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRME

For the year ended 31st December 2016 HE T — A F+_-_A=+—HBILtFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(i) Financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

0

(ii)

m Automated Systems Holdings Limited & &) & 4% E AR A A

Financial assets (Continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market. They are included in current assets, except for
the amounts that have maturities greater than 12 months after
the reporting date which are classified as non-current assets.
Subsequent to initial recognition, they are carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less any identified
impairment losses.

The Group’s loans and receivables comprise “trade receivables”,
“other receivables and deposits”, “amounts due from
customers for contract work”, “finance lease receivables”,
“restricted bank deposits” and “cash and cash equivalents” as
set out in the consolidated statement of financial position.

Financial liabilities

The Group’s financial liabilities include “trade payables”, “other
payables” and “bank borrowings” which are recognised initially
at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred and subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Financial liabilities are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the
liability for at least 12 months after the reporting date.

3. TEEFHE®

(i) eMEEREGE®)

EREE(E)

BN IR IR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRME

For the year ended 31st December 2016 HE—T— A F+_A=+—BILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EESTHR @)

(Continued)

(i) eMEEREGE®)

(i) Financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

Annual Report 2016 &

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised
on the trade-date — the date on which the Group commits to
purchase or sell the asset. Investments are initially recognised at fair
value plus transaction costs for all financial assets not carried at fair
value through profit or loss. Financial assets are derecognised when
the rights to receive cash flows from the investments have expired
or have been transferred and the Group has transferred substantially
all risks and rewards of ownership.

At each reporting date, financial assets are reviewed to assess
whether there is objective evidence of impairment. If any such
evidence exists, impairment loss is determined and recognised based
on the classification of the financial asset.

Financial liabilities are recognised when the Group becomes a party
to the contractual provisions of the financial instruments. A financial
liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is
discharged, cancelled or expires. All interest related charges are
recognised in accordance with the Group’s accounting policy for
borrowing costs (see Note 3(t)).

Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from
the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of
an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability
and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in the
respective carrying amount is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
reported in the statement of financial position when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there
is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle
the liability simultaneously.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRME

For the year ended 31st December 2016 HE T — A F+_-_A=+—HBILtFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EESTHR @

(Continued)

(j) Impairment of financial assets

() EWMEEZRE

m Automated Systems Holdings Limited & &) & 4% E AR A A

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is
objective evidence that a financial asset or group of financial assets,
other than those at fair value through profit or loss, is impaired.
A financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired and
impairment losses are incurred only if there is objective evidence of
impairment as a result of one or more events that occurred after the
initial recognition of the asset (a “loss event”) and that loss event
(or events) has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of
the financial asset or group of financial assets that can be reliably
estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include indications that the debtors
or a group of debtors is experiencing significant financial difficulty,
default or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the
probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation, and where observable data indicate that there is
a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such
as changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with
defaults.

For loans and receivables carried at amortised cost, the amount
of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash
flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred)
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate. The
asset’s carrying amount is reduced and the amount of the loss is
recognised in profit or loss.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised (such as
an improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the reversal of
the previously recognised impairment loss is recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRME

For the year ended 31st December 2016 HE—T— A F+_A=+—BILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EESTHR @)

(Continued)

(k) Inventories

)

Inventories comprise goods held for resale and goods pending for
customers’ acceptance and are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Cost is determined using the first-in, first-out
method. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less applicable variable selling expenses.

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for merchandise
sold or services performed in the ordinary course of business. If
collection of trade and other receivables is expected in one year or
less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business if longer), they
are classified as current assets. If not, they are presented as non-
current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less provision for impairment.

(m) Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents includes cash in hand, deposits held at call with
banks with original maturities of three months or less, and bank
overdrafts.

(n) Share capital

Annual Report 2016 &

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental cost directly
attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in
equity as deduction, net of tax, from the proceed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRME

For the year ended 31st December 2016 HE T — A F+_-_A=+—HBILtFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EESTHR @

(Continued)

(o) Trade and other payables (o) B EZRIERHMEMNTIR
Trade and other payables are obligations to pay for goods or ENE S FEREMENTIBRNE T
services that have been acquired in the ordinary course of business E5BRPREEREAZEMIRE
from suppliers. Trade and other payables are classified as current ZATFREE o WFRIBR —FHIAA (S
liabilities if payment is due within one year or less (or in the normal RIEBEBBRN(WRE)) ZIE - &
operating cycle of the business if longer). If not, they are presented NESFEREMEN KBRS EL
as non-current liabilities. NBEE - TRAGUFRBABRT] -
Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair value and e B S8 R E A BN RIBYIZIER
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest REEER - BERERN A
method. FXAETE ©

(p) Current and deferred income tax (p) BNEARIESE FTiSH
The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax. BRI R TE S B I RN B SO AE R T o
Tax is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss, RIEDREREBmRER - HEERM
except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other 2HN G EEEERERZIEEEH
comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is ERON - ELLBER T - BIATD BIEE
also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, fth 2 S B B R TR ©
respectively.

(i) Current income tax () EIEGFTEH
The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the BNEAFR SRR AR AR ZHB A
tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date AR BB E N R 2 B REEER
in the places/countries where the Company’s subsidiaries and T AFTTEH, BR N ER A8
associates operate and generate taxable income. Management MABERMZBEREENH -
periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect EIREE ABLEABEARBIEED
to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to BB ZIERM R E - WiRTEEH
interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate on XN THGHE 2 BEHENIRE
the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities. WoBE-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRME

For the year ended 31st December 2016 HE—T— A F+_A=+—BILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EESTHR @)

(Continued)

(p) BNHAREREFR S8 (&)

(p) Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(i) Deferred income tax (ii) FBHETEF

(iii)

Annual Report 2016 &

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability method, on
temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated
financial statements. However, deferred tax liabilities are not
recognised if they arise from the initial recognition of goodwill,
the deferred income tax is not accounted for if it arises from
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other
than a business combination that at the time of the transaction
affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred
income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date
and are expected to apply when the related deferred income
tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences
arising on investments in subsidiaries and associates, except for
deferred income tax liability where the timing of the reversal
of the temporary difference is controlled by the Group and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Offsetting

Income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes assets and
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either the taxable entity or different taxable entities
where there is an intention to settle the balances on a net basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR B EE

For the year ended 31st December 2016 HZ =%

—R"E+ZRA=T—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(q) Provisions, contingent liabilities and financial
guarantee contract

0]

(ii)

m Automated Systems Holdings Limited & &) & 4% E AR A A

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle
the obligation; and the amount has been reliably estimated.
Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses. Where
there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that
an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by
considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is
recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to
any one item included in the same class of obligations may be
small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in
the provision due to passage of time is recognised as interest
expense.

Contingent liabilities

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future uncertain
events not wholly within the control of the Group, are also
disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRME

For the year ended 31st December 2016 HE—T— A F+_A=+—BILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EESTHR @)

(Continued)

(q) Provisions, contingent liabilities and financial (q BfE JAEERMEERS
guarantee contract (Continued) K ()

(iii) Financial guarantee contract (i) BBEREH

Annual Report 2016 &

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the
issuer (or guarantor) to make specified payments to reimburse
the holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails
to make payment when due in accordance with the terms of a
debt instrument.

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee, the fair value of
the guarantee is initially recognised as deferred income within
trade and other payables. Where consideration is received or
receivable for the issuance of the guarantee, the consideration
is recognised in accordance with the Group’s policies applicable
to that category of asset. Where no such consideration is
received or receivable, an immediate expense is recognised in
profit or loss on initial recognition of any deferred income.

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised as deferred
income is amortised in profit or loss over the term of the
guarantee as income from financial guarantees issued. In
addition, provisions are recognised if and when it becomes
probable that the holder of the guarantee will call upon the
Group under the guarantee and the amount of that claim on
the Group is expected to exceed the current carrying amount i.e.,
the amount initially recognised less accumulated amortisation,
where appropriate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31st December 2016 HE T — A F+_-_A=+—HBILtFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EESTHR @

(Continued)

(r) Wz

(r) Revenue recognition

m Automated Systems Holdings Limited & &) & 4% E AR A A

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable, and represents amounts receivable for goods supplied,
stated net of discounts, returns and value added taxes. The Group
recognises revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably
measured; when it is probable that future economic benefits will
flow to the entity; and when specific criteria have been met for each
of the Group’s activities, as described below. The Group based on
its estimates of return on historical results, taking into consideration
the type of customer, the type of transaction and the specifics of
each arrangement.

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised when significant risks
and rewards of ownership of the goods are transferred to buyers
(generally on delivery, satisfactory installation and customer
acceptance) and the amount of revenue and the costs incurred for
the transaction can be measured reliably.

Revenue from rendering of services, other than installation services
and maintenance services, is recognised as revenue by reference
to the stage of completion, provided that the revenue, the costs
incurred and the estimated costs to completion can be measured
reliably. Stage of completion is established by reference to the costs
incurred to date as compared to the total costs to be incurred under
the transaction. Provision is made for foreseeable losses as soon as
they are anticipated by the management.

Where recognised profits less recognised losses exceed progress
billings, the surplus is shown as amounts due from customers
for contract work. Amounts received before the related work is
performed are included in the consolidated statement of financial
position, as a liability, as receipts in advance. The balances will be
recognised as revenue when earned.

Installation services are generally provided incidentally to the sale
of a product, in which case they are recognised upon satisfactory
installation and customer acceptance.

Maintenance service income is recognised on a straight line basis
over the term of the maintenance service contract.

Rental income is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the terms of the relevant leases.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EESTHR @)

(Continued)

(r)

(s)

(t)
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Revenue recognition (Continued)

Finance income implicit in finance lease is recognised as interest
income over the period of the lease so as to produce an
approximately constant periodic rate of return of the outstanding
net investment in the leases for each accounting period.

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method.

Retirement benefit costs

The Group operates Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) and other defined contribution retirement benefit plans
for all qualifying employees. The MPF Scheme is established under
the Mandatory Provident Fund Ordinance in December 2000.
Contributions are made based on a percentage of the employees’
basic salaries and are charged to the consolidated statement of
profit or loss as they become payable in accordance with the rules of
the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme and other defined
contribution retirement benefit plans are held separately from those
of the Group, in funds under the control of trustees. The Group’s
contributions vest fully with the employees when contributed into
the MPF Scheme and other defined contribution retirement benefit
plans.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs incurred, net of any investment income earned
on the temporary investment of the specific borrowings, for the
acquisition, construction or production of any qualifying asset are
capitalised during the period of time that is required to complete
and prepare the asset for its intended use. A qualifying asset is
an asset which necessarily takes a substantial period of time to
get ready for its intended use or sale. Other borrowing costs are
expensed when incurred.

Borrowing costs are capitalised as part of the cost of a qualifying
asset when expenditure for the asset is being incurred, borrowing
costs are being incurred and activities that are necessary to prepare
the asset for its intended use or sale are being undertaken.
Capitalisation of borrowing costs ceases when substantially all the
activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for its intended
use or sale are complete.
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3. Sl

(Co

—R"E+ZRA=T—HILFE

GNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

ntinued)

(u) Share-based payment

(v)

m Automated Systems Holdings Limited & &) & 4% E AR A A

The fair value of services received were determined by reference to
the fair value of shares and share options granted at the grant date
and expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period or
recognised as an expense in full at the grant date when the shares
and share options granted vest immediately, with a corresponding
increase in equity (share-based payment reserve).

At each reporting date, the Group revises its estimates of the
number of shares and share options that are expected to ultimately
vest. The impact of the revision of the estimates during the vesting
period, if any, is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss, with a corresponding adjustment to share-based payment
reserve.

At the time when the share options are exercised, the amount
previously recognised in share option reserve will be transferred
to share premium. After vesting date, when the shares or share
options are forfeited after the vesting date or are still not exercised
at the expiry dates, the amount previously recognised in share-
based payment reserve will be transferred to retained earnings.

Leases

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group determines that
the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific asset or assets
for an agreed period of time in return for a payment or a series of
payments. Such a determination is made based on an evaluation of
the substance of the arrangement and is regardless of whether the
arrangement takes the legal form of a lease.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EESTHR @)

(Continued)

(v) Leases (Continued)

0

(i)

Annual Report 2016 &

Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets that are held by the Group under leases which transfer to
the Group substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
are classified as being held under finance leases. Leases which
do not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the Group are classified as operating leases, with
the following exceptions:

- property held under operating leases that would
otherwise meet the definition of an investment property
is classified as investment property on a property-by-
property basis and, if classified as investment property, is
accounted for as if held under a finance lease; and

- land held for own use under an operating lease, the fair
value of which cannot be measured separately from the
fair value of a building situated thereon at the inception
of the lease, is accounted for as being held under a
finance lease, unless the building is also clearly held under
an operating lease. For these purposes, the inception of
the lease is the time that the lease was first entered into
by the Group, or taken over from the previous lessee.

Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held under operating
leases, payments made under the leases are charged to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss in equal instalments
over the accounting periods covered by the lease term, except
where an alternative basis is more representative of the pattern
of benefits to be derived from the leased asset.

The cost of acquiring land held under an operating lease is
amortised on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease
term except where the property is classified as an investment

property.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(v) Leases (Continued)

(iii) Assets leased out under finance leases as the lessor

When assets are leased out under finance leases, the risks and
rewards of ownership are transferred out to customers. When
assets are leased out under finance leases, the present value of
the lease payments is recognised as a receivable.

(w) Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is recognised
as a liability in the Group’s and Company’s financial statements in
the year in which the dividends are approved by the Company’s
shareholders or directors, where appropriate.

(x) Related parties

For the purposes of these consolidated financial statements, a party
is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@) the party is a person, or a close member of that person’s family,
is related to the Group if that person:

(1) has control or joint control over the Group;

(2) has significant influence over the Group; or

(3) is a member of the key management personnel of the
Group or the Group’s parent.

(b) the party is an entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(1) The entity and the Group are members of the same group
(which means that each parent, subsidiary and fellow
subsidiary is related to the others);

(2) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member of a
group of which the other entity is a member);

(3) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party;
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e M RRME
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EESTHR @)

(Continued)

(x) Related parties (Continued)

(b) the party is an entity is related to the Group if any of the

following conditions applies: (Continued)

)

(©)

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other
entity is an associate of the third entity;

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group;

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a);

A person identified in (a)(1) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity); or

The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services to the
reporting entity or to the parent of the reporting entity.

Close members of the family of a person are those family members

who may be expected to influence, or be influenced by, that person

in their dealings with the entity.
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For the year ended 31st December 2016 HE T — A F+_-_A=+—HBILtFE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS

(a) Critical accounting judgements in applying the
Group's accounting policies

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,

management has made the following accounting judgements:

(i

(ii)

m Automated Systems Holdings Limited & &) & 4% E AR A A

Provision for impairment of trade and other receivables

The provisioning policy for trade and other receivables of
the Group is based on the evaluation of the collectability
of those receivables and on management’s judgement. A
considerable amount of judgement is required in assessing
the ultimate realisation of these receivables, including the
current creditworthiness and the past collection history of
each customer and the realisation of any repayment pattern
promised. If the financial conditions of these customers were to
deteriorate, additional provision may be required.

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in jurisdictions in which
the Group operates. Significant judgement is required in
determining the provision for income taxes. There are many
transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain. The Group recognises liabilities for
anticipated tax audit issues based on estimates of whether
additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome of
these matters is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will impact the income tax and
deferred tax provisions in the year in which such determination
is made.
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For the year ended 31st December 2016 HE—T— A F+_A=+—BILFE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES 4. E XA RHAE

AND JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(b) Sources of estimation uncertainty

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future.
The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal
the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
discussed below:

(i) Revenue recognition

According to the accounting policy as stated in Note 3(r), the
Group uses the percentage of completion (the “POC") method
to determine the appropriate revenues to be recognised
from rendering of services (other than installation service and
maintenance services). The stage of completion is measured by
reference to the actual costs incurred up to the reporting date
as a percentage of total estimated costs of completion. When
the outcome of a POC contract cannot be estimated reliably,
revenue is recognised only to the extent of contract costs
incurred that it will be probably recoverable.

(i) Valuation of investment properties, land and buildings

The best evidence of fair value is current prices in an active
market for similar leases and other contracts. In the absence
of such information, the Group determines the amount
within a range of reasonable fair values estimated. In making
its estimates, the Group considers the information from
the valuations of investment properties, land and buildings
performed by external professional valuers by using the market
comparison approach. Had the Group used different valuation
techniques, the fair value of the investment properties, land and
buildings would be different and thus may have an impact to
the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

At 31st December 2016, the carrying amount of the Group’s
land and building, and investment properties carried at
revalued amount/fair value were HK$262,500,000 (2015:
HK$259,650,000) and HK$50,600,000 (2015: HK$50,200,000)
respectively.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(b) Sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(iii) Estimated impairment of interests in associates

An impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or
cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which is
the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value
in use. The Group's approach in determining the recoverable
amount of interests in associates (Note 22) is the fair value less
costs of disposal which estimates its share of the present value
of the estimated future cash flows expected to be generated by
the associate, including cash flows arising from the operations
of the associate and the proceeds on ultimate disposal of the
investment. No impairment is required for the year ended 31st
December 2016 (2015: Nil).

(iv) Provision for customers’ claim

In making provision for customers’ claim, management bases its
estimate on the circumstances relating to each specific event,
internal and external legal advice, knowledge of the industries
and markets and prevailing commercial terms; details are set out
in Notes 34 and 44 to the consolidated financial statements.

5. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities within the Group
will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the return
to stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance.

The capital structure of the Group consists of equity attributable to
equity holders of the Company, comprising issued capital, reserves and
retained earnings as disclosed in the consolidated statement of changes
in equity.
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For the year ended 31st December 2016 BE —T—F+_A=+—HILFE

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

The directors of the Company review the capital structure periodically.
As part of this review, the directors of the Company prepare the annual
budget taking into account of the provision of funding. Based on the
proposed annual budget, the directors of the Company consider the
cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of capital. Based
on recommendations of the management of the Group, the Group will
balance its overall capital structure through the payment of dividends,
new share issues, bank borrowings and share buy-backs as well as the
issue of new debt or the redemption of existing debt, if necessary.

As at 31st December 2016, the Group’s debt-to-equity ratio was 1.4%
(2015: 2.9%), which is within the range of management’s expectation

and was calculated as follows:

5. EAERERE

ARREZEHRSEERERE - (FRRT
Hf—R ARAEFEBRLRESBE TR
HERRE - RIFMARX2FERE - AR
AEEEFEEANANERSEEARNER 2
B REAEBERE 2%  AEEE
BRSNS - BITHERD  RITEELE
Bt hEERERATRENEEREE
% ATEEEENGSE -

RZBE-RE+-A=+—0 ' rEEZ
BEBHERRLER14% (ZF—HF
29%) DA EREZERERE - Wikm

TEHHE
2016 2015
—E-RE —Z—hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FHET
Bank borrowings RITEE 10,000 20,000
Total equity AR 719,033 683,350
Debt-to-equity ratio RE R 1.4% 2.9%

There are no changes on the Group’s approach to capital risk
management during the year.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk
(including foreign exchange risk and interest rate risk), credit risk, and
liquidity risk. The Group's overall risk management programme focuses
on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise
potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance.
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (continued)

(a) Market risk

(i)

(ii)

m Automated Systems Holdings Limited & &) & 4% E AR A A

Foreign exchange risk

The Group mainly earns revenue and incurs costs in HKD and
United States dollars (“USD"). Foreign exchange exposure
to USD of the Group will continue to be minimal as long
as the policy of the Government of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region to peg the HKD to the USD remains
in effect. There was no material exposure to fluctuations in
exchange rates, and therefore no related hedging financial
instrument was applied during the year ended 31st December
2016 (2015: same).

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to interest rate risk mainly concentrated
on the fluctuation in relations to variable interest rate on bank
deposits, bank balances and bank borrowings denominated
in HKD. The Group currently does not have any interest rate
hedging policy.

Interest rate sensitivity

The sensitivity analysis below have been determined based on
the exposure to interest rates for non-derivative instruments
including bank balances and bank borrowings, at the reporting
date and the stipulated change taking place at the beginning of
the financial year and held constant throughout the reporting
period in the case of instruments that have floating rates. A 50
basis point increase or decrease is used when reporting interest
rate risk internally to key management personnel and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible change in
interest rate.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points higher/lower and
all other variables were held constant, the Group’s profit for
the year ended 31st December 2016 would increase/decrease
by approximately HK$935,000 (2015: HK$388,000). This is
mainly attributable to the Group’s exposure to interest rates
on its variable-rate bank borrowings, bank deposits and bank
balances.
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6. WKEKREERAAEE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (continued)

(b) Credit risk

(9]

Annual Report 2016 &

Credit risk was managed on a group basis. Credit risk arises from
cash and cash equivalents, restricted bank deposits, as well as
credit exposures to customers, including outstanding receivables
and committed transactions. The Group only places deposits in
reputable banks and financial institutions and manages its credit risk
associated with trade receivable through the application of credit
approvals, credit rating and monitoring procedures.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the Group
has delegated a team responsible for determination of credit limits,
credit approvals and other monitoring procedures to ensure that
follow-up action is taken to recover overdue trade receivables.
In addition, the Group reviews the recoverable amount of each
individual trade debt at the end of each reporting date to ensure
that adequate impairment losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts. In this regard, the directors of the Company consider that
the Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk in relation
to trade receivables, bank balances and deposits, with exposure
spread over a number of counterparties and customers.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrying
amount of each financial asset (Note 23) in the consolidated
statement of financial position after deducting any impairment
provision.

Liquidity risk

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with
the Board, which has built a liquidity risk management framework
for the management of the Group’s short, medium and long-
term funding and liquidity management requirements. The Group
manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves and
banking facilities by continuously monitoring forecast and actual
cash flows and matching the maturity profiles of financial assets
and financial liabilities. The Group relies on its operating cash flows
as a significant source of liquidity.
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TR LB

nPtRRRRHEEREEEE &
EZERAKBEZEY  PHRRPES
ZERERSHESER 2 ER  BY —
EREzRBEREREZES - AEE
BEFEERRARERRESRE - A
kemEERSMABZRBAAE
TR A R TR FHERIRITARE » ¢t
mEERBIERERE - AEEKELER
ERBRDECTLEBRIR
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For the year ended 31st December 2016 BE T — X "F+_A=+—HILtFE

BEREER A REE

B

(c) RENVEREE (8

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 6.
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (continued)

(c) Liquidity risk (Continued)

TROMAEENRARBESHEIHA

The table below shows the Group’s financial liabilities analysing

into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period at
the reporting date to the contractual maturity date. The amounts
disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows.
Balances due within 12 months equal to their carrying balances, as

the impact of discounting is not significant.

B THIRZA BRI AN E D 2 S/
BE - RTPAEBEZSEDAORKR
BERE - ANBEREZFELFEK -
RNt EAREHZ AR EER R
ek o

Non-derivative FTEEMEE On demand
financial liabilities or within
1 year Over Carrying
BRERD 1 year Total amount
R—FR BiB—F st IREE
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FExT FHET FET
At 31st December 2016 R=ZEB—XRE
+=A=+—H
Trade payables FERI & 558 185,380 - 185,380 185,380
Other payables HAbpEf 20E 4,606 - 4,606 4,606
Bank borrowings (Note) HRITEE (M) 10,000 - 10,000 10,000
199,986 - 199,986 199,986
At 31st December 2015 RZZE—hF
+t=A=+—H
Trade payables BB SRR 244,907 = 244,907 244,907
Other payables HibpEf sx18 7,061 - 7,061 7,061
Bank borrowings (Note) BITEE (M) 20,000 = 20,000 20,000
271,968 - 271,968 271,968

Note: ffsT -

P e 2 B S MEE AGRR RV SR AT 8 SR L B
Bt A [RRERHN —F R 1R

Bank borrowings with a repayment on demand clause are included in the “on
demand or within 1 year” time band in the above maturity analysis. As at

m Automated Systems Holdings Limited & &) & 4% E AR A A

31st December 2016, the aggregate undiscounted principal amounts of such
bank loans amounted to HK$10,000,000 (2015: HK$20,000,000). Taking into
account the Group’s financial position, the directors of the Company do not
believe that it is probable that the banks will exercise their discretionary rights
to demand immediate repayment. The directors of the Company believe that
such bank loans will be repaid in accordance with the scheduled repayment
dates set out in the banking facilities.

BR - RZZE—AF+-A=+—8" %Z
SRITE XM AR AN S 58 A 10,000,000 78
JT(ZZ—A4F :20,000,00087T) - EEF
AEEHFBRR - AAREFHERITD
ARITERIEHERNBER - AAFES
e ZERTERBREBRITRERHZEE
BREFTHTEE HHIERK -
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For the year ended 31st December 2016 BE —T—F+_A=+—HILFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (continued)

(d) Fair value measurement

Financial instruments and non-financial assets measured at fair value
in the consolidated statement of financial position are categorised
into the three level fair value hierarchies as defined in HKFRS 13, “Fair
Value Measurement”:

e Level 1: Fair value measured only using level 1 inputs, i.e.
unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets
or liabilities at the measurement dates.

e Level 2: Fair value measured using level 2 inputs, i.e. observable
inputs which fail to meet with Level 1, and not using
unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs are inputs for which
market data are not available.

e Level 3: Fair value measured using significant unobservable
inputs.

(i)  Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets as at
31st December 2015 carried at fair value in the consolidated
statement of financial position on a recurring basis are grouped
into the three level fair value hierarchies as follows:

6. ¥EMERER N AEE

B
(d) DAREEE

REEMBHRRARANRABEFEZ
SRMTARGSREE  DR=EX/A
BEBR(EEREBUBHREEE
13 [AREEFE]D :

e FE:UE-BBAEFEZR
RfEE - BIARREEX A BN
ERAEERTISHHRARRE

o

]

e FE:UE_EBAEHEZA
AEE HEBGAEZATERMET
AWME—EWAE  BEHAEL
TMER AR 2 80K - TR
ZHAEABTEMNSEEERE
pd UNER

e FZE:ERATHEBRMEBEER
BABENTEZAAEE-

() EHEEREBBEEZAALEE

REBENREVBARRARA - 1BE
BUHRLEARABEIRZCRE
ERZZE—RF+ZA=+—HBZ
FEEEREDBUT=ZERARBED
&Rl

At 31st December 2015
R-B-BF+=A=+—8

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

8 B E= i
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tt Tt T FHT

Recurring fair value REHEAAREER
measurement sTE

Other financial asset HthemEE
(Note 29) (Bf#E29)

= 1,180 = 1,180
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For the year ended 31st December 2016 BE T — X "F+_A=+—HILtFE

BEREER A REE

B

(d) DAREEE®)

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (continued)

(d) Fair value measurement (Continued)

(i) Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities (Continued) () THEERTHEEZATIEE
(&)

Discounted cash flow is used for the purpose of measuring fair FE_MORRBENBETEZNU
values categorised in Level 2. Future cash flows are estimated ERRIBEMNEBFTE - RERBRER
based on the expected return of the investment by reference DEBEMGREUEMERIZETE
to similar products in the market. During the year ended 31st HEFmEE - REBEEZT—RF
December 2016, the other financial asset was disposed upon +ZA=+—HIFE HivEm
maturity (Note 29). BENEIERRHE (M15E29) »
The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets and AR EREME - BURE AT
liabilities carried at amortised cost approximate their fair values RremEERSRMBEZREE
due to their short maturities. HENAEERS °

(i) Fair value of non-financial assets (i) FEHEELTEE

m Automated Systems Holdings Limited & &) & 4% E AR A A

The following table presents the Group’s properties measured
at fair value on a recurring basis categorised into the three level
fair value hierarchies as follows:

TREJNAEEREEEREUR
RBEFEZNE  HR=EXA
EBEER :

At 31st December 2016
R-EB—XRE+=-A=+—H

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
EoE e E=E st
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHER FTHET FHER
Recurring fair value REMEAREE
measurement T2
Investment properties (Note 20) & ¥ (Mf7£20) - - 50,600 50,600
Land and buildings (Note 19) T AT
(FF5E19) - - 262,500 262,500
- - 313,100 313,100
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For the year ended 31st December 2016 BE —T—F+_A=+—HILFE

6. ¥EMERER N AEE

B

(d) DAREEE®)

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (continued)

(d) Fair value measurement (Continued)

(i) FFEEEELLEEE)

(i) Fair value of non-financial assets (Continued)

At 31st December 2015
R=T—hF+=-A=+—AH

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E—I= F_B E=E 1Bt
HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHT FHET FHET

Recurring fair value REHEAREER

measurement sTE

Investment properties (Note 20) & #3 (Ff#£20) - - 50,200 50,200
Land and buildings (Note 19) 3t &85 (Mf7E19) - - 259,650 259,650
- - 309,850 309,850

The Group’s land and buildings and investment properties were
stated at valuations made at 31st December 2016 and 2015
by an independent professional valuer at market value basis
which is determined by reference to market evidence of recent
transactions for similar properties.

The Group's finance department reviews the valuation
performed by independent valuers for the financial reporting
purposes. Discussion of valuation processes and results are held
at least once every year, which is in line with the Group’s annual
reporting date.

(iii) Information about Level 3 fair value measurements

Valuation techniques

fBEFR

AEEZ L REFRIBEEMET
BERZE—R"FEER_FT—hHF+=
A=+—B@EBIEEHEMSE
MiE LREMERRZ S 2EH
% RABYESORSMEREE
HITEMEFIR o

N 62 [ B 745 0 28 B FR B 7 (A (B B
TZEEMEM R ERE - fAE
BREZTwWEERRDEBFET
R BB FEARAE - -

(i) HEHE=/ELA EBEFEHEH

Unobservable input

TR EEE A RS

Investment properties
— Hong Kong
BEMZ
-&E

Land and buildings
— Hong Kong

T RIEF
-&F

Annual Report 2016 &

Market comparison
approach

TS LLEUE

Market comparison
approach

MIGLLEYE

Discount on quality of
the buildings

BFEE®

Discount on quality of
the buildings

BFESIE

2% to 10%

2% £ 10%

2% to 10%

2% % 10%
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For the year ended 31st December 2016 BE T — X "F+_A=+—HILtFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 6. BiRBREER A AEE
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (Continued) B

(d) Fair value measurement (Continued) (d) A2REEFE®)
(i) Information about Level 3 fair value measurements (Continued) (i) EEHE=FEB LA BEFEHNEH
(&)

The fair value of investment properties and land and buildings URBBEZREMER T REF
located in Hong Kong is determined using market comparison ZAREBENEATSHEESE
approach by reference to recent sales price of comparable ARAGERONLEMESTEIR
properties on a price per square foot basis, adjusted for a ZHEERMEBETE  WERASEY
premium or a discount specific to the quality and floor of XEEFLPE - aHEYEI=
the Group’s buildings compared to the recent sales. Higher EREHE  WAEERSMNAR
premium for higher quality buildings will result in a higher fair BEGE -

value measurement.

The movements in the balance of these Level 3 fair value FE-EBAnBEIEEAEKZEZHN
measurements are as follows: e
Investment

properties and buildings Total

REYE T RIEF et

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FAET FHT FAxT

At 1st January 2015 R—_ZT—RF—A—H 50,200 259,650 309,850
Depreciation charge EMR - (7,989) (7,989)

Revaluation surplus BhAH% - 7,989 7,989

At 31st December 2015 RZZE—RF

+-—A=+—H 50,200 259,650 309,850
At 1st January 2016 R=TB—XE—H—H 50,200 259,650 309,850
Depreciation charge FEMR - (8,243) (8,243)
Revaluation surplus BHEH% 400 11,093 11,493

At 31st December 2016 R = 3 NE

+=A= 50,600 262,500 313,100
Fair value gain of investment properties is recognised in the line REMEN DR BERGENGAE
item “fair value gain on revaluation of investment properties” mRENTEREEMEAALEE
on the consolidated statement of profit or loss. Was | BB iR -
Revaluation surplus of land and buildings are recognised THIREF I EHRBNGEE S
n “property revaluation reserve” under the consolidated Wk EW [V EGFEE] BR ‘:F‘
statement of comprehensive income. MR -
During the year ended 31st December 2016, there were no REBEEZT-—R"F+-A=1+—HIF
transfers between Level 1, 2 and 3 (2015: Nil). E-E2-E FEREZEZRILE

HE(CT-hF\E)
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For the year ended 31st December 2016 BE —T—F+_A=+—HILFE

7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 7. WA K 5 2F&

Revenue represents the net amounts received and receivable for goods
sold by the Group to outside customers, less returns and allowances, and
revenue from service contracts, and is analysed as follows:

WATEAKERSNA TP AL EE M (H
BRRE R KRB RBEODWRAZEK
KM 2 FEE - WO

2016

—E-XRE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FaT FAT
Sales of goods HEEm 840,007 845,774
Revenue from service contracts RERBELZWA 681,978 660,267
1,521,985 1,506,041

The Board has been identified as the chief operating decision maker.
The Board reviews the Group’s internal reporting in order to assess the
performance and allocate resources. The Board has determined the
operating segments based on the Group’s internal reporting.

The Group is currently organised into two (2015: two) operating divisions
— Information Technology Products (“IT Products”) and Information
Technology Services (“IT Services”). These divisions are the basis on which
the Group reports its primary segment information to the chief operating
decision maker. The business nature of each segment is disclosed as
follows:

IT Products

Being the business of information technology in supplying of information
technology and associated products.

IT Services
Being the business of information technology in providing systems

integration, software and consulting services, engineering support for
products and solutions and managed services.

Annual Report 2016 &

EEQCHERRIBRLERRE - EE]
25 B AR 5= B ) PO BB P S A BB AT 3R A8 e D D
B - EEGRENEEZ NEPERETL

B -

REBAME(ZT—RF : ME) KL
K - EAMRER [EARRER]) RE
AR IR ([ EARHRIRTE 1) o« LA EFT2
AEB2HRETEDHFENTIREERK
BZEE - BED M EHEERENT

EANRER

B AR E m MR E m 2 B AR
ESyi

BB RS
BB ARRA « MERERRY  ERR

R Rz TRk M EE IR 2 BB
ES R
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7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 7. WA K 7 88 & %l )

(Continued)

FZEEBZDWERZIIIAT

Segment information about these businesses is presented below:

BE-Z-—AF+-A=1t—-HLEFE

Year ended 31st December 2016

IT Products IT Services Total

BERNEER R R st

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000

T FExT Tz

Revenue from external customers REINDE P 2 A 840,007 681,978 1,521,985

Intersegment revenue D EPREURA 6,813 23,241 30,054

Segment revenue AEUA 846,820 705,219 1,552,039

Reportable segment profit AR &5 B A 58,196 39,199 97,395

Reportable segment assets ARESBEE 231,602 310,450 542,052

Reportable segment liabilities ARESHEE 199,717 146,529 346,246

Segment depreciation D EITE 2,258 9,766 12,024

Segment amortisation D EBEESH - 1,668 1,668
Additions to property, plant REME - BEREZE

and equipment 83 3,539 3,622

BE_T-—RF+-A=1+—HILFE

Year ended 31st December 2015

IT Products IT Services Total

BB Em BB R 15T

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FHET FHET

Revenue from external customers REIMBEF ZWA 845,774 660,267 1,506,041

Intersegment revenue DEBRURA 17,063 20,308 37,371

Segment revenue pan= 1L ON 862,837 680,575 1,543,412

Reportable segment profit AR 5 B A 39,515 32,355 71,870

Reportable segment assets AREDBEE 310,386 302,112 612,498

Reportable segment liabilities ASREDHBEE 240,586 150,133 390,719

Segment depreciation DEITE 2,486 9,375 11,861

Segment amortisation PaRils: iEic = 1,669 1,669
Additions to property, plant REWME - BB RH

and equipment 103 5,911 6,014

m Automated Systems Holdings Limited & &) & 4% E AR A A
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For the year ended 31st December 2016 HE—T— A F+_A=+—BILFE

7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 7. WA R D EHEE @

(Continued)

(a) B BEFFBE

(a) Segment accounting policies

Annual Report 2016 &

The accounting policies of the reportable segments are the same as
the Group's accounting policies described in Note 3. Performance
is measured based on segment profit that is used by the chief
operating decision maker for the purposes of resource allocation
and assessment of segment performance. Income tax expense is not
allocated to reportable segments.

The revenue, profit or loss, assets and liabilities of the Group are
allocated based on the operations of the segments.

Reportable segment profit is profit before income tax, excluding
unallocated other income, unallocated other (loss)/gain, net, share
of results of associates, unallocated loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment, unallocated depreciation for property, plant
and equipment that are used for all segments, fair value gain on
revaluation of investment properties, finance costs and unallocated
corporate expenses (mainly include staff costs and other general
administrative expenses) of the head office.

Reportable segment assets exclude interests in associates, deferred
income tax assets, unallocated restricted bank deposits, unallocated
cash and cash equivalents, and unallocated corporate assets
(mainly include property, plant and equipment and investment
properties that are used by all segments, prepayments, deposits, tax
recoverable and other financial asset).

Reportable segment liabilities exclude current income tax liabilities,
deferred income tax liabilities, unallocated corporate liabilities
(mainly include accrued charges of the head office and bank
borrowings).

AT R 3 AR T BR AR A B AT B T R T R
3R E R R R BERARR - KBRTY
REBEEERLEREERNDEERMT
B ERRIN D AR MFTE © PSR

X EDEERHRED A °

REBRWPA - B - BERAGER
DEPHEGREDR -

AR E D R AR N RS THATER -
TRERDEEMBA - RO BEEMF
(B18) e - BIAMERAEE K
HEHENE  BERREBIER R©
PIERRMERZ W% - BB RREBZA
DENE  BEREVEZAREEK
& MK ARERERZRDEAA
X (EE2RFEE TRAREM KT
BER) -

AHENHNEETRERE QA AE
& BIEMBHREE - Ao EXEHIR
TER - KROEREFREEBYRR
SEAREBE(ZZREME S EER
ZWE - BEMRBARREDE - 1A
NFRIE - B - AIRERIA R E SR
BE) °

AREDHNEETRENAMEREA
& BEMBHRAENRADEARAR
(E2eRERER 2B ERRRT
B8 -
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For the year ended 31st December 2016 BE T — X "F+_A=+—HILtFE

7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(Continued)

7. AR 2 EBE R =)

(b) Reconciliation of the reportable segment
revenue, profit or loss, assets and liabilities

(b) THE 2D EYA - B &
ERABENHIR

AEZ BN - B BERAE
EAREE 2 RIANBEERBARYR

Reportable segment revenue, profit or loss, assets and liabilities are
reconciled to results and total assets and total liabilities of the Group

as follows: T
Revenue
—EB-RE
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FEx FHT
Reportable segment revenue AIARE S EUA 1,552,039 1,543,412
Elimination of intersegment revenue i $55 SBEUA (30,054) (37,371)
Revenue per consolidated statement F4RAIBE R FIFRAIUA
of profit or loss 1,521,985 1,506,041

5 BB A SR AR A DK R R HRER ©

Intersegment revenue is charged at cost plus a percentage of profit

mark-up.
Profit or loss e = 2016 2015
—E-—RF —T—AF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T
Reportable segment profit AIERE D ED ﬁﬂ 97,395 71,870
Unallocated amounts: RO BERIEA
Unallocated other income Ko @Eﬁﬁﬂ”ﬁl)\ 5,474 2,839
Unallocated other (loss)/gain, net Ko EAMF (BE) ke (3,874) 3,102
Fair value gain on revaluation BEREMHEZ
of investment properties AR EEKD 400 -
Unallocated loss on disposal ROBHEWE
of property, plant 5 K 54 2 1R
and equipment (173) -
Unallocated depreciation ROBITE (5.472) (5,667)
Share of results of associates it A NCIE S (8,540) (5,914)
Finance costs B RS AR AR (793) (1,005)
Unallocated corporate expenses RoBLARIFEX (45,439) (37,647)
Profit before income tax per EEmRIHRA
consolidated statement Flf\ﬁfr?—gr T AT Al
of profit or loss 38,978 27,578

m Automated Systems Holdings Limited & &) & 4% E AR A A
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For the year ended 31st December 2016 BE —T—F+_A=+—HILFE

7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 7. WA R D EHEE @

(Continued)

(b) Reconciliation of the reportable segment (b) IHREZDBYA - B &

revenue, profit or loss, assets and liabilities EREENHR®)
(Continued)
Assets i 2016 2015
—E—AEF —T—h%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHExT FHT
Reportable segment assets AREDHEE 542,052 612,498
Unallocated assets: ROBLEE
Interests in associates NG ] 53,458 58,382
Deferred income tax assets RIEFTISREE 953 679
Unallocated restricted bank RO BEZRHIERITIER
deposits 876 -
Unallocated cash and cash ROBRE RIREEFED
equivalents 237,755 172,955
Unallocated corporate assets ROBAREE 331,234 330,607
Total assets per consolidated R E AR R YR
statement of financial position MEERTE 1,166,328 1,175,121
Liabilities 2015
—ZT—hF
HK$000 HK$'000
FTHExT TR
Reportable segment liabilities AHREDMBERE 346,246 390,719
Unallocated liabilities: AofafE
Current income tax liabilities ENEAFF1S T B & 7,447 1,103
Deferred income tax liabilities RIS B E 45,899 44,510
Unallocated corporate liabilities ROBEARIAE 47,703 55,439
Total liabilities per consolidated RERE BB KRR
statement of financial position EOR=REvck 447,295 491,771
The following table sets out information about the geographical TREINEAAEERBINER P 2
segment location of the Group’s revenue from external customers ARERBEE (SR T AKREMF
and its non-current assets (other than financial instruments and MEERIN 2HBUESE - BF 2
deferred income tax assets). The geographical location of customers e g HERNAERERBRELE
is based on the location at which the services were provided or the Yz FPEHh - RBAIERBE E 2 =
goods were delivered. The geographical location of the specified UEMS W% BEKRERIREY
non-current assets is based on the physical location of the asset XTRBZEE 2B 2R - E&F
in the case of property, plant and equipment and investment BEAEEE D BB 2 TR - Mk
properties, the location of the operations to which they are N R RER BRI T

allocated in the case of the intangible assets and the location of
operations in the case of interests in associates.
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e Mg mRMEE
For the year ended 31st December 2016 BE T — X "F+_A=+—HILtFE

7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 7. WA KD EHEE @

(Continued)

(b) Reconciliation of the reportable segment (b) IHREZDBYA - B &

revenue, profit or loss, assets and liabilities EREENHIER@®)
(Continued)
Revenue from external Specified non-current
customers assets
REMBES ZBWA EEFRBEE

Place of domicile 2016 2015 2016 2015
—E-RE Z=—HF ZE-RE ZZ—hF

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET THIT FET THEIT

Hong Kong Bk 1,422,442 1,381,303 378,654 388,414

Mainland China 3 A 3, 3,371 5,789 823 181

Macau SERPT 25,302 59,882 1,113 120

Thailand ZH 51,008 30,747 107 138

Taiwan E) 19,862 28,320 374 560

1,521,985 1,506,041 381,071 389,413

8. OTHER INCOME 8. Hfzlt A

2016 2015

—EB-RE —T—AF

HK$’'000 HK$’'000

FHExT FHT

Interest on bank deposits BITFERFIE 40 54
Rental income from investment REFEYHE 2 BEWA

properties (Note 20) (FF7E20) 3,639 2,956

Rental income from sublease REEHEzHeBA 311 294

Bad debts recovery AR EI 185 =

Others Ei 1,622 1,233

5,797 4,537
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For the year ended 31st December 2016 BE —T—F+_A=+—HILFE

9. OTHER (LOSS)/GAIN, NET 9. HMFE (FE) WH

2016 2015
—E—XREF —F—RF

HK$°000 HK$'000
T FHT

Loss on disposal of property, plant and ~ H&EYE - FE K &RE

equipment (Note 40) Z B8 (FiEE 40) (182) (19)
Gain on deemed disposal of partial RIELEBE R RE D
interests in associates (Note 31) T2 W (MHEE31) 5,714 5,281
Provision for customers’ claim EPRERE (9,630) =
Exchange gain/(loss), net & H s (E1E) 23 E 224 (2,633)
(3,874) 2,629
10. FINANCE INCOME 10. BA UL A
Finance income represents accretion of discount recognised upon initial S A FIRE N R BEEREKREE
recognition of finance lease receivables to their fair values (2015: same). HEFRBRERNBRRIEM(ZT—HF:
HE) e
11. FINANCE COSTS 1. B A
2016 2015
—E—XEF —T—RF
HK$’'000 HK$’'000
FaxT FHT
Interest on bank borrowings RITEEFS 549 865
Other interest expenses HhA S 244 140
793 1,005
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e Mg mRMEE
For the year ended 31st December 2016 BE T — X "F+_A=+—HILtFE

12. PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX 12. BRFAB B AR F

Profit before income tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

FRETSTEREA D EHRR (GHA) THIRIA -

2016 2015
—E-RE —E—hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
Auditors’ remuneration: BTN & -
Audit services ZE R
— Current year - REE 1,238 1,255
— Underprovision in respect - BEFEREETR
of prior year 62 104
Non-audit services AL E RS 460 477
Depreciation and amortisation: e R
Property, plant and equipment M - BE k&
(Note 19) (BF=E19) 17,496 17,528
Intangible assets (included in cost A E (B IE R B RS
of services rendered) (Note 21) Z A (MisE21) 1,668 1,669
Directors’ emoluments (Note 14) BEME (H5E14) 5,587 6,750
Employee benefit expenses EERINAX (TEEEEME)
(excluding directors’ emoluments) (PfEE13)
(Note 13) 430,213 415,599
Professional fees for proposed HRNKEEENEERE
acquisition (Note 484iii)) & A (B[I7E 48(ii) 5,575 -
Operating lease rentals in respect of: KERERS
Office premises NS 6,863 7,340
Computer equipment BN 418 418
Provision for impairment of FEWE 5 R IE R B
trade receivables (Note 25) (FfizE25) 4,187 274
Provision for impairment of amounts BHITRENE P RIERE
due from customers for contract work B - 18
Provision for customers’ claim EERERE 9,630 -
Reversal of provision for impairment FEWE 5 FIH 2 B B R T
of trade receivables (Note 25) (Mt 25) (4) (158)
Addition/(Reversal) of provision PRET SRR (BiERE)
for obsolete inventories, net ZFE 69 (49)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MRS R R M EE

For the year ended 31st December 2016 BE —T—F+_A=+—HILFE

13. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES BEERAFXZ(FTEEE
(EXCLUDING DIRECTORS' EME)
EMOLUMENTYS)
2016 2015
—E-XRE —ZT—ARF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FaxT FAT
Salaries and other benefits e REMET 398,099 384,307
Performance related incentive bonus FRINEEZ RENEA 21,191 20,635
Equity-settled share-based payment LARR D REEE S T 2 K
expenses - 25
Retirement benefit scheme contributions 3R K@ 5T 214 5k 10,923 10,632
430,213 415,599
14. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS UWESHE
Directors’ emoluments, disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules, section BIE EmARA - BBECAFEAINE 383 (1)
383(1) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the IRARC R B (REEEFZER) ROIDE2
Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors) HHBENESZBESMT ¢

Regulation, is as follows:

2016 2015

—E-RF —E-hF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHT

Fees He 616 594

Other emoluments: Hibih< :

Salaries and other benefits e REMER 2,125 5,013

Performance related incentive bonus FIRE W RENEA 2,846 993

Retirement benefit scheme contributions  E/R&EFI5HE] 3k - 142
Equity-settled share-based payment AR RERR S 2 A

expenses - 8

5,587 6,750
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e M RRME

For the year ended 31st December 2016 BE T — X "F+_A=+—HILtFE

14. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (continued) UNEEMWE @
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the seven (2015: twelve) ARNARENKEFEA(ZT—RF: +=
directors were as follows: f)EEZMemT :

Year ended 31st December 2016
HE-EB-AET-A=1t-HLEE
Performance

related Equity-settled
incentive  Retirement share-based

Salaries LT benefit payment

and other (Note a) scheme expenses
benefits ~ &EEEZ contributions B4
Fees FER REREA RIEN  REBEZM Total
Name of director ok Hitn & (Hizta) HE 52 X oL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET TET TET TET

Wang Weihang T#m 55 - - - - 55
Wang Yueou (Note b) T ER (fizh) - 1,885 2,846 - - 4,731
Li Wei (Note ¢) F&(fitsto) 77 240 - - - 317
Cui Yong (Note d) EB (it d) 55 - - - - 55
Pan Xinrong (Note e) EIRE (Fifzte) 147 - - - - 147
Deng Jianxin (Note e) B (fiste) 161 - - - - 161
Ye Fang (Note f) B (Bse) 121 - - - - 121

616 2,125 2,846 - - 5,587
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e MRS R R M EE

For the year ended 31st December 2016 BE —T—F+_A=+—HILFE

14. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (continued) UVEEWNE =

Year ended 31st December 2015
BZE-Z-I5+-A=t—HLEE

Performance

related Equity-settled

incentive Retirement  share-based

Salaries bonus benefit payment

and other (Note a) scheme expenses

contributions MR

Fees ek BRIVET  REESH
Name of director ik H iR ) B P53 e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET BT
Wang Weihang T#M 55 - - - - 55
Wang Yueou (Note b) FERE(fizb) - 439 220 - = 659
Li Wei (Note ¢) F& (o) 21 - - - - 21
Cui Yong (Note d) 5 (Md) 16 = = = = 16
Pan Xinrong (Note e) RS (Fiizke) 34 = = = = 34
Deng Jianxin (Note e) s (fise) 36 = = = = 36
Ye Fang (Note f) 5 (KizEe) 7 = = = = 7

Leung Tat Kwong, Simon* REN*

(Note g) (MEg) = 5,120 928 189 8 6,245
Hu Liankui (Note h) LG EL) 57 - - - - 57
Young Meng Ying (Note i) EA(GET)) 143 - - - - 143
Lu Jiagi (Note i) =351 ) 119 - - - - 119
Xu Peng (Note i) e (et 106 - - - - 106

594 5,559 1,148 189 8 7,498

Leung Tat Kwong, Simon* RiEN*
(Note g) (MizEg) - (546) (155) 47) = (748)

594 5013 993 142 8 6,750
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For the year ended 31st December 2016 HE T — A F+_-_A=+—HBILtFE

14. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(@) The performance related incentive bonus are determined as a percentage of
profit for the year of the Group.

(b) Mr. Wang Yueou (“Mr. Wang”) was appointed as an Executive Director and
the Acting Chief Executive Officer of the Company with effect from 17th
September 2015 and 1st October 2015 respectively. The amount of “Salaries
and other benefits” disclosed above included HK$165,000 service fees in
regard of other services rendered to the Company during the year ended
31st December 2015. Mr. Wang was re-designated from the Acting Chief
Executive Officer to the Chief Executive Officer and resigned as the Chief
Financial Officer and the Joint Company Secretary of the Company with effect
from 1st September 2016.

(0 Mr. Li Wei was appointed as a Non-Executive Director of the Company with
effect from 17th September 2015 and as the Chairman of the Board with
effect from 30th September 2015.

(d) Mr. Cui Yong was appointed as a Non-Executive Director of the Company
with effect from 17th September 2015.

(e)  Mr. Pan Xinrong and Mr. Deng Jianxin were appointed as Independent Non-
Executive Directors of the Company with effect from 30th September 2015.

(f)  Ms. Ye Fang was appointed as an Independent Non-Executive Director of the
Company with effect from 12th November 2015.

(@) Mr. Leung Tat Kwong, Simon resigned as an Executive Director and the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company with effect from 1st October 2015.

(h)  Mr. Hu Liankui resigned as a Non-Executive Director of the Company and the
Chairman of the Board due to his retirement with effect from 30th September
2015.

(i)  Ms. Young Meng Ying, Mr. Lu Jiagi and Ms. Xu Peng resigned as Independent
Non-Executive Directors of the Company with effect from 23rd September
2015.

* The amount included HK$748,000 recognised by i-Sprint Innovations Pte Ltd
(“i-Sprint Innovation”), an associate of the Group, in 2015.

During the year ended 31st December 2016, no remuneration has been
paid by the Group to the directors as an inducement to join or upon
joining the Group and no directors have waived any remuneration (2015:
Nil).

UVEEHE =

() RAEMZRBEADBRAEEFE RN
BOLLEE °

(b) FTEBEE(ELLE]D)EZEAEAARNIT
EERRETREAE  »E-Z—FHFAN
AttBARE-_E—A&+A—HAEEK-
ENEBEZ [Fe kA MET] SEREEE
—E-AF+ A=+ ALEEREXRT]
TR HEMARTE 2 165,000 8 TR E - THE
BRBITREHFATAITRERLETAD
A SRERBEARWE BT —RF
NA—BBER -

© FEELBEEARATENITES A
T-HEAATLARLER REEEAHE
FELF - AT AFNASHARER-

(d) EBELEERZERRRAFERTES 5=
T-RFENATEREEX -

(6 BEMEARERBEMEERZERTRAE
VHEHITES B-T-RFAA=tTAHR
X

( EFLIEZEARRDABYIFRITES -
B-ZE—AF+—A+=-BRER-

(9 REXREEBREARARANTEERITRAE
- B-Z-hFTA—RREX-

(h) MHEBEREERRKRMBERRRERITES
HREEGEIR B-_Z—RFAA=1TAR
R o

() BEREZE EEBmEERMEZLIHTR
ARBYFNITEE BT —HENA
Zt+H=HBER -

* FXBRBEZSHAEASEE —REER
Ali-Sprint Innovations Pte Ltd ([i-Sprint
Innovation |) 74 =& — A S ##72 Z 748,000 7
=0

REBE-Z—X<"E+-A=+—RALFE"
AREBYEAFEEEMAREBRM 2
e BESBEEMECMALHE (=F
—FRF ) o

m Automated Systems Holdings Limited & &) & 4% E AR A A

Annual Report 2016 3§



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MRS R R M EE

For the year ended 31st December 2016 BE —T—F+_A=+—HILFE

15.FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS B hAEHESHZME
EMOLUMENTS

The five highest paid individuals in the Group for the year included one FAREEm T2 EERE—R(ZT—1
director (2015: one director), details of whose emoluments are set out F:—REZ BEZMeFBEERNEX
in Note 14 above. The emoluments of the remaining four (2015: four) MIFE 1455 - FRESBNE(ZT—HF:
highest paid individuals for the year were as follows: &)z mxmFEE ZMEFENT
2016 2015
ZEB—RF —T—h%F
HK$000 HK$'000
FExT FHT
Salaries and other benefits e REAMET] 5,802 5,088
Performance related incentive bonus FIHRE 2 REITEAL 8,269 4,669
Retirement benefit scheme contributions B {R#&FIEHEI 3k 165 258
14,236 10,015
Their emoluments were within the following bands: KZE 2 BeNF T5IHE

Number of individuals

AR
2016
S B
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 #7T% 2,500,000 7T = 2
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 % L% 3,000,000/ 7T 2 2
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 3,000,001 7T % 3,500,000 7T 1 =
HK$5,500,001 to HK$6,000,000 5,500,001 /& L% 6,000,000 7 7T 1 =
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For the year ended 31st December 2016 BE T — X "F+_A=+—HILtFE

/8
16.INCOME TAX EXPENSE 16. FTE BB <
2016 2015
—EBE—XKE —ZT—AhF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHExT FHT
Current taxation: BNEARIIA
Hong Kong profits tax BEFISH 10,723 4,388
Overseas taxation TBHNGITE 509 70
(Over)/Under-provision in respect BEFE (BREEE)
of prior years: BETR
Hong Kong profits tax BEFISH (223) 816
Overseas taxation THNGITE (114) (31
10,895 5,243
Deferred taxation (Note 37): IRAERIE (P7E37)

Current year REE (714) 2,631
Income tax expense FriSBi 10,181 7,874
Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2015: BEFERE RBAFE M ERTOREFIZ
16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits for the year. Taxation on HE165% (=T —HF :16.5%) EH #
overseas profits has been calculated on the estimated assessable profits & o BINGEF 2 HIBAIRRAF E AT ER
for the year at the rates of taxation prevailing in the countries and PRI AEBELEBHERR MR Z

regions in which the Group operates. WITREETHE o
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16. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MRS R R M EE

For the year ended 31st December 2016 BE —T—F+_A=+—HILFE

The tax on the Group's profit before income tax differs from the
theoretical amount that would arise using the weighted average tax rate
applicable to profits of the consolidated entities as follows:

16. FT 1S BBA 2 )

REERRPEHRANG N 2 BRERAEAR
EHEREN ZINETORTEHZERE

BMZERNT

2016 2015

—E—RE —T—RF

HK$’'000 HK$'000

FExT FHT

Profit before income tax R TS R0 A g A 38,978 27,578
Tax at Hong Kong profits tax rate REBTISHNE16.5% T8

of 16.5% (2015: 16.5%) ZHB(ZE—AHF : 16.5%) 6,431 4,550

Tax effects of: -7

Expenses not deductible for tax purpose  FE&7 7% EN ] a2 S 2,541 1,453

Income not taxable for tax purpose TER T 7 E SRR T 2 WA (1,255) (1,177)
Effect of different tax rates of overseas /BN BFTE B Z TRIF R

operations -7 (414) (310)

Tax losses not recognised REERR < BIEE 1R 1,599 1,526

(Over)/Under-provision in prior years BEFE (BREEE) BETE (337) 785

Others Efth 1,616 1,047

Income tax expense FriSBimx 10,181 7,874

The weighted average applicable tax rate was 26.1% (2015: 28.6%).

17. DIVIDENDS

Dividends recognised as distribution
during the year:

Final dividend in respect of the
year ended 31st December 2014
of 2.5 HK cents per share

MBI ERANER261% (ZF—HF :

28.6%) °

17. 88

RENERDD IR ZIE -

BE_T—ME+-_A=1+—H

IFFE 2 REAB B &A% 2.5 1l

2016
g%

HK$'000
FTET

2015
—ZT—RF
HK$'000
FHT

7,908

The directors did not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the

year ended 31st December 2016 (2015: Nil).

BT T RIRBEBE_T R F+A
=St ALFEZRERE(ZE—RF:

&) -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e Mg mRMEE
For the year ended 31st December 2016 BE T — X "F+_A=+—HILtFE

18. EARNINGS PER SHARE 18. EREF

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share attributable to ARRRAFFE AL EREAREERTF

equity holders of the Company is based on the following data: TR T OISR E
2016 2015
—E-RF —T—h%F
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FEx FHIT

Earnings for the purpose of basic AUFTEERERK

and diluted earnings per share HERR 2 B 28,797 19,704

Number of shares

RHEE
2016
—E-RE
‘000
TR
Weighted average number of AU ESRERET 2
ordinary shares for the purpose of ELBAR hniE T
basic earnings per share 350,770 347,396*
Effect of deemed issue of shares under  RIEA A R EEAREA £
the Company’s share option scheme RIEBITTRODZE 132 1,864*
Weighted average number of ARG E GREE AT
ordinary shares for the purpose of TR INETE
diluted earnings per share 350,902 349,260
*  Adjusted for bonus issue of shares during the year ended 31st December BT RFRTARAREREGS MR
2016 as disclosed in note 32 to the consolidated financial statements. RMIEE32 AHE -
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For the year ended 31st December 2016 BE —T—F+_A=+—HILFE

19. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 19.9% - HEKRKRE

Furniture Computer
[ENGEN and and office
buildings fixtures Motor equipment
TR B vehicles ERR Total
gF R#E RE BAERE st
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THEL AT T BT BT
At 1st January 2015 R-E-7&-A-H
Cost or valuation AR E 259,650 27,939 1,483 125,568 414,640
Accumulated depreciation 25tiE - (25,475) (367) (110,313) (136,155)
Net book amount BREFE 259,650 2,464 1,116 15,255 278,485
Year ended Bz-Z-1%
31st December 2015 +=A=+-H
LLFE
Opening net book amount R #E 259,650 2,464 1,116 15,255 278,485
Additions NE = 3,497 116 6,011 9,624
Disposals HE - = = (66) (66)
Depreciation and e RBETR
amortisation charge (7,989) (1,378) (275) (7,886) (17,528)
Exchange realignment 5 R - ) 2) (11) 2)
Revaluation surplus EhAH 7,989 = = = 7,989
Closing net book amount HREREFE 259,650 4,574 955 13,303 278,482

At 31st December 2015 RZZ-EF

+=A=+-H

Cost or valuation AT EE 259,650 31,362 1,579 127,918 420,509

Accumulated depreciation e = (26,788) (624) (114,615) (142,027)

Net book amount EEFE 259,650 4,574 955 13,303 278,482

Comprising: a8

At cost AR = 31,362 1,579 127,918 160,859

At valuation fhE 259,650 = = = 259,650
259,650 31,362 1,579 127,918 420,509
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For the year ended 31st December 2016 BE T — X "F+_A=+—HILtFE

19. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(Continued)

19.

Y%  BMERRZE®

Furniture Computer
Land and and and office
buildings fixtures Motor equipment
Tk B4 vehicles ER Total
gF R%E AE WAERE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT THT T THT BT
At 1st January 2016 R-E-~&E-A-A
Cost or valuation A 259,650 31,362 1,579 127,918 420,509
Accumulated depreciation ZEHTE - (26,788) (624) (114,615) (142,027)
Net book amount FEFE 259,650 4,574 955 13,303 278,482
Year ended BE-E-—XRE
31st December 2016 +=A=1+-A
LEE
Opening net book amount BIREFE 259,650 4,574 955 13,303 278,482
Additions AE - 2,297 - 2,210 4,507
Disposals & - (208) - (10) (218)
Depreciation and & R AR
amortisation charge (8,243) (1,655) (278) (7,320) (17,496)
Exchange realignment B 5 R - (39) - 3 (36)
Revaluation surplus BhAH% 11,093 - - - 11,093
Closing net book amount BARREFE 262,500 4,969 677 8,186 276,332
At 31st December 2016 RZB-RE
+=ZA=1+-H
Cost or valuation KAEE 262,500 26,858 1,579 125,115 416,052
Accumulated depreciation BiiE - (21,889) (902) (116,929) (139,720)
Net book amount EmFE 262,500 4,969 677 8,186 276,332
Comprising: '
At cost B - 26,858 1,579 125,115 153,552
At valuation fhfa 262,500 - - - 262,500
262,500 26,858 1,579 125,115 416,052

The Group’s land and buildings were stated as valuations made at 31st
December 2016 and 2015. The land and buildings were last revalued
by an independent professional valuer, at 31st December 2016 and
2015, at market value basis which is determined by reference to market
evidence of recent transactions for similar properties. The revaluation
gave rise to a revaluation surplus net of applicable deferred income
taxes of approximately HK$9,263,000 (2015: HK$6,671,000) which has
been credited to the property revaluation reserve. Details of fair value
measurements are set out in Note 6(d).

AEBMZ THREFHER-Z—AER=
T-AF+-A=t+—B2HETKR - £t
REFHRE - AHABLEEGHEMNR S
—NER—ZT—RAF+-A=+—HEmE
BEERBTERG - HREMS EREMED
MR G2 BREE - SR ERELTHR
SRBEEEHAHL,263,0008 L (=F
—AF :6,671,00087T) * WEFFARYE
BEHEE - AR BEEFBEENME6W) -
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For the year ended 31st December 2016 BE —T—F+_A=+—HILFE

19. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 19.%%¥ - BERZE =

Annual Report 2016 &

(Continued)

As at 31st December 2016, if the land and buildings had not been
revalued, they would have been included in these consolidated financial
statements at historical cost, less accumulated depreciation and
amortisation, of approximately HK$42,165,000 (2015: HK$44,230,000).

Depreciation and amortisation of the Group's property, plant and
equipment have been charged to the consolidated statement of profit or

loss as follows:

RZZ—ARE+_A=+—8 Mt kig
FARWER  HESRELKAMER KT
BN H4942,165,0008 T( —Z T — R 4F -
44,230,000 %70 ) 5t AFZE AR A BT TR ©

AEBZYE  BERREBITEREHED
e BaR P HIRAT -

2016 2015

—E-RF —T—hF

HK$’'000 HK$'000

FH&xT FHT

Cost of goods sold and services rendered  $4& K IR 4 AR 7% 2 Ak A 10,533 10,631
Selling expenses HEEH 2,325 2,116
Administrative expenses THER 4,638 4,781
17,496 17,528

As at 31st December 2016, the Group had pledged land and buildings
with a carrying amount of HK$107,250,000 (2015: HK$105,450,000) to
secure banking facilities granted to the Group as mentioned in Note 45.

20. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

KT FE4SFTa - K= —A~F+=A=+—
H @ A& EDHAIRE 2% 107,250,000 %
TT(=Z—F % : 105,450,000/ 7T) 2 L
MIEFLESK FASEZRITRE ©

2. REW*

2016 2015
ZB—RF —T—h%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THExT FHT

At valuation fh{E
At 1st January n—HA—A 50,200 50,200
Fair value gain ArEEKE 400 -
At 31st December ®+=—A=+—8 50,600 50,200
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For the year ended 31st December 2016 BE T — X "F+_A=+—HILtFE

20. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

The following amounts have been recognised in the consolidated

statement of profit or loss:

20. REWZE =)

AT BERGRIRBERER -

2016 2015

ZE—XRF —E—hF

HK$’'000 HK$'000

FExT FAxT

Rental income (Note 8) HEWA (31 8) 3,639 2,956
Direct operating expense arising EXHSWAZIREMEMES

from investment properties that ZEERERY
generate rental income 337 321

The investment properties of the Group were last revalued by an
independent professional valuer at 31st December 2016 and 2015
at market value basis, which is determined by reference to market
evidence of recent transactions for similar properties. Details of fair value
measurement are set out in Note 6(d).

The future aggregate minimum rental receivables under non-cancellable
operating leases are set out in Note 43.

As at 31st December 2016 and 2015, none of the investment properties
were pledged to secure banking facilities granted to the Group.

REBZRENMERE - XABYEEME
MA—E—RNER-_E—HFE+-_A=+—
AEmEREEFETEM  H2EMS LR
HYRMMZ G2 EMERE - AR BEE
FHIEF MM 6(d) °

BRETATHECEROEKZ A RFEASD
REEAMITEAS -

RZE—REN_FT—AF+-_A=+—
B ANEBWEKBERREDE - LES
BT AEBZRTHE
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21.INTANGIBLE ASSETS

At 1st January 2015

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MRS R R M EE

For the year ended 31st December 2016 BE —T—F+_A=+—HILFE

NEBEREE

R=-Z—HF—HA—H

Deferred
development
cost

IETE B R R A
HK$'000
THIT

Cost %N 5,006
Accumulated amortisation and impairment REHEE ORI A (988)
Net book amount BRESE 4,018
Year ended 31st December 2015 BE—Z-AF+-A=+—HLEE

Opening net book amount EA¥NARENFE 4,018
Amortisation #iE (1,669)
Closing net book amount BRAREFE 2,349

At 31st December 2015 R-EB—HF+=-A=+—H

Cost B AR 5,006
Accumulated amortisation and impairment RETE RO (E (2,657)
Net book amount FREVFE 2,349

At 1st January 2016 R=F—XRFE—H—H

Cost AR 5,006
Accumulated amortisation and impairment Rt O E (2,657)
Net book amount RS A 2,349
Year ended 31st December 2016 BE-Z—XR"E+-A=+—HLEE

Opening net book amount HRWIBREFE 2,349
Amortisation HH (1,668)
Closing net book amount HRAREFE 681

At 31st December 2016 R-ZE—XRE+=-A=t+—H

Cost PR 5,006

Accumulated amortisation and impairment RETEEE RORE (4,325)
Net book amount BREVFE 681

During the year ended 31st December 2016, amortisation of
approximately HK$1,668,000 (2015: HK$1,669,000) has been charged
to “cost of services rendered” in the consolidated statement of profit or

loss.

RBEZZT—A"F+ZA=+—HLHF
£ #$5491,668,0008 T( - — R F
1,669,000 0) ERfrA B R 2 [1IRHEAR

52 B FPHIRR o
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For the year ended 31st December 2016 BE T — X "F+_A=+—HILtFE

22. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

22 s N\ Bl

2016 2015
—E-RF —E-hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
At 1st January n—HA—H 58,382 63,569
Deemed disposal of partial interests RIEHEMERFZ
in associates (Note 31) B < M (KEE31) 5,714 5,333
Share of results of associates il = NCIE (8,540) (5,914)
Share of other comprehensive JE(REE AR E M2 E
(loss)/income of associates (B18) s (686) 78
Dividends received B AR 2 (486) (481)
Exchange realignment b 5, A (926) (4,203)
At 31st December W+—_A=+—H 53,458 58,382
Particulars of the Group’s unlisted associates at 31st December 2016 and RZE-—RE+-_A=+—HBE=ZZ—H%F
31st December 2015 are as follows: TZA=+—H  xEBEZF LHEE QT
FEWT

Name of associate

HENTEM

iN Systems (Macao) Limited
BB R ORPT) BRAR)

ASL Automated Services
(Thailand) Limited

i-Sprint Innovations (HK)
Limited (Note (ii))
L (BB RERAERA R (M)

m Automated Systems Holdings Limited & &) & 4% E AR A A

Country/place
of incorporation

and operations
AR S K A 2

Macau
et

Thailand
ZE

Hong Kong
00

Percentage of
nominal value of issued
ordinary share capital held
indirectly by the Company

AOABEIE

ERTEBRAZERE
BRI

2016 2015

—g-x%

33.3% 333%

49% 49%

35.42% 39.80%

Principal activities

Provision of engineering and

software services

RETRERAIRS

Provision of engineering and

software services

RETERZMRS

Provision of distributing, and
implementing technology risk
management products

1R 85 R B R

R ERERES
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For the year ended 31st December 2016 BE —T—F+_A=+—HILFE

22. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 2 HE N TR e
Particulars of the Group’s unlisted associates at 31st December 2016 and RZE—ARF+_A=+—HBEZZT—HF
31st December 2015 are as follows: (Continued) +ZRA=+—H '  AEEZFLmEE AR

FHENT : (8)

Percentage of
nominal value of issued
Country/place ordinary share capital held
of incorporation indirectly by the Company

and operations EAREERE
Name of associate A AR L R AR 2 ERTEERAZEE Principal activities
BHENTER BxR 2 EEARL TEEH
2015

Beijing i-Sprint Technology Ltd The PRC 35.42% 39.80% Provision of software
(Note (ii)) HE development, distributing,
IREAERBEREEAT implementing and supporting
(PR=E (i) technology risk management
products

RUBRMFHEE - 28 BiERk
XERMEREEERED

i-Sprint Innovations (Beijing) Ltd The PRC 35.42% 39.80% Provision of software
(Note (ii)) H development, distributing,
ZallE (L) R BREERR implementing and supporting
(B=E (i) technology risk management
products

RELHFEE - D Bk
XERMEREEERES

i-Sprint Holdings Limited ("i-Sprint”) Cayman Islands 35.42% N/ATE R Investment holding
(Notes (i) & (ii)) CFiHE (i) (i) Hels REZR
i-Sprint Innovations Pte Ltd Singapore 35.42% 39.80% Investment holding, provision
(Note (i) (P& (ii)) AN of developing, distributing,

implementing and supporting
technology risk management
products

RERR - etz - 984 -
Bk ERITEREEERER
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For the year ended 31st December 2016 BE T — X "F+_A=+—HILtFE

22. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 22, Bt N R R o)

Particulars of the Group’s unlisted associates at 31st December 2016 and RZE—RF+_A=1T—HBE=ZZ—hH%F
31st December 2015 are as follows: (Continued) +=A=+—8" K%lZ?thEﬁ?%’D\
BT : (B

~

b1

Percentage of
nominal value of issued

Country/place ordinary share capital held
of incorporation indirectly by the Company
and operations AAEEERE
Name of associate AEER S R AR 2 ERTEBERAZHE Principal activities
BENE BB BX 2 EEARL TEEK
2015
“T—RF
i-Sprint Innovations Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia 35.42% 39.80% Provision of distributing,
(Note (ii)) (5 (ii)) SRAD implementing and supporting
technology risk management
products
REDH - B KRR
EleE R EmER
i-Sprint Innovations Inc. The US 35.42% 39.80% Provision of distributing,
(Note (ii)) (B3 (i) xE and implementing technology

risk management products

kfﬁ”‘ﬁﬁ& MR

IR EE TS

i-Sprint Investment Limited Hong Kong 35.42% 39.80% Investment holding, provision
(Note (i) (FF&¥ (ii)) B of distributing and implementing
technology risk management

products

REZER - k@‘%ﬁﬁﬁ&ﬁﬁm&ﬂ]

IR EE TS

Notes: Bft%E

(i) i-Sprint was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 4th August 2016, i-Sprint () -SprintR=T—AFNANARHEHS
and i-Sprint Innovations Pte Ltd has undertaken a share swap during the & ffft AX 32 - i-Sprint K& i-Sprint Innovations Pte
year and as a result of the share swap, i-Sprint Innovations Pte Ltd became a Ltd PAEF RETTHAAR - 0 Bt AR - i-Sprint
wholly-owned subsidiary of i-Sprint and the Group continue to hold the same Innovations Pte Ltd B 4 i-Sprint &) — % 2 &}
equity interest in i-Sprint. BAR - MAKEEERRA -Sprint W IERE AR

¥ -

(i) i-Sprint and its subsidiaries (collectively “i-Sprint Group”) is a strategic (i) i Sprint&EW%@‘j(iﬁﬁi [i-Sprint £H |) /&
partner for the Group’s growth in the aspect of solution business through its EHMARATREBCEENBRAREEE
expertise. During the year, the Group's percentage of shareholding in i-Sprint R2ZREEERBH - REMR - i-Sprint[7 #AHE =
was diluted from 39.80% to 35.42% (2015: 48.22% to 39.80%) upon the S (THASEA ) B1742,704,617 IR (ZF—
issuance of 42,704,617 (2015: 60,392,850) new shares to Mr. Hu Liankui (“Mr. 4F 160,392,850 % ) #T A% © 7 & B R i-Sprint
Hu") (Note 31). ZREHER 9 b 39.80% 58 2= 35.42% (=

TR : 148.22% #HE39.80%) (M7t
31) e
*  For identification purpose only o EEER
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22 BN\ T RERR o)

KA EAR 2 EBERE R A]i-Sprint £ &

22. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

The financial information of i-Sprint Group, which are material associates

Annual Report 2016 &

accounted for using the equity method, are as below:

ZAEERAT

2016
—E—RE
HK$’'000 HK$'000
TR FHET
Non-current assets EMENEE 27,126 19,162
Current assets mENEE 117,185 89,127
Current liabilities mEBAE (71,204) (40,401)
Net assets FEE 73,107 67,888
Revenue WA 106,913 106,641
Loss for the year FAEE (24,427) (14,903)
Other comprehensive (loss)/income Hin2E (518) U= (1,840) 243
Total comprehensive loss for the year FALEEERE (26,267) (14,660)
Group's share of: REBEREAL
Loss for the year FAEE (9,063) (6,435)
Other comprehensive (loss)/income Hiv2E (518) U= (686) 78
Total comprehensive loss for the year FANLEEERTE (9,749) (6,357)
Dividend received B S = =

The information of iN Systems (Macao) Limited, which is not a material

associate of the Group, is as below:

Group's aggregate share of

A B — B E AR

WHAEEBAZHERRRE R

CEPDBRARZERINT

2016
g%

HK$'000
FEx

2015
—T—RF
HK$'000
FHTT

net assets of an associate ZIFREREE 954 920
Group's share of: REBERELG -
Profit for the year F R A 523 521
Other comprehensive income Hfb 2w _ B
Total comprehensive income for the year R 2 EKRZEHEEE 523 521
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For the year ended 31st December 2016 BE T — X "F+_A=+—HILtFE

22. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 2. BN TR

A reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to the Lt ERZEER -Sprint EE R A E R
carrying amount of each of the investments in i-Sprint Group and iN SRR CRFT) BRAAISBZREREE L
Systems (Macao) Limited is set out below: HERIAT -
iN Systems
i-Sprint Group (Macao) Limited
BERGNE
i-Sprint 8 (BFH)BRAH
2016 2015 2016 2015
ZEB-XE —T-1F “EB-RE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEx BT TEx THT
Total net assets of associates BENTFEERR 73,107 67,888 2,864 2,762
Portion of ownership interests AEEMHA
held by Group ZERERRTD 35.42% 39.80% 33.33% 33.33%
Group's share of net assets of REBEGEE AT
associates FEE 25,894 27,019 954 920
Others Hits (2,611) (3,095) - -
Goodwill BE 29,221 33,538 - -
Carrying amount of the interests in NS e
associates in the consolidated PR EAR]
financial statements EamiRkEE 52,504 57,462 954 920
The Group has discontinued recognition of its share of losses N5 B B AR E T R H FE {5 ASL Automated
of ASL Automated Services (Thailand) Limited. The amounts of Services (Thailand) Limited 518 o {5 3202
unrecognised share of results of this associate, extracted from the RAlZFARBRET 2 AEREE S (R
relevant management accounts of the associate, both for the year and BEE AR ZHETEERE) AT ¢

cumulatively, are as follows:

2015
—ZE-hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Unrecognised share of loss of FARMEREN —EHE QA
an associate for the year 2 &8 5 5
Other comprehensive income Efb2mEKas = =
Total comprehensive loss for the year FALAEEIERE 5 5
Accumulated unrecognised share of ZERER (G — R E A
losses of an associate ZEE 607 602
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23. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY

CATEGORY

The accounting policies for financial instruments have been applied to

the line items below:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MRS R R M EE

For the year ended 31st December 2016 BE —T—F+_A=+—HILFE

HK$'000
FERT FHT

BREHE T 2EMTA

ERMTAZEHBERCRAN TIEIA

2015

HK$'000

Financial assets SREE
Loans and receivables ERRERRE
Trade receivables FEWE 55038 166,651 218,282
Other receivables and deposits EAb B IE RIZES 9,455 12,362
Amounts due from customers AR TRRERE P HIE
for contract work 220,884 248,647
Finance lease receivables FEY BY & T & RIE 8,299 8,197
Restricted bank deposits SR IR TN 876 =
Cash and cash equivalents ReRRSEFEY 237,755 172,955
643,920 660,443
Financial asset at fair value URAREEER
through profit or loss BRIBzERMEE
Other financial asset HihemE&E = 1,180
Financial liabilities LR
Financial liabilities at R R AT R
amortised cost Zemas
Trade payables FERTE 55038 185,380 244,907
Other payables H A FETFRIE 4,606 7,061
Bank borrowings RITEE 10,000 20,000
199,986 271,968

24 INVENTORIES

.78

2016 2015

—E-RF —T—hF

HK$’'000 HK$'000

FExT FHET

Goods held for resale FHHEBEZEY 45,983 53,014
Goods pending for customers’ BREFEMZEY

acceptance 82,431 53,828

128,414 106,842
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‘€
24. INVENTORIES (continued) 8. 78
Goods held for resale and goods pending for customers’ acceptance RHEEE SV REGREPEMZENEE
mainly represent computer equipment and software products. RERRE RS Em ©
During the year ended 31st December 2016, the cost of inventories HE-_Z—RFT-_RA=+—RBILFEDHE
recognised as expense and included in “cost of goods sold” and “cost RAERIWETATHERAR] & [RHRK
of services rendered” amounted to approximately HK$727,835,000 2] 2 FEEKA D B4 A727,835,000
and HK$223,717,000 (2015: HK$734,619,000 and HK$230,122,000), T }&223,717,0008 t( = F — 1 F :
respectively. 734,619,0008 7T % 230,122,000 7T) °
{=>:} =h
25. TRADE RECEIVABLES 25. LKL B 5 FA R
2016 2015
—E-RE —T—RF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FHExT FHT
Trade receivables — gross FEWE 5 50H - 42%8 171,432 218,880
Less: provision for impairment R ERE (4,781) (598)
Trade receivables — net FEWE 5 F0H - 5 166,651 218,282
The Group has granted credit to substantially all of its customers for 30 AEBEZMBEEFPER LN ZAI0AEE
days and has credit control procedures to minimise credit risk. Overdue H o AEERBEEEESEIBEERR
balances are reviewed regularly by senior management. BERE - SREIERE S BH 2 FUREET

EHEHIRE -

An ageing analysis of the gross trade receivables as at the reporting date, JEUE B IBAAFEN HIR R ARE A R EIH B
based on ageing from payment due date, is as follows: ZIREEDITIAT

2016 2015
—E-RF —Z—hF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FET FAxT
Current BNER 101,214 128,235
Within 30 days 30 KA 30,194 50,118
31 - 60 days 31 260K 18,371 14,535
61 —90 days 61 290K 6,449 6,292
Over 90 days BB 90 K 15,204 19,700
171,432 218,880
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For the year ended 31st December 2016 BE —T—F+_A=+—HILFE

25. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

As at 31st December 2016, trade receivables of approximately
HK$56,146,000 (2015: HK$74,750,000) were past due but not
impaired. These relate to a number of independent customers for whom
there is no recent history of default. The ageing analysis of these trade

receivables is as follows:

25. R E 5 FIE )

R-BE—RNE+_A=+—0 EKE
5 5% T8 #756,146,00078 T( — T — A F :
74,750,000 70) AEBEER TRKE ° %
LREWE FRIERS RN TR C R 2
BURFPAEHW ZEEWESHBEZERS

e
2016 2015
—B—AEF —T—AF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Past due less than 90 days BHTE 90 H 43,471 58,897
Past due over 90 days 8 B8 90 A 12,675 15,853
56,146 74,750

As at 31st December 2016, trade receivables of approximately
HK$4,781,000 (2015: HK$598,000) of the Group were past due and
impaired. These receivables are individually determined to be impaired,
and full provision has been made on these receivables. The debtors have
defaulted in the scheduled payments after due dates and the Group
performed an assessment and concluded the chance of recovering the
account receivables is low such that full impairment had been recognised
in respect of these receivables.

The gross trade receivables are denominated in the following currencies:

R-ZE—RE+_-_A=1+—0 AEEZE
U B 5 FRIE#) 4,781,000/ T(—T— A4 :
598,000 L) BEEHI R E FRERE - BH
UGB ERNZLEITRE  YEHLSE
FEURIBVE L 2 8 - BRAREIHBE
MARBITET BN R - MAKEE#ETIEL
BT E R E R RIEZ KERIE  MERZS
ERF AR ERERE

FEWE IR AT 5 E MR HE -

2016 2015
ZE-RF —T—hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHER FHAT
HKD BT 149,166 195,175
usb ET 10,280 12,570
Renminbi (“RMB") AREE 4,353 1,695
Thailand Baht (“THB") IR 2,044 3,030
Macau Pataca (“MOP") JRPIEE 3,807 3,094
New Taiwan dollars (“NTD") ek 1,476 2,998
Others HAith 306 318
171,432 218,880
As at 31st December 2016 and 31st December 2015, the carrying RZE—RE+-_A=+—HEK=-Z—HF
amounts of trade receivables approximate their fair values. +ZA=+—H BRESHREZERASHE
HENAEERS -
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25. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued) 25. IR E 5 FIE =)

Movements of the Group’s provision for impairment of trade receivables REE 2 EWE 5 FIE 2 REREEE N
are as follows: T
2016 2015
—E-RE —T—h%F
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FExT FAT
At 1st January n—H—H 598 482
Provision for impairment (Note 12) B (s 12) 4,187 274
Reversal of provision for BB R (M 12)
impairment (Note 12) (4) (158)
At 31st December R+—A=+—H 4,781 598
The creation and release of provision for impaired receivables have been FEMCRRIE 2 R (B B 2 iR L R BRBR B 5t A AR
included as part of cost of services rendered, other cost of services, ERERIERBHRBZKA - EftiRE2
selling expenses and administrative expenses in the consolidated RA - HEBARITRERZKA—H
statement of profit or loss (Note 12). (FzE12) ©
Amounts charged to the allowance account are generally written off BRERIR 2 2 RN BRI gL 5
when there is no expectation of recovering additional cash. MRS RFHISH o
The Group does not hold any collateral as security. REBWEIFHEAERRIERER °
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26. FEW by & E =R

AT ABREMEEERBERNIRE 2 &EE

26. FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES

The total minimum lease receivables under finance leases and their

Annual Report 2016 &

present values at the reporting date are as follows:

WA S R M HIRE -

2016 2015
—E-RE —T—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHBT
Non-current receivables: IERENFEWRIE -
Gross finance lease receivables FEM B E T E IH AR EE 4,254 4,173
Unearned finance income RERELZ @& WA (219) (230)
4,035 3,943
Current receivables: D PEWRIE -
Gross finance lease receivables FEU B E M E R IH AR EE 4,552 4,536
Unearned finance income ARELZ B E WA (288) (282)
4,264 4,254
Gross receivables from finance leases: REMERE 7 EIRGIEMEEE -
Not later than 1 year —FRA 4,254 4,536
Later than 1 year and —FREAFA
not later than 5 years 4,552 4,173
Gross finance lease receivables U B B F E FRIB AR EE 8,806 8,709
Unearned finance income AERELZ B E WA (507) (512)
Net finance lease receivables ERmERERIEFE 8,299 8,197
The net finance lease receivables W mEREFEFER
are analysed as follows: BRUTEHI
— Not later than 1 year -—FR 4,264 4,254
— Later than 1 year and - —FRRAFR
not later than 5 years 4,035 3,943
8,299 8,197
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27. OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND 27. EMEWNFIE - € KTE
PREPAYMENTS FFRIE

2016 2015
—Z2-REF —ZT—hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
T THT
Other receivables E b EYGRIR 4,71 5,093
Deposits e 4,681 5,667
Prepayments B RIA 11,882 15,564
Amount due from the immediate B AR GR ()
holding company (Note) 13 13
Amount due from an associate (Note) — & R E R R (i EE) 50 1,589
21,337 27,926
Note: Bt 3E
As at 31st December 2016 and 31st December 2015, amounts due from the RZE—AR"F+_A=+—RAR=FT—HF+=A
immediate holding company and an associate are unsecured, interest-free and =+—H  BEEERABDIRRAR —[EBE R BRK
repayable on demand. The carrying amounts approximate their fair values due to REER  REREEREE HRNERBANE -
their short maturities. BEZEREAERE AR EEES
The balances are denominated in the following currencies: ERRTIA TSI E¥EEHE -
2016 2015
ST WA —z-7%
HK$'000 HK$'000
FRT FHBIT
HKD BT 17,799 16,487
THB FER 948 2,839
RMB AR 668 5,795
NTD e 1,059 826
usb eV 10 938
Others Hitb 853 1,041
21,337 27,926
As at 31st December 2016 and 31st December 2015, the carrying amounts of RZE—R"F+A=+—RAR=ZT—AFT=A
other receivables and deposits approximate their fair values. =+—H - EttRUREREZEE CRESFEEER

R EERE -
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28. AMOUNTS DUE FROM CUSTOMERS 2. 84 IRREWEFIE

FOR CONTRACT WORK

RZZE—RE+-_A=+—BER-_ZT—AF
+ZA=+—8  BHRIEMEEZALKAE
B ERRFIRE EREBFEEMK -

R-ZE—REF-_A=+—0 " A£EENE
fth & FE E A AR 1,000,000 7T (FBE R
7C1,180,000) « =B R —HP HRITEITH
TRER YA AKX - Bt (BTRE
B3R TFF34%  KEBBKREREM
T 2MEMNILRRREIEEARANE
BEBERIENEMERE  BRBEHR
BRAREENE BARSRERDEE
HEAESRAREEBERL RBEZT—X
FTF_A=T—RAILFE  ZEERIHE
e .

ZREBITERRBRER
BEEEY

RITERIZTIE ARG B - FHFEREF
0.01% (ZZ—F%F : 0.12%) » ZERFIETT
BRR—E—RE+-_A=+—BEHHH
K58 FHFNERAEF02%(ZE—F
F o EIRHIBITER) ©

As at 31st December 2016 and 31st December 2015, the balance
represented contract costs incurred plus recognised profits less
recognised losses and progress billings.

29.OTHER FINANCIAL ASSET 29

As at 31st December 2015, the Group’s other financial asset amounting
to RMB 1,000,000 (equivalent to HK$1,180,000) mainly represented
financial product issued by a bank in the PRC, with maturity of 98 days
and expected but not guaranteed returns of approximately 3.40% per
annum, depending on the performance of its underlying investments.
The financial product is designated as financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss at initial recognition and measured at fair value at
the end of the reporting period. The carrying amount approximated its
fair value due to its short maturity. The asset was disposed upon maturity
during the year ended 31st December 2016.

30. RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSITS AND 30

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Bank balances carry interest at market rates with an average interest rate
of 0.01% (2015: 0.12%) per annum. Restricted bank deposits as at 31st
December 2016 carried interest at market rates with an average interest
rate of 0.42% (2015: no restricted bank deposits) per annum.

ReLREFEMATIIEEE

Cash and cash equivalents are denominated in the following currencies:

2016 2015

—E-—KRF —E—hF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FExT FHIT

HKD PETT 206,536 145,189
RMB AR 6,039 1,125
NTD e 7,436 11,554
usD ETT 5,687 5,176
Others Hih 12,057 9,911
237,755 172,955

RZB—XRE+-A=+—0 Fx£EEZ%
IR #ISR1T1F 3040 487,0008 T (—E—F4F :
) BEA S BERIRTTBAORE 2 KRR

As at 31st December 2016, the Group has restricted bank deposits of
HK$487,000 (2015: Nil) pledged to secure the performance bonds of the
Group.
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30. RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSITS AND 30.ZRHIBITERREER

m Automated Systems Holdings Limited & &) & 4% E AR A A

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (continued)

Restricted bank deposits are denominated in the following currencies:

BEEEY»

RBEERITERA TN EHEEE

2016 2015

—E—XREF —T—hF

HK$'000 HK$'000

Fi&xT FAT

MOP SRPTEE 389 =
NTD etk 487 =
876 =

3.DEEMED DISPOSAL OF PARTIAL

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

On 9th March 2015, i-Sprint Innovation, an associate of the Group, and
Mr. Hu, the Non-Executive Director and the Chairman of the Company
prior to 30th September 2015, entered into a share subscription
agreement pursuant to which i-Sprint Innovation has agreed to issue
and allot and Mr. Hu has agreed to subscribe for 60,392,850 new shares
of i-Sprint, representing 17.46% of the enlarged issued share capital
of i-Sprint Innovation thereafter for a consideration of USD5,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$38,778,000). The subscription of
60,392,850 new shares of i-Sprint Innovation has been completed on
27th March 2015 (the “2015 Completion”).

Upon the 2015 Completion, the Group’s percentage of shareholding
in i-Sprint Innovation was diluted from 48.22% to 39.80%, a gain of
HK$5,281,000 was recognised in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and cumulated translation reserve in respect of the net assets of
the associates of HK$52,000 was reclassified to profit or loss for the year
ended 31st December 2015.

During the year, i-Sprint, an associate of the Group has invited Mr. Hu,
an existing shareholder of i-Sprint, to subscribe for 42,704,617 new
ordinary shares of i-Sprint ranking pari passu with existing shareholder
at a consideration of USD4,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$31,026,000) (the “Subscription”). The Subscription was completed
on 26th December 2016 (the “Completion”).

NEFHEBRE QRS &E

a2z
m

RZZTE—RAF=ANA REBZHEE QR
|-Spr|nt Innovation * EARRE -T—REF
NA=Z+—BARINTEERER 2BE

HERT— IR REEHZE - KBt - i-Sprint
Innovation E Al & 8 17 R BE % - M #f 58 &
2 [ B R §60,392,850 f%i-Sprint 1 A%
HER-Sprint R E R K HBAE BITRAZ
17.46% - X {8 45,000, ooo% T (HE R
#738,778,0007% 7T ) » & 460,392,850 %
i-Sprint FRER —_T—RAF=A=1++tH%
K== —RF5=/K]) °

RZT—RHFTKE - K& B Ri-Sprint
Innova‘uonZHx%ﬁ 5 L5 48.22 % 1
§39 80% ' EHFTER1S 2 5,281,000 T
REFEBRmRANER - ME R EgEA
Tr?ﬁF*HE@ZSZ,OOO/%E%ﬁER RHEE
ENEIHE—_Z—RE+-_A=+—81t
FEZIBEF -

RER - AN B2 N 7] i-Sprint 55 i-Sprint
IR (ERR R AA S A FRBE i-Sprint 9 42,704,617 i%
Tk REBAERRZARSMA - R
{8/3 4,000,000 7T (A E %) 31,026,000 %
) ([REEE]) - REFHEENR_Z—N
F+ZA=+<BzEK (5] °
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3.DEEMED DISPOSAL OF PARTIAL 31. ?EVEH:IEH?‘M"T&B 0 e

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) Zﬁﬁ(ii)
Upon the Completion, the Group’s percentage of shareholding in i-Sprint RTERKE - AEBRI-Sprint 2 RIEA
was diluted from 39.80% to 35.42% and a gain of approximately F139.80% W##E 2= 35.42% & ATERS
HK$5,714,000 was recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or 5,714,000/8 7t e B R E é?ﬁﬁniﬁqﬁﬁw g
loss and the cumulated translation reserve in respect of the net assets of i & F B N B F & ZE AR B 4Y 42,0008 7T
the associates of approximately HK$42,000 was reclassified to profit or ZEN B EN D RIBE T —RF
loss for the year ended 31st December 2016. FTZA=FT—HIEFEZIBEF -
32. SHARE CAPITAL 32 I|]A
Number
of shares Amount
RBEE kx|
‘000 HK$'000
& FAxT
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each BRMEE.10B T ZEER
Authorised: EERA
At 1st January 2015, 31st December RZZE—RF—A—B ZZT—1F
2015 and 31st December 2016 +ZA=+—HEZE—"F+=ZA=+—H 600,000 60,000
Issued and fully paid: ERITRHR :
At 1st January 2015 R-—ZT—HE—H—H 311,863 31,186
Issue of ordinary shares upon exercise RIS T{E I
of share options BIT 2T mR 6,886 689
At 31st December 2015 and R-ZB-HAF+=A=+—-HK
1st January 2016 —E-XRF-A—H 318,749 31,875
Issue of ordinary shares upon exercise N R
of share options BITZ BRI 150 15
Issue of ordinary shares under the BITAR T BT EBR
bonus issue (Note) (B¥=E) 31,890 3,189
At 31st December 2016 R=B-—A"E+=A=+—H 350,789 35,079
Note: Bfi5E
On 18th May 2016, an ordinary resolution was duly passed by the shareholders of RZZ—A"FERA+TNB  ARABRRRBRRBF
the Company at the Annual General Meeting to approve the bonus issue (“Bonus A LERBBA-—HETBRAER  HETTAR
Issue”) of shares of HK$0.1 each which was issued on the basis of one (1) Bonus ([B17410% ) - IR BRI =T —X<FHA
Share (“Bonus Shares(s)”) for every ten (10) existing shares on the Record Date (i.e. =+ H)ARREEERRREE AN FRATFR
30th May 2016), by the qualifying shareholders of the Company. As at the Record EEO. 1B ZAR(TAR]) - 81FEF+(10) IR
Date, there were a total of 318,899,000 Shares in issue, the number of Bonus B AR — (1) BRATAR 2 B ITAIR - REC
Shares issued under the Bonus Issue was 31,889,900. $REH - BT 42805 318,899,000 % © R

BATA IR M BT 2 ALARENE /3 31,889,900 % ©
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+
33. TRADE PAYABLES 33. BN E 5 RIEH
An ageing analysis of the trade payables as at the reporting date, based ENE 5 HIEBRHRBREBNKEIE A 2 A&
on payment due date, is as follows: EOMIT
2016
—E—RF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Current BNER 122,983 158,126
Within 30 days 30 KA 49,507 58,112
31 - 60 days 31E260K 4,679 15,268
61 —90 days 61 290K 1,187 2,355
Over 90 days BB 90K 7,024 11,046
185,380 244,907
The balances are denominated in the following currencies: AT A T B i EHE
2016 2015
—E-RF —ZE-hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FHT
HKD BT 146,829 178,864
RVB AR 694 3,396
usb ET 23,250 47,070
THB ek 7,760 10,003
NTD e 6,609 4,911
Others Efth 238 663
185,380 244,907
At the reporting date, the carrying values of trade payables approximate REIRE - ENESFE REAERE QAR
their fair values. BEEE °
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34. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS U HMuENREBERETER

2016 2015
—E-RF —E-hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FiExT T
Other payables E b BT RIE 3,524 4,855
Accruals et E 58,673 56,669
Provision for customers’ claim (Note (i) &P REREH (X () 9,630 -
Amount due to the ultimate holding IR AEFE R A BRI (B B (i)
company (Note (ii)) 318 55
Amount due to associates (Note (ii)) KBS N B8 (BEE (i) 764 2,151
72,909 63,730
Note: Bfi5E
(i)  The provision for customers’ claim of approximately HK$9,630,000 (2015: Nil) () BPREREHX9,630,0008TTC(ZT—HF :
represents an estimate of the amounts payable in connection with identified &) RRE BRI TP RREMNFIENMEE -8
claims from customers. The timing of the cash outflow relating to the ERE R LRBREE - BRATE
provisions is uncertain, but is likely to be within one year. Details of the claims R—FR - REFFHERGEVBREM T
are set out in note 44 to the consolidated financial statements. 44 °
(i) The amounts due to the ultimate holding company and associates are (i) REELEBRAREBEARZIEAEIR
unsecured, interest free and are repayable on demand. . RERARERER -
The balances are denominated in the following currencies: HEARTIA TSI EEEEHE -
2016 2015
—E-RF —T—h%F
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FER FAxT
HKD BT 67,221 55,790
RMB AR 1,759 2,390
NTD A 1,385 1,822
Others Ei 2,544 3,728
72,909 63,730
At the reporting date, the carrying values of other payables and accruals REAKRE - HthERRIEREGER 2 EE
approximate their fair values. BEHEAEQNABEES -

Annual Report 2016 & Automated Systems Holdings Limited & &) R4 =B AR A A m



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRME

For the year ended 31st December 2016 BE T — X "F+_A=+—HILtFE

35. RECEIPTS IN ADVANCE

Receipts in advance represent advance payments received prior to
delivery of goods which is recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss upon the delivery of goods; and provision of service which
is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss over the
service period stipulated in the respective customer contract.

36. BANK BORROWINGS

35, FE W U &=

BN N E @A Az 2R (ERE
MR B EREBRERER) « RRHRHE
AIRER 2 B R (AR A E P A KT HR R
BHRER A RERER)

36. RITEE

2016 2015

—EB-RE —AF

HK$’'000 HK$'000

FH&xT FHIT

Bank loans, secured RITEE 10,000 20,000
The Group’s bank loans are repayable as follows: REEZRITEEERBAWT ¢

—FUARIRERER

Within one year or on demand

2016 2015
—E—REF —T—hF
HK$'000

T8t

HK$'000
FEx

10,000 20,000

As at 31st December 2016, the Group’s bank loan is repayable by one
instalment of HK$10,000,000 on 22nd December 2017 (2015: two
instalment of HK$10,000,000 annually ending on 22nd December 2017)
in accordance with the repayment schedule. Subject to a repayment on
demand clause which can be exercised at the bank’s sole discretion, the
bank loan is classified as current liabilities as at 31st December 2016 and
2015.

As at 31st December 2016, the Group’s bank loan bore a floating interest
rate ranging from 2.69% to 3.19% (2015: 2.24% to 2.74%) per annum
and is secured by the legal charges over the Group’s land and building
with carrying amount of HK$107,250,000 (2015: HK$105,450,000).

m Automated Systems Holdings Limited & &) & 4% E AR A A

BRBRTRGEZCEBE A2ER-F
—RETZAS - RZBAEEER=
P-tF+-A-tT-AL-EBEE

10,000,000 T (—ZF—RHF : ERETFE
# —H910,000,000 B TE-—ZT—+tFE+ -4
—t=BIE) - R=B—AFER=-FT—HF

TZA=1+—B  ARREREREKRATH
RITEHERL - MAFHRITEEWRS A
//|L§Uﬁ1ﬁ °

R=ZT—X"F+ZA=+—0 A58
BITEEENT269%£E3.19% (=T —Hh
F:224% F2.74%) ZIFBNVF R REE
WIAREEZ L1 RIEFERIRF - RE
% % /107,250,000 w( =T — A F:
105,450,000 7T) °
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37. DEFERRED INCOME TAX 37 IEEFTEH

Annual Report 2016 &

The components of deferred income tax (liabilities)/assets recognised
in the consolidated statement of financial position and the movement

during the year are as follows:

FARERA B ARAER ZRLEFREH
(BfE) BEZHIRAZHFIRMT :

2016 2015
—E-RF —ZE—hF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FH&xT FHT
At 1st January m—A—H (43,831) (39,883)
Tax charged to other BHEMEEEIRTE
comprehensive income (1,830) (1,318)
Tax credited/(charged) to statement BiEwmRaT A
of profit or loss (Note 16) (B B1E (Mi3E 16) 714 (2,631)
Exchange realignment HE 3 B 1 1
At 31st December R+=—A=+—H (44,946) (43,831)

The investments in the PRC and Thailand incorporated operations give
rise to taxable temporary differences arising from the distribution of
profits by way of withholding tax.

As at 31st December 2016, no deferred income tax has been recognised
for withholding taxes that would be payable on the unremitted earnings
that are subject to withholding taxes of the Group’s subsidiaries
established in the PRC and Thailand. In the opinion of the directors of
the Company, it is not probable that these subsidiaries will distribute
such earnings in the foreseeable future. The aggregate amount of
temporary differences associated with investment in a subsidiary in the
PRC and Thailand for which deferred income tax liabilities have not been
recognised totalled approximately HK$4,645,000 as at 31st December
2016 (2015: HK$4,188,000).

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax losses carried forward
to the extent that realisation of the related tax benefit through the future
taxable profits is probable. As at 31st December 2016, the Group had
total tax losses of approximately HK$39,806,000 (2015: HK$34,000,000)
available for offset against future profits. A deferred income tax
asset has been recognised in respect of approximately HK$4,838,000
(2015: HK$3,636,000) of such losses. No deferred tax asset has been
recognised in respect of the remaining approximately HK$34,968,000
(2015: HK$30,364,000) due to unpredictability of future profit streams,
of which approximately HK$25,609,000 (2015: HK$19,824,000)
will expire within 1 to 5 years, approximately HK$9,259,000 (2015:
HK$10,440,000) will expire within 6 to 10 years and approximately
HK$100,000 (2015: HK$100,000) with unlimited expiry date.

RERPERFRKL 2 AREEERTE
RIEZR - RERATRINBZ R 5 K FI T
B o

MR-E—RE+-_A=1+—0 FAEELE
TR EREERL B AR RELA
FAEEZENBERELTAER - AR
RIEERE  ZEMBRARIRARBRAS
KATRED KB BETF - R=Z— X F+=A
=+—H ERPEERRENREEHENT
B = RAH4/54,6450008 L (=F—Hh
F 1 4,188,000 ) W ERERIELEFTSH A

& e

AR IBE 18 TV IRB BB E A 2= A Al 86

BARRERT T T ALIRE BRERBE
TEEMEE - RZE—"FE+_A=1+—
H - AEEFHIEEEATELA39,806,000
Bt (ZZF—FRF : 34,000,000 ) 7] Ak
AR ER - BEFMBHAEC R AHE
18#94,838,000/8L(=Z— A : 3,636,000
PETT) FERR o R AR AE TEBI AR A A SRR
MU Bh 84 T 2 4934,968,00078 o0 (= &
— A 4F : 30,364,000 70 ) ERIELEFTBH
BE - Hi#925,609,000/87T(—F— R4 :
19,824,000 ) B —ERFEREIH - m
#79,259,0007 7T (—Z —H 4 : 10,440,000
BIL)BERAZTE NI R EER ALY
100,000 B (=ZF—H%F : 100,000757T) °
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37. DEFERRED INCOME TAX (continued)

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when the deferred income taxes relate to the same taxation
authority. The movement in deferred income tax assets and liabilities (prior
to offsetting of balances within the same taxation jurisdiction) during the

year are as follows:

37. IRIEFT B o)

EAAAKASNRAEERHFENHRAAE
R EORITRER - EREFEENAGER
— BB E RIS HAR - EEMEH
BEFEECMEHARERKE - RF
W REMEHEERAE(PEHER—H
HEERZERA)WAT

m Automated Systems Holdings Limited & &) & 4% E AR A A

Accelerated
tax  Revaluation Tax
depreciation  of properties losses Total
MEBERTE MEEH BIEEE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT FHEL THET T
At 1st January 2015 R=Z—hF—F—H (5,637) (37,560) 3314 (39,883)
Charged to other comprehensive income BEM2EBAT NG = (1,318) = (1,318)
Credited/(Charged) to statement REREEA
of profit or loss (Note 16) A/ ($08:) (KizE 16) 83 - (2,714) (2,631)
Exchange realignment B X 3% 1 - - 1
At 31st December 2015 and RZZ—-RF+=A=+—H (5,553) (38,878) 600 (43,831)
1t January 2016 R=E-"F—-A—H
Charged to other comprehensive income BEMEERARNR - (1,830) - (1,830)
Credited to statement RBEFRMETA
of profit or loss (Note 16) GEAD) 418 - 296 714
Exchange realignment B 5 A% 1 - - 1
At 31st December 2016 RZF—"E+-A=+—H (5,134) (40,708) 896 44,946

The analysis of deferred income tax is as follows:

BEFTEBZ DT -

2016 2015

—E-XRE —T—RF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FExT FAT

Deferred income tax assets RIEFTISHEE 953 679
Deferred income tax liabilities REFTSHAE (45,899) (44,510)
Deferred income tax liabilities, net BEMGHRAsE  F58 (44,946) (43,831)
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38. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) on 8th
August 2002. Under the Scheme, the directors of the Company may
grant options to eligible employees, including directors of the Company
and its subsidiaries, to subscribe for shares in the Company. The total
number of shares in respect of which options may be granted under the
Scheme is not permitted to exceed 10% of the shares of the Company in
issue at any point in time. The total number of shares in respect of which
options may be granted to any individual in any one year is not permitted
to exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any point in time.
Options granted must be taken up within 28 days of the date of offer,
upon payment of HK$1 as consideration per grant. There is no general
requirement that an option must be held for any minimum period before
it can be exercised but the directors of the Company is empowered to
impose at its discretion any such minimum period at the time of grant
of any particular option. The period during which an option may be
exercised will be determined by the directors of the Company at its
absolute discretion, save that no option may be exercised more than 10
years after it has been granted. The exercise price is determined by the
directors of the Company, and will not be less than the higher of (a) the
closing price of the shares on the Stock Exchange on the date of grant;
(b) the average of the closing prices of the shares on the Stock Exchange
for the five trading days immediately preceding the date of grant of the
options; and (c) the nominal value of the shares. The Scheme expired on
7th August 2012.

38. BB AR AEGH &

ARRAR-_EZF \ANBRA—EBER
#EET &) ([3%aT8)) - REFZAHE - AARE
EARAERRER (BRARAREMBER
AlZER) REBRENRBARARD -
RIBZETE] - AR 2 B A R 2 B
BE O MSBBARRPMEMSEZ 2 #T
BfPZ210% ° IMEMFER TEFMALZE
PRHE R R D 8 TNSBEARER
ERAREZEETRNDZ1% - ERTEK
REMBRE N B HER 28 RN - W
FGERERAI M ETERRE - BREL
B — R E BRBARER A AT A AT
VIR BRI 2 I RIEHR - EARLQA)
ESERENR L A EBRER - BiE
TEINME R AAREAMR  AITTEERE At 2 HARRHS
HARBES2EMIBETE - HEEMERE
—RTMEREL AEREE 10 5FRR1T6E - 17
EEVHARTDESETE - BT LRNU
T=Fhz85%E  QRORBEERLR
HRFERE S P 2 T E + () BXD IR B B A
& H B #R R AR S AR R A2 TR
B ROBRHEE- - ZAEER_F——F
NAEBER e
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38. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The following table discloses details of the share options held by

employees (including directors) under the Scheme and movements in
such holdings:

38.

B RES B

TEREBEABRER (BRES) RiEZaT 8
BZBBHERZSRA 2 EEBFHE

2016 2015
“E-RE “T-hF
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise Number of exercise Number of
price options price options
REFS IETH
Cagidic| BRESE 1188 fERRiESA
At 1st January ®—HA—R HK$1.11 950,000 HK$1.11 8,659,000
11187 1.1MET
Exercised during the year FRIE HK$1.12 (150,000) HK$1.10 (6,886,000)
11237 11087
Adjustment to outstanding options R TA R R A2
as a result of the bonus issue (Note) iR % (D) HK$1.01 80,000 - -
1.01587T
Lapsed during the year EUPNE HK$1.02 (363,000) HKS$1.11 (823,000)
1.0287T 11187
HK$1.00 HK$1.11
At 31st December ®+=—A=1+—H 1.008 7T 517,000 1.11ET 950,000
Exercisable at 31st December AR+ A=+—RBfE HK$1.00 517,000 HK$1.11 950,000
1.008 7T 11137
Weighted average remaining contractual life  JIEFOFIEA K4 5.2 years 6.3 years
5286 6.3%F

Note:  The number of outstanding share options and exercise price were adjusted
as a result of the bonus issue of shares of the Company on 15th June
2016, the details of which are disclosed in the Company’s announcement
dated 15th June 2016.

The options granted on 19th March 2012 and 2nd May 2012 were
vested equally on each of the first, second and third anniversaries of the
grant date.

During the year, no income/expenses (2015: total income of approximately
HK$110,000) were recognised in relation to equity-settled share-based
payment transactions under the Company’s Scheme as the outstanding
share options are fully vested during the year ended 31st December 2015.

m Automated Systems Holdings Limited & &) & 4% E AR A A

MR WATEZBRETEERBECEEAR
RAR =B —RFRA+RBBETARNE
HE HRERERARTRH/-_FT—KX
FRATRBZRE -

RZE——F=A+NBE=F—=FHA
“HERENBREECHRIEL ASNE—
F_RE-ZBFENGEOHGEES -

RER - WERIEA QBT 8 ARRGD B E
THEMBRA X (Z2—RF : &%
ERERIREA QBT B AER L2
U A #49110,000%87T) °
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39. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 39.7 1 B B # AR 3=
OF THE COMPANY

2016 2015
—Z2-REF —ZT—hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
T FHT
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BB NERE 987 1,347
Investments in subsidiaries KRB AR ZRE 1 1
Deferred income tax assets RIEFTISTIE E 836 639
1,824 1,987
Current assets mENEE
Other receivables, E b FEYCGRIR -
deposits and prepayments e RBARIE 245,004 234,983
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREEED 4,306 8,347
249,310 243,330
Total assets HWEE 251,134 245,317
Equity attributable to equity AR RRAEEE AELER
holders of the Company
Share capital A& 35,079 31,875
Share premium i 5 5 B AR 114,497 114,305
Reserves (Note) (M) 95,201 96,456
Total equity R 244,777 242,636
Current liabilities REEE
Other payables and accruals e FRIE & FEET B 6,357 2,681
6,357 2,681
Total liabilities wWaE 6,357 2,681
Total equity and liabilities BEZREE 251,134 245,317
Net current assets RENEEFE 242,953 240,649
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBEMSE 244,777 242,636
LI Wei WANG Yueou
=g TEB
Director Director
EE E=3
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39. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 39.7 2 BB #AR R 3R )
OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

Note: The movement of the Company’s reserves are as follows: MisE : ANRRFEEZEBNT
Retained
Special Share-based earnings/
reserve payment (accumulated
(Note (i) reserve losses)
KBl URAH REER,/
(HEE (i) ER X (RHEE) #i
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AL 7 AT BT
At 1st January 2015 R=F-AF—A—-H 95,513 2,259 484 98,256
Profit for the year FREH - = 8,065 8,065
Forfeiture of unclaimed dividends BRYKRERE - - 16 16
Final dividend for the year ended HE-Z-WF+-A=+—-H
31st December 2014 IFFE 2 RHR S - = (7,908) (7,908)
Issue of ordinary shares upon exercise fIEBRER T2
of share options Lk = (1,863) = (1,863)
Recognition of equity-settled RUARND REEX
share-based payments 2R = (110) - (110)
Lapse of share options transferred BRERBET
to retained earnings 2R E - (33) 33 =
At 31st December 2015 RZF-AF+=-A=+—H 95,513 253 690 96,456
At st January 2016 RZZ—"FE—A—H 95,513 253 690 96,456
Profit for the year ERET - - 1,973 1,973
Issue of ordinary shares upon exercise IR RN T2
of share options LR - (39) - (39)
Issue of ordinary shares under TR T RIT 2 LR
the bonus issue - - (3,189) (3,189)
Lapse of share options transferred BRZREET
to retained earnings 2R E - (88) 88 =
At 31st December 2016 RZE—R"E+_A=t—H 95,513 126 (438) 95,201
(i) The special reserve of the Company represents the difference between (i) ARATZENREERERBEFEAR
the par value of the Company’s shares issued in exchange for the issued Al BRI B A R B BT A M EETT
share capital of the subsidiaries and the net asset value of the subsidiaries Z RO EEEMKERE QR EETF
acquired in prior years. Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as BZZ%HE - REARE-NN—F2
amended), the contributed surplus shall not be distributable if there are AE(KE1ER]) - WA S EIRIRATEE
reasonable grounds for believing that: THIEE - BIBABRBTAHEHSIR :
(1) the Company is, or would after the payment be, unable to pay its (1) A2 EIREF S RE R &
liabilities as they become due; or EREBEI SR INEE:
B9
(2)  the realisable value of the Company’s assets would thereby be less () ARREEZEBREABEERA
than the aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share capital and MPREABEREEBITRA
share premium account. LAK B8 49335 (B AR 2 4870 o
(i) As at 31st December 2016, in the opinion of the directors, the aggregate iy RZT—R"F+-A=+—H &=
amount of reserves available for distribution to equity holders of the RE - AIMEDIRTFAARREFEA
Company was approximately HK$95,075,000 (2015: HK$96,203,000). 2 @B 4 595,075,000 T (=

T—F : 96,203,000/87T) °
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40. CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS 40. RE XK 2B ETWA

2016 2015
—E-XEF —E—hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
Fax FiET
Profit before income tax FRET1S BRI &= A 38,978 27,578
Adjustments for: L
— Share of results of associates - FEIEEE A RIER
(Note 22) (BizE22) 8,540 5914
— Amortisation of intangible assets - B AESH
(Note 21) (MtsE21) 1,668 1,669
— Depreciation and amortisation - W% - BB MR BT E R
of property, plant and equipment (Mf3E19)
(Note 19) 17,496 17,528
— Loss on disposal of property, plant - HEMHE  BERZREB2EE
and equipment (Note 9) (FF5E9) 182 19
— Gain on deemed disposal of - RIEL R A RS s 2 e
partial interests in associates (KtE9)
(Note 9) (5,714) (5,281)
— Fair value gain on revaluation - ERREYEZ AR BERS
of investment properties (Note 20) (BftzE20) (400) =
— Addition/(Reversal) of provision -REGFERE (BERD)
for obsolete inventories, net 2 FE (P 12)
(Note 12) 69 (49)
— Interest income (Note 8) - R B (FFZES) (40) (54)
— Interest expenses (Note 11) — M H (PFiaE11) 793 1,005
— Equity-settled share-based payment - R BERZ 2 A
income - (110)
— Provision for impairment - BN IRREKRER
of amounts due from customers FIRRE R
for contract works (Note 12) (FFEE12) - 18
— Provision for customers’ claim - BPRERE
(Note 9) (B¥=E9) 9,630 -
— Provision for impairment of trade - BWE 5 IERE
receivables (Note 25) B4 (P 25) 4,187 274
— Reversal of provision for impairment - FEURE 5 FIB R (E B
of trade receivables (Note 25) [0 (fI=E25) (4) (158)
— Professional fee for proposed el E S
acquisition (Note 48(ii)) BRT5 & A (B3E 48(iii) 5,575 =
Changes in working capital: LiEASE
~ Inventories -FE (21,641) 18,450
— Trade receivables - BB SFIE 47,448 (38,981)
— Finance lease receivables - BEHEREKFIE (102) 7,002
— Other receivables, deposits - H IR - i2e
and prepayments NSELNECE 6,589 (3,405)
— Amounts due from customers - AHTRRER
for contract work BFMIE 27,763 22,393
— Restricted bank deposits - ZRFIRITIFR (876) 781
— Trade payables - BB 55 (59,527) 16,275
— Other payables and accruals - Hh e FRIE R BT B A (3,209) 7,263
— Receipts in advance - FEU ez 8,139 (483)
Cash generated from operations mEEB RN 85,544 77,648
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e Mg mRMEE
For the year ended 31st December 2016 BE T — X "F+_A=+—HILtFE

41. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

As at 31st December 2016, the Group had commitments for future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases in
respect of certain of its office premises and computer equipment which
fall due as follows:

4. EERLNEE

RoE—AE+=A=+—R  AEERE
AT SR AR T B BRE TH A
=% REKREL A RRERD S TAE
T

2016 2015

—E-RF —T—hF

HK$'000 HK$'000

THET FHT

Within one year —FR 6,331 3,189
Later than 1 year and not later —FREAFA

than 5 years 2,210 2,046

8,541 5,235

Leases for office premises and computer equipment are negotiated for
an average term of one to three years (2015: one to five years) and the
rentals are fixed over the terms of the leases.

42. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

MAEMERBEERBZENFIR—E=
FEH-RX(ZF—hF: —E=1F) #HE
RIEXHAREE -

8. EAEYE

2016 2015
= —ThF

HK$°000 HK$°000
FHT FHT

Capital expenditure in respect REREBHREANEETA
of property, plant and equipment BREEZMZE - BE
contracted for but not provided in RBE2ERAY

the consolidated financial statements

132 246

m Automated Systems Holdings Limited & &) & 4% E AR A A

Annual Report 2016 3§



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRME

For the year ended 31st December 2016 BE —T—F+_A=+—HILFE

43. FUTURE OPERATING LEASE 3. RIREX£EE =
ARRANGEMENTS

At 31st December 2016, the Group had contracted with customers RZZB—AR"F+ZA=+—1H ~5BER
and an associate in respect of office premises under operating leases as WAEYE 2 EERNERTR R —HBE AT
follows: BESLUNE
2016 2015
ZE-RE —T—hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHTT
Not later than one year —FR 3,917 3,741
Later than 1 year and not later —FENEFRH
than 5 years 2,543 5,985
6,460 9,726
Leases for office premises are negotiated for an average term of one to MAEYEZHOF IR —E_FHEH R
two years (2015: one to three years) and the rentals are fixed over the —E-RF: —FE=F) HeREHRNAR
terms of the leases. El5E e
44, CONTINGENT LIABILITIES M. HAREE
As at 31st December 2016, the Group had HK$487,000 (2015: Nil) RZB-—RE+ZA=+—8 xEEzX
restricted bank deposit held as security for performance bonds. As at 31st PR i $R1T1F 240 487,000 B T (ZT— R F ¢
December 2016, performance bonds of approximately HK$62,628,000 E)ERERAORBZER - R=ZT—RF
(2015: HK$52,257,000) have been issued by the bank on behalf of the TZA=+—RH  aRIREAEELTE
Group to customers as security of contracts. PRS2 BAIRFEL /762,628,000
BT (ZF—HF : 52,257,00087T) °
The Group is involved in disputes arising in the ordinary course of REBREEXBEBRIZBHRBAAL
business. In accordance with the Group’s policies, the Group will make KEAEBOEE  AEEEgEBEAEMH
a provision for a liability when it has a present obligation as a result FEAZREER EZEBREAERE
of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources will be AEBATRORBMERKERTL - B
required from the Group to settle the obligation and the amount can be CHASEELGEER A REERE -
reasonably estimated. Having reviewed outstanding claims of the Group, EEAEENRRBRE - PMRABEER
a provision for customers’ claim of HK$9,630,000 was consequently R H1 9,630,000 8 L& - I BIEE EMF
recognised in profit or loss within other (loss)/gain, net. The directors (BB) WeEF EERANEE=-T
are of the opinion that adequate provisions have been made in the —RNETZA=+—BNEEMBHR&ER
consolidated financial statement for the year ended 31st December RIE S -
2016.
The Group reviews these provisions in conjunction with any related AEETHHGEREEREMERREE
provisions on assets related to the claims and adjusts these provisions to B2 BEEITRI - RETHBE AR H
reflect the impacts of negotiations, settlements, rulings, advice of legal - FEE - FOR  AEERREBERERGEE
counsel and other pertinent information related to the case. Should EMEMNTLE o R LaliE R b ESHH
developments in any of these matters cause a change in the Group’s BREFAEEENTREROAEEEE
determination as to an unfavourable outcome and result in the need to {EABFEmAREAEE - SEMLEENE
recognise a material provision, or, should any of these matters result in a BB AR FR ARSI R @REE X + RIF]
final adverse judgement or be settled for significant amounts, they could BEI AN B PN T RTHURE « AR S FIREE
have an adverse effect on the Group’s results of operations, cash flows, EZFERKERE  ReRERMBHKR
and financial position in the year or years in which such a change in EEBRETFZE -

determination, settlement or judgement occurs.
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45. PLEDGE OF ASSETS 45. EEK#H
As at 31st December 2016, land and buildings with a carrying amount RZZB-—RE+ZA=+—8 xEEz+
of HK$107,250,000 (2015: HK$105,450,000) (Note 19) were pledged to 1 % 125 5 107,250,000 7T (= B — A4 -
secure the banking facilities granted to the Group. 105,450,000 #&7T) (MizE19) A{EAREE 2

RITRAE 2B -

As at 31st December 2016, the Group has restricted bank deposits of RZZBE—ARF+ZA=+—0 x&EBzX
HK$487,000 (2015: Nil) pledged to secure the performance bonds of the IR &SR 1T R4 487,000 T (Z T —HF ¢
Group (Note 30). /) B AEARE BB ARE 2 (M E30) -
46. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 46.BBEALTRS
As at 31st December 2016, Hong Kong Teamsun owns 65.47% (2015: RZZE—RF+ZA=+—8 BEEE
65.50%) of the Company’s shares. The remaining 34.53% (2015: RKKEBARRAIRND 265.47% (ZF—H
34.50%) of the Company’s shares are widely held. The ultimate holding F :65.50%) ' #£3453% (ZT—HF :
company of the Company is Teamsun. 34.50%) BRIDBEEMA LTI - AAAR

RN RIREBRAK

(a) Transactions with related parties (a) HBAEALTZRS
2016 2015
—E—RE —E—hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
Nature of transaction REME
Ultimate holding company: RAEERAT -
Sales by the Group KREBHEE 35 219
Purchase by the Group AEEEE = 110
Expenses charged to the Group REBY 2L 210 407
Fellow subsidiaries: ERMELR :
Purchase by the Group AEEREE 473 606
The associates: i/
Sales by the Group AEEHEE 455 -
Purchases by the Group AEBRESE 12,636 7,579
Staff costs charged by the Group AEBYNZETIRAY 125 218
Rental income charged by the Group ZN&E#Uk > S WA 348 328
Sale and purchase of goods and services are transacted at normal EmEkRBEEERMAEEPRER—H
commercial terms that are consistently applied to all customers and ERZ EREEGTETRS -
vendors.
Rental income was transacted with reference to the rental rates HEWATILEMISERHESKTE
prevailing in the market. E °
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46. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(Continued)

(b) The Group’s balances with related parties are set out in Notes 27

and 34.

(c) Key management personnel remuneration are disclosed in Notes 14

and 15.

47. PARTICULARS OF MAJOR
SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31st December

2016 and 31st December 2015 are as follows:

Country/place of
incorporation/
establishment

and operation

AR, R

ger
BIxR/ 5%

Name of subsidiary

)= NG R

Automated Systems Hong Kong
(H.K.) Limited B
BBER(FE)BERAF

Annual Report 2016 &

Nominal value of
issued and fully
paid share capital/
registered capital
ERTR
BERE
HfEARZEE

HK$2 Ordinary shares
HK$55,350,000

" Non-voting
deferred shares

2B LR
55,350,000/8 7T
"ER SRR

6. FBEAN TR F @
(b) 7"&=EmREE A 1 7 I M A SRS 3
27 K234 °

() ZEZEBAEMS AT 14 R 1SR

3& o

4. T EMB LRI 215

RZZE—REFE+_A=+—BRK-_ZT—AF
+—A=+—8 " ARAIZEEMBAAF
BT

Percentage of
nominal value of
issued share
capital held
by the Company
R D RIFIRE BT
RAEEBS L
2016 201
-1E —F-0%

Principal activities

FTEXK

100% 100% Investment holding, sale of
computer products and
solutions and provision of
hardware services
(including installation and
maintenance services)
and software services
(including software
development, consulting and
professional services)
RERR - HEEREMR
AT R R AR MR 1 PR 7
(BERERRERSE) &
AR (B

BRREERE)
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47. PARTICULARS OF MAJOR 4. T EMB AT 2FH B @

SUBS'D'AR'ES (Continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31st December

2016 and 31st December 2015 are as follows: (Continued)

Country/place of
incorporation/
establishment
and operation

AL, K

Name of subsidiary F<$ -

)= NG EEE BxR/ 5

ELM Computer Hong Kong
Technologies Limited B
RAERRRER AR

CSA Automated (Macau) Macau
Limited S
BEZEFCRM)BRAR

Automated Systems Holdings Limited & &) & 4% E AR A A

Nominal value of Percentage of

issued and fully nominal value of
paid share capital/ issued share
registered capital
ERTR
HERA,
HfEAZEE

capital held
by the Company
AN R FEERT
RAEEBS L
2016 2015
—E-XF —TAF

Principal activities

TEXK

HK$12,000,000 100% 100% Sale of computer products and
Ordinary shares
12,000,000 7T
Timik (including installation and
maintenance services)

and software services

solutions and provision of
hardware services

(including software
development, consulting and
professional services)
HEEMERR
SRRTT R R R R 1 PR
(BRERERRERS) &
U BRY (BRI
BRI EER)

MOP10,000 100% 100%
Ordinary shares computer products and
BT 10,000 7T solutions and provision of
TR hardware services
(including installation and

maintenance services)

and software services

Investment holding, sale of

(including software
development, consulting and
professional services)
REER - HEERERX
R R SRR RS
(BRTERRERE) &
RS (RS RE
BERKEERE)
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47. PARTICULARS OF MAJOR 4. TEMB AT 2FH B @
SUBS'D'AR'ES (Continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31st December RZZ—R"E+=ZA= A
2016 and 31st December 2015 are as follows: (Continued) +ZA=+—8 ARElzx

Country/place of Nominal value of Percentage of
incorporation/ issued and fully nominal value of
establishment paid share capital/ issued share
and operation registered capital capital held

MR, LR EBTR by the Company
Name of subsidiary F<$ - BRERAX ERATFRBFE BT Principal activities
HE AR A BxX % HMER ZEE BRAEEF AL TEER
2016 2015
—E-XF —TAF

ASL Automated (Thailand) Thailand THB50,000,000 100% 100% Investment holding, sale of
Limited RE Ordinary shares computer products and
Z=#% 50,000,000 7T solutions and provision of

Rl hardware services

(including installation and
maintenance services)
and software services
(including software
development, consulting and
professional services)
REER  HEBKERR

FRRTT R MR AE (RS

(BRETERRERE) &

DR (BRI E

EEPEEST)
Guangzhou Automated The PRC HK$40,000,000 100% 100% Sale of computer products
Systems Limited (Note 1) H 40,000,000 7T and solutions and provision of
BMREEEESREERAR (2015: hardware services
(B3E1) HK$30,000,000) (including installation and
(ZZ—HhEF: maintenance services)
30,000,000 %7T) and software services

(including software
development, consulting and
professional services)
HEERERRBATRR
PR (RS
(BRTERRERE) &
R (RS
BERKEERE)
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47. PARTICULARS OF MAJOR 4. T EMB AT 2FH B @

SUBS'D'AR'ES (Continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31st December
2016 and 31st December 2015 are as follows: (Continued)

Name of subsidiary

)= NG EEE

Country/place of
incorporation/
establishment
and operation

MR, LR
-k
BR/ 2

Nominal value of
issued and fully
paid share capital/
registered capital
ERTR
HERA,
HfEAZEE

Percentage of
nominal value of
issued share
capital held
by the Company
AR R FRFE BT
RAEEBS L
2016 2015
—E-XF —TAF

Principal activities

TEXK

ASL Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands* USD1 Ordinary share 100% 1100% Investment holding, sale of
RERIHS! 1 €T B computer products and

solutions and provision of

hardware services

(including installation and

maintenance services)

and software services

(including software

development, consulting and

professional services)

REZR - HEEMERR

RN R MR IR

(BRETERRERS) &

IR (BB

B R EZERY)

ELM Technologies British Virgin Islands USD1 Ordinary share 100% 1100% Investment holding
Holdings Limited RERLES 1ETTEEE BEER
Express Success British Virgin Islands* USD2 Ordinary shares 100% 1100% Property holding
Limited REELHS 2FTTEBKR MERE
Express Returns British Virgin Islands* USD2 Ordinary shares 100% 1100% Property holding
Limited RBRRES 2B MERE
Express Profits British Virgin Islands* USD2 Ordinary shares 100% 1100% Property holding
Development Limited RERIHS" 2ETE B MERE
ASL Security Solutions Cayman Islands ~ HK$0.1 Ordinary shares 100% 1100% Investment holding
Limited HEHS 0.1 BT ERR REER

Automated Systems Holdings Limited & &) & 4% E AR A A
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4. TEMBARIZFE @

47. PARTICULARS OF MAJOR
SUBS'D'AR'ES (Continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31st December 2 A= H
2016 and 31st December 2015 are as follows: (Continued) +ZA=+—8  ARElzEx

Country/place of Nominal value of
incorporation/

establishment

Percentage of
issued and fully nominal value of
paid share capital/ issued share

and operation registered capital capital held
by the Company
ERDRMBEERT Principal activities
RAEEBS L TEER
2016 2015

—E-XF —TAF

AL, K BRTK
gez BERRES

Name of subsidiary

)= NG EEE BIR#8 HEMEARZHEE

Annual Report 2016 &

Automated Systems British Virgin Islands* USD1 Ordinary shares 100% N/A Investment holding,
Fortune Investment RERIHS! 1 €T B international trading,

Holdings Limited
(Note 2) (PFiiz£2)

fund investment and
treasury management

REZER  BERES -

EeRERERER

GDB International British Virgin Islands USD1 Ordinary shares 100% Investment holding
Investment Limited REBRZES 1= EBR REER
(Note 3) (Ffi st 3)

GDD International the State of Delaware, USD1 Ordinary shares 100% Investment holding
Holding Company the United States 1ETEBR REZER
(Note 3) (Pft&E3) ERRRIEM

GDD International the State of California, USD1 Ordinary shares 100% Investment holding
Merger Company the United States 1ETEBR REER
(Note 3) (Fff5E3) M
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47. PARTICULARS OF MAJOR 4. TEMB AR 2FE @

Automated Systems Holdings Limited & &) & 4% E AR A A

SUBS'D'AR'ES (Continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31st December
2016 and 31st December 2015 are as follows: (Continued)

Notes:

1. Guangzhou Automated Systems Limited was registered in the PRC as a wholly
foreign-owned enterprise. The paid up capital up to 31st December 2016 was
HK$40,000,000 (2015:HK30,000,000).

2. Automated Systems Fortune Investment Holdings Limited was incorporated
on 31st March 2016.

3. GDB International Investment Limited, GDD International Holding Company
and GDD International Merger Company were incorporated on 2nd
December 2016, 8th December 2016 and 8th December 2016 respectively.

The non-voting deferred shares, which are not held by the Company, carry
practically no rights to dividends nor to receive notice of nor to attend or vote
at any general meeting of the Company nor to participate in any distribution
on winding up.

# These companies operate in Hong Kong.

L Subsidiaries held directly by the Company.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the
opinion of the Directors, principally affected the results for the year or
formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To give
details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the Directors, result
in particulars of excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the end of the
reporting period (2015: same).

RZZE—RE+-_A=+—BER-_ZT—AF
+=—A=+—8 " ARBIZEEMBAAF
BanR : (48)

1. BMINRBEEEESRERERA RN BE M
BINEBECE - BE-T—A~E+=A
=+— A2 EHENE40,000,000ET (=F
—A 4 : 30,000,000587T) °

2. Automated Systems Fortune Investment
Holdings Limited R =Z—XF=A=+—H
FalifpavAD

3. GDB International Investment Limited *
GDD International Holding Company } GDD
International Merger Company % Bl i = &
—A~"EFE+=ZA=ZH  ZFT—X<E+=-ANAR
E=F—"F+=-ANBFEMKL -

" EBRERERRYIFEAARRE - R
MmFARE « URMREUR R BEF IR
EMBEREEERAGYNE LRE - T
LA AT 2 BB RIS K T 0 IR AO ERRHER -

fORERRREEEE -

ARBEEER/BLIMBRTE

EERR - LRAIIARFANHEBLREE
FEAFEEEIANAEEEEFENE
2D - EERAFINEMME QRS
SRIBBNITR o

MNAFEREER - HIENEQRETEAR
BER (2 —0F - HR)
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48 HEHREIR

48. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE

0]

(i)

Annual Report 2016 &

Rights issue

On 12th January 2017, the Board announced that the Company
proposed to raise gross proceeds of approximately HK$192,934,000
to approximately HK$193,218,000 by issuing not less than
175,394,450 rights shares and not more than 175,652,950 rights
shares of HK$0.1 each at the subscription price of HK$1.10
per rights share on the basis of one rights share for every two
existing shares held on the record date (i.e. 27th January 2017)
("Rights Issue”). The prospectus regarding the Rights Issue was
published on 3rd February 2017. The Rights Issue was completed
on 27th February 2017 and 175,394,450 rights shares were
issued. The details of the results of the Rights Issue were set out
in the Company’s announcement dated 24th February 2017. The
Rights Issue therefore has no impact on the consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31st December 2016.

Convertible bonds and increase in authorised
share capital

On 12th January 2017, the Company and GF Securities (Hong
Kong) Brokerage Limited (the “Placing Agent”) entered into the
conditional placing agreement. The Placing Agent has conditionally
agreed to procure, on a best efforts basis, placee(s) to subscribe for
the convertible bonds in an aggregate principal amount of up to
HK$350,000,000 (the “Convertible Bonds"”) at the issue price equal
to 100% of the principal amount of the Convertible Bonds due on
the third anniversary of the date of issue, with the conversion rights
to convert the principal amount thereof into shares (the “Conversion
Share(s)”) at the initial price of HK$1.20 (subject to adjustments)
per Conversion Share.

In addition, the Board has resolved to increase the authorised
share capital of the Company from HK$60,000,000 divided into
600,000,000 shares to HK$100,000,000 divided into 1,000,000,000
shares by the creation of an additional 400,000,000 shares (“Increase
in Authorised Share Capital”), which shall rank pari passu with all
other shares in issue as at the date on which the conversion rights
to be attached to the Convertible Bonds are exercised and be
entitled to all dividends, bonus and other distributions on the record
date of which falls on a date on or after such conversion date.

0]

(i)

Cadisd

R=—ZF—+tF—A+=-H EZFEE
o RRATRERIZREETRERRND
1108 L1758 175,394,450 A% &
% 1 175,652,950 i & i E1H0.175
TCRIHARAR ) - AB TS RIERFEL
192,934,000 JT 2 #193,218,000/%8
T BEEANEHAHAN = —+F
—AZ+tR)BHEMREERMHE
BRI G ([#HAR]) - BEEHRK
MERERER=_E—tF=-A=07
o HRENR T —tF-A=+tH
SEAK AP 4T 175,394,450 B LA B 17 ©
EREEBRERZFBHAART A
RIE—tLtHF AR EA-
it fBEHEBEE—T—F+=A
=+—HIEFEZFEMERRIL B
72 o

AR AR AR 35 B R RE IR A

R-ZZT—+tF—A+=-H AR AHE
B (B8 REARAF([RE
REDITZBGRHRERE - Bt
REREBEEEKRHRAEREZEREN
RF AR ARSI R ESH 220
REBrBITERBACRBERS A
350,000,000 7 7T #Y A] 2 A% & 25 ([ AT #2
MRES]) - ZATRREF SR EITH
FBETEE = AT RIEA B A T IR VIR (B4R
SRR 1.2078 7T (Al FHAE) 5 H
REREER ARG ([HRARERD 1) AR
T o

SN E B E R B B RN
400,000,000 B& B& 15 #% A8 A &) 2 35 T8 %
7XFf 60,000,000 7% 7. (5 & 600,000,000
A% A% 1% ) # Z= 100,000,000 7T (5 A
1,000,000,000 % A& 7 ) (T 3 A0)% € IR
A J) SRR 5 LR AT MR AR 5 8 B
ZIRREETEE AR HME BT
NEBRFHA - WA RIS B
AEEERBYPE AR ZE 2R
B AR REA DR o
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48. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE 48. 3 R&EHIEREE (o)

(Continued)

(ii) Convertible bonds and increase in authorised (i) TRERESFREIMNEERAE (&)

Automated Systems Holdings Limited & &) & 4% E AR A A

share capital (Continued)

Details of the Convertible Bonds and the Increase in Authorised
Share Capital are set out in the Company’s circular dated
24th February 2017. The Convertible Bonds and the Increase
in Authorised Share Capital have been passed the ordinary
resolutions by the Company’s shareholders (“Shareholder(s)”) at
the special general meeting (“SGM") held on 13th March 2017.
The Convertible Bonds with an aggregate principal amount of
HK$350,000,000 have been successfully placed to two placees on
21st March 2017 and the details of the completion of the placing
of Convertible Bonds are set out in the Company’s announcement
dated 21st March 2017. The Convertible Bonds and the Increase
in Authorised Share Capital therefore have no impact on the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31st December
2016.

(iii) Acquisition of Grid Dynamics International, Inc.

On 19th December 2016, the Board announced that the Company
and Grid Dynamics International, Inc. (“Grid Dynamics”) entered
into an agreement and plan of merger (“Merger Agreement”).
The Company agreed to acquire Grid Dynamics with a total cash
consideration of up to approximately USD118,000,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$915,267,000), which is subject to the terms
and conditions set out in the Merger Agreement (”Acquisition”).
Details of the Acquisition are set out in the Company’s circular dated
6th March 2017. The Acquisition is conditional upon passing an
ordinary resolution by the Shareholders at the SGM to be held on
22nd March 2017. The Acquisition therefore has no impact on the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31st December
2016.

BB ES R IETERA 2
BHERARFTAHA-_S L&A
ZHHBZBEA o AR ES LI
FEEBRABR-_Z—+E=A+=H%
TZBREENARE(BREFRE )
BERRRE BB L BRER - ANSEH
350,000,000 7t 2 AT AR EHFE R =
T—t+HF=- -+ —BRWEE TR
ARA - TABEAE S TRRESZ
HEBRA QB AHA=E—tF=A
Z+—AZAER - AIRRESRIEM
AEBRATEHEE—"F—NE+=A
=+ —HUEFEZREMBERRELER
2= .

(i) W BB Grid Dynamics International,

Inc.

—E-XRE+ZAtTtNB EF
® 8 M AN A A HGrid Dynamics
International, Inc. ([ Grid Dynamics])
RN AGthE R EI(TAoHHZED
Bt AARERERLEBESKE
& % #7118,000,000% 7T ( #8 5 R 4
915,267,000 7T ) Y& Grid Dynamics -
M2 A B 5 AT 82 IR AR 1R FT AR
PR(TEEEIE]) - BEWEZFBEHN
AREIBHA-—T—tF=A A28
B o ZMBRIEAGRRN T —+F
A+ ZBERREIAGRABL R
RBERE - FAMEE - AZWESEE
HEBE-ZT—"F+-A=+—HLF
B2 iR A mER mE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e VI ERRMEE

For the year ended 31st December 2016 HE—T— A F+_A=+—BILFE

48. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE 48. 3R&EHIEREE (o)

(Continued)

(iv) Bonus issue

(v)

On 21st March 2017, the Directors recommended a bonus issue
(“Bonus Issue”) of shares of par value HK$0.1 each in the capital
of the Company (“Bonus Share(s)”) on the basis of one (1) Bonus
Share, credited as fully paid, for every ten (10) existing shares
held by the Shareholders whose names appear on the register
of members on Monday, 29th May 2017. The Bonus Issue is
conditional upon the passing of an ordinary resolution by the
Shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting, the
Listing Committee of The Stock Exchange granting listing of, and
permission to deal in, the Bonus Shares and compliance with the
relevant legal procedures and requirements (if any) under the
applicable laws of Bermuda and the Bye-laws of the Company.

Bank loan

On 15th March 2017, the company drew the new banking facilities
which require the pledge of land and buildings with carrying
amount of HK$155,250,000 and investment properties with
carrying amount of HK$50,600,000 as at 31st December 2016.

(vi) Adoption of new share option scheme

Annual Report 2016 &

On 24th February 2017, the Company announced that the Board
proposed to adopt a new share option scheme (the “New Share
Option Scheme”) in view that the old share option scheme was
expired on 7th August 2012. The New Share Option Scheme will
be valid and effective for a period of time to be determined by
the Board at its absolute discretion and notified by the Board to
each grantee as being the period during which an option may be
exercised and in any event such period of time shall not exceed a
period of ten (10) years commencing from the date on which the
New Share Option Scheme is deemed to take effect in accordance
with its terms.

The adoption of New Share Option Scheme has been passed an
ordinary resolution by the Shareholders at the SGM held on 13th
March 2017.

(iv) BATAR

RZZE—+F=A=-+—HB EFE
FRERHET(10)BRE R AT ER—
(M BAABRSIE SR Bk 2 1B (3
TAR ) 2 EE MR -_T—+FHHA
—t+AB(EH—)BIEBRAM L2
BRRACE AR A R AT R EEE
TCZALR (TALRL ) » BITAIRRZARFRR
RERERRESAE LRB—HERR
BER B LETEESRBHEAR
tHREE  WETAREERERZ
HEERR T MRE (E) RAAFZ
NAEAANE - FAEE -

RITER

R-_TE—tF=A+HB  XRAMR
ESHMBTREZERAEAR-Z
—ANFT_A=+-—BRELEA
155,250,000 70 2 i RIEF RRE
£ %8/ 50,600,000 BT 2 1 E MR
HABBRITHE -

(vi) BRANFTRE AR AERT &

R-ZBE—+F-F-+MA  AXQAFT
mERENBRESESEN-Z—=
FENALHER ARAREFTLREMN
—IRFTRE AR T 8 ([ 3FriEARMERT &) -
IR B SR R R G R A
SRz BREBREHESZSEERNE
EE WHESSAESERA 1A
BEARE R TT(E AR - MR AT % 2R
TMSHEE MR B BES (10 FRNE
B e

RFIBEEABER T —tF =4
TZHBETZRREIASERIREH

M 3 - 2% 2
%@/}%ﬁﬁ% °
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Particulars of Investment Properties

REYEHF

For the year ended 31st December 2016 BE T — X "F+_A=+—HILtFE

Particulars of the Group’s investment properties at 31st December 2016 areas RZ-ZZE—"NF+_A=+—H AEEZKEY
follows: EFHBOT

Location Gross floor area (sq.ft)

Hb B BEEE(FAR)

Units 1 to 7 and 15 to 21 on 12th Floor 11,744 sq.ft Commercial
Topsail Plaza 11,744 F 1R [E5ES
11 On Sum Street

Shatin

New Territories

Hong Kong

BB

R

WH

O 11 5R

8%

121 ETRRI5E 21588

Car parking space No. P4 on Ground Floor 125 sq.ft Commercial
Topsail Plaza 125 FHR [EES
11 On Sum Street

Shatin

New Territories

Hong Kong

BB

R

W

OB 1158

Z 8%

R P4 BT
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Automated Systems Holdings Limited - Information of
Major Subsidiaries, Associates and Relevant Centers

BHRGEEERAT — TEME - BEATRERPEH

HONG KONG

Automated Systems (H.K.) Limited
15/F, Topsail Plaza

11 On Sum Street

Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong
Tel: (852) 2601 6998

Fax: (852) 2601 6936

ELM Computer Technologies Limited
16/F, Topsail Plaza

11 On Sum Street

Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong
Tel: (852) 2541 9900

Fax: (852) 2541 1338

i-Sprint Innovations (HK) Limited
Room 6-7, 10/F, Topsail Plaza

11 On Sum Street

Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong
Tel: (852) 2608 6226

Fax: (852) 2645 8069

Automated Center of Excellence (ACoE)
15/F, Topsail Plaza

11 On Sum Street

Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 2601 6998

Fax: (852) 2601 6936

Service Center

15/F, Topsail Plaza

11 On Sum Street

Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong
Tel: (852) 2601 6998

Fax: (852) 2601 6936

Security Operation Center Plus (SOC+)
15/F, Topsail Plaza

11 On Sum Street

Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong
Tel: (852) 2601 6998

Fax: (852) 2601 6936
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Bt

BERFG(EH) BRAA
HEMALH
ZOE 115
E|EES 1512

: (852) 2601 6998
1 1 : (852) 2601 6936

WM ESEHE AR A A
HEHADH

ZOE 1158

E|EES 1612

3% 1 (852) 2541 9900
fEH : (852) 2541 1338

2 (BB B AR AT

HEMALH
ZOE 115
EEES1086-7E

: (852) 2608 6226
1 1 : (852) 2645 8069

BE) R4 A 0 (ACOE)
HEHADH

ZOE 1158

E|EES 1512

3% 1 (852) 2601 6998
fEH : (852) 2601 6936

ARAS L
HEMALH
ZOE 115
E|EES 1512

: (852) 2601 6998
1 1 : (852) 2601 6936

ZRIEEP L+ (SOCH)
BEEMADH
ZROE 11 5%

E|ERES 1512

Bk (852) 2601 6998
{8H :(852) 2601 6936
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Automated Systems Holdings Limited — Information of

Major Subsidiaries, Associates and Relevant Centers

BEBRRASREERRAT — 2B - BEQARRMEESDLER

MAINLAND CHINA

Guangzhou Automated Systems Limited
Unit 1401, 1402A, 1402B, 1403A, 1403B
No.185 Yuexiu South Road

Yuexiu District, Guangzhou, China

(Postal Code: 510100)

Tel: (86) 20 2203 8111

Fax: (86) 20 2203 8000

Offshore Delivery Excellence Center (ODEC)
Unit 1401, 1402A, 14028, 1403A, 1403B
No.185 Yuexiu South Road

Yuexiu District, Guangzhou, China

(Postal Code: 510100)

Tel: (86) 20 2203 8111

Fax: (86) 20 2203 8000

Beijing i-Sprint Technology Ltd

Room A1509 Shougang International Tower
No.60 Xizhimen North Street

Haidian District, Beijing, China

(Postal code: 100082)

Tel: (86) 10 8273 6009

i-Sprint Innovations (Beijing) Ltd

Room A1509 Shougang International Tower
No.60 Xizhimen North Street

Haidian District, Beijing, China

(Postal code: 100082)

Tel: (86) 10 8273 6009

i-Sprint Innovations China (Zhuhai, CoE)
4/F, Block B-2

Southern Software Park

No.1 Software Road

Zhuhai, Guangdong, China

(Postal Code: 519080)

Tel: (86) 75 6632 2668

Fax: (86) 75 6632 2660

m Automated Systems Holdings Limited & &) & 4% E AR A A

R E Ay it

BRESEEE SRR AR AR

R EMN T SR

A 185 5%

1401 ~ 1402A ~ 1402B ~ 1403A - 1403BE T
(E4% : 510100)

3% 1 (86) 20 2203 8111

{8H : (86) 20 2203 8000

TSN AT R ) (ODEC)

P E M TSR

SIS 185 9%

1401 ~ 1402A ~ 1402B - 1403A - 1403B & 7T
(B34 : 510100)

3% 1 (86) 20 2203 8111

B : (86) 20 2203 8000

IRLAEREEREEAT
bR EE A EPIIEAE 605
bR & B K E A1509
(EB4 : 100082)

3% © (86) 10 8273 6009

L (L) B AREEAR]
dERMTEREAEPIEAE 605
bR & B K E A1509
(BB#4% : 100082)

B (86) 10 8273 6009

ZARAERBIRE S MR
BWEMERRHER 157
37 B (B B2 1R U2
(EB#4% : 519080)

3% 1 (86) 75 6632 2668
{EH : (86) 75 6632 2660
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Automated Systems Holdings Limited - Information of

Major Subsidiaries, Associates and Relevant Centers

BEBRRASREERRAT — 2B - BEARRMEETLER

MACAU

CSA Automated (Macau) Limited

Alameda Dr. Carlos D'Assumpcao, No. 180
Edificio Tong Nam Ah Comercial Campo
14 Andar O-R, Macau

Tel: (853) 2878 6392

Fax: (853) 2878 6390

iN Systems (Macao) Limited

Alameda Dr. Carlos D’Assumpcao, No. 180
Edificio Tong Nam Ah Comercial Campo
14 Andar O-R, Macau

Tel: (853) 2878 6392

Fax: (853) 2878 6390

THAILAND

ASL Automated (Thailand) Limited

283/42 Home Place Office Building

Unit 0901, 9th Floor

Soi Sukhumvit 55 (Thonglor 13), Sukhumvit Road
Klongtan Nua Vadhana

Bangkok 10110, Thailand

Tel: (662) 185 3206

Fax: (662) 185 3207

ASL Automated Services (Thailand) Limited
283/42 Home Place Office Building

Unit 0902, 9th Floor

Soi Sukhumvit 55 (Thonglor 13), Sukhumvit Road
Klongtan Nua Vadhana

Bangkok 10110, Thailand

Tel: (662) 185 3206

Fax: (662) 185 3207

i-Sprint Innovations (Thailand) Co., Ltd
Level 32, Interchange 21

399 Sukumvit Road, North-Klongtoey
Wattana, Bangkok, 10110, Thailand
Tel: (662) 185 3206

Fax: (662) 185 3207
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BEI R CRP) BRAR
PR EAES 18057
REDEERDL
14#20-RE

3% © (853) 2878 6392
{8H :(853) 2878 6390

BE R GRHE CRP) AR A A
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REREERDL

141 0-RE

3% 1 (853) 2878 6392

fEH : (853) 2878 6390

RH

ASL Automated (Thailand) Limited

283/42 Home Place Office Building

Unit 0901, 9th Floor

Soi Sukhumvit 55 (Thonglor 13), Sukhumvit Road
Klongtan Nua Vadhana

Bangkok 10110, Thailand

T 55 ¢ (662) 185 3206

5 : (662) 185 3207

ASL Automated Services (Thailand) Limited
283/42 Home Place Office Building

Unit 0902, 9th Floor

Soi Sukhumvit 55 (Thonglor 13), Sukhumvit Road
Klongtan Nua Vadhana

Bangkok 10110, Thailand

TG (662) 185 3206

{8 H : (662) 185 3207

i-Sprint Innovations (Thailand) Co., Ltd
Level 32, Interchange 21

399 Sukumvit Road, North-Klongtoey
Wattana, Bangkok, 10110, Thailand
EiE  (662) 185 3206

{85 : (662) 185 3207
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Automated Systems Holdings Limited — Information of

Major Subsidiaries, Associates and Relevant Centers

BEBRRASREERRAT — 2B - BEQARRMEESDLER

SINGAPORE

i-Sprint Innovations Pte Ltd

Blk 750D Lobby 1 Chai Chee Road

#08-01 Viva Business Park
Singapore 469 004

Tel: (65) 6244 3900

Fax: (65) 6244 8900

MALAYSIA

i-Sprint Innovations Sdn Bhd
V-SQ @ PJ City Centre
5-13A-01, Jalan Utara
46200 Bandar Petaling Jaya
Selangor, Malaysia

Tel: (60) 3 7932 5688

Fax: (60) 3 7931 5688

UNITED STATES

i-Sprint Innovations Inc
197 Route 18 South
Suite 3000

East Brunswick, NJ 08816
Tel: (1) 201 604 3545
Fax: (1) 732 422 0178

m Automated Systems Holdings Limited & &) & 4% E AR A A

03K

i-Sprint Innovations Pte Ltd

Blk 750D Lobby 1 Chai Chee Road

#08-01 Viva Business Park
Singapore 469 004

EiE ¢ (65) 6244 3900
f8H : (65) 6244 8900

BRA

i-Sprint Innovations Sdn Bhd
V-SQ @ PJ City Centre
5-13A-01, Jalan Utara
46200 Bandar Petaling Jaya
Selangor, Malaysia

EE 0 (60) 3 7932 5688
{8H : (60) 3 7931 5688

XE

i-Sprint Innovations Inc
197 Route 18 South
Suite 3000

East Brunswick, NJ 08816
&g ¢ (1) 201 604 3545
fBE : (1) 7324220178
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Automated Systems Holdings Limited
EBRGEERBERLA

15th Floor, Topsail Plaza, 11 On Sum Street,
Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 2601 6998 Fax: (852) 2601 6936
Home Page: http://www.asl.com.hk
FERDHEZOE 11 REIEES 1542

&35 (852) 2601 6998 K : (852) 2601 6936
#AE : http://www.asl.com.hk
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